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PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this document constitute “forward-locking statements™, In some cases,
these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including
the terms “helieves™, “estimates™, “plans”™, “prepares”, “anticipates™, “expeets”, vintends”™, “may™. “will”
or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology, Sharcholders
should specifically consider the factors identified in this document. which could cause actual results to
differ, before making any decision whether to vote in favour of the Resolution. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of the Premicr Group. or industry results, (o be materially different
from any tuturc results, performance or achicvements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements, Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Premier
Group's present and {uture business sirategics and the environment in which the Premier Group will
operate in the future. Such risks, uncertaintics and other factors are set out more fully in the section
entitled “Risk Factors™ in Part TT of this document, These forward-looking statements speak only as at the
date of this document. Premier expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking (o release publicly any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained in this document to reflect any change in
Premier’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which
any such statement is based, except as required by the FCAL the London Stock Exchange, applicable luws,
the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transpurency Rules.

PRESENTATION OF CURRENCIES

Unless otherwise indicaied, all references 10 L7, “pounds™ or “pounds sterling™ are (o the lawful currency
of the United Kingdom and all references to =87, “USS7, “US dollars” or “United States dollars™ are to
the lawtul currency of the United States,

PRESENTATION OF RESERVES AND RESOURCES

Unless otherwise stated, statements in this document relating to the EPUK Group's reserves and resourees
have been prepared using the classification system set out in the Petroleum Resources Banagement
System ("PRMS™) published in 2007 and jointly sponsored by the Society of Petroleum Engincers
{“SPE"), the American Association of Petroleum Ceologists (“AAPGT), the World Petroleum Council
{(*WPC™) and the Society of Petroleum Fvaluation FEngineers (“SPEE”).

All references to “reserves” are to proved and prohable (F2P7) and all references to “contingent
resources’ are 1o discovered hydrocarbons that are potentially recoverable {#2C”} but not yet considered
mature enough for commercial development due to technological or business hurdles (e.g. all required
internal and external approvals are not yet in place).

The accuracy of reserves estimates and associated economic analysis is, in part, a function of the quality
and quantity of available data and of engincering and geological interpretation and judgment. This
document should be aceepted with the understanding that reserves, resources and financial performance
subsequent to the date of the estimates may necessitate revision, These revisions may be material, Unless
otherwise stated, all information about the EPUK Group’s oil and gas reserves and resources, [orward-
looking production estimates and other geological information has been extracted without material
adjustment from the Competent Persons” Reports in Part TV of this document.

ROUNDING

Pereentages in tables have heen rounded and accordingly may not add up to 1004, Certain financial data
have also been rounded. As a result of this rounding, the totals of data presented in this document may
vary slightly from the actual arithmetic totals of such data.

DEFINITIONS

Certain terms used in this document, including capitalised terms and certain technical terms. are defined
and explained in the “Definitions™ section, in Part IX of this document.
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FXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS
Date of this document . ... ... . 7 April 2010
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Notes:
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PART I—LLETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF PREMIER

@ PremierOil

{(Incorporated in Scotland with registered number SC234781)

Directors Registered Office:
Mike Welton {Chairman) 4th Floor

Tlony Durrunt {Chief Execrtive Officer) Saltive Court
Richard Rose (Finance Dircctor) 200 Castle Terrace
Robin Allan (Divecion, North Sea and Exploration) Edinburgh EITI 2ZEN

Neil Hawkings (Edrecton Sowtlt Fast Asia and Falldand Islandy)
David Bamtord (Now-Fecutive Director)

Anne Marie Cannon (Noi-Execidive Director)

Joc Darby (Senior Independent Nen-Exccutive Director)

Jane Hinkley (Non-Fxecutive Director)

David Lindsell (Now-Exectiive Director)

Michel Romicu (Noa-Executive Direcror)

7 April 20160
Dear Sharcholder,
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF EPUK (:ROUP
1. Introduction

On I3 January 2010, Premier announced that it had entered into a conditional agreement for the
acquisition of the FPUK Group from E.ON Beteiligungen GmbH for a net consideration of 5120 million
plus a completion adjusiment. On | February 2016, Premier announced that the amount of the completion
adjustment had been agreed at $15 million and that the aggregate cash payment pavable by Premicer was
theretore 5135 million. The EPUK Group holds all of E.ONs UK upstream oil and gas assets which are
located in the Central North Sea, West ol Shetlands and the Southern Gas Basiw.

Subject o the satisfaction of certain conditions, it is currently expected that the completion of the
Acquisition will oceur by the end of April 2016, The terms and conditions of the Acquisition are contained
in the Acquisition Agreements, which are summarised in Part 1T of this document.

The Acquisition, because of its size in relation to the Premicr Group, is a Class 1 transaction under the
Listing Rules and is therelore conditional on, among other things, the approval of Sharcholders.

The Acquisition is also conditional, among other things. upon the approval of the Premier Group’s lending
banks and US private placement notcholders and upon confirmation from the Scerctary of State that the
Acquisition will not result in the revocation of the EPUK Group's petroleum exploration andior
production licences or require any further change of contrel of the EPUK Group. The lending banks and
US private placement notcholders have now pravided the consents and waivers required in connection
with the Acquisition and the Acquisition has also reccived the necessary contirmarion trom the Secretary
ol State.

A General Meeting is o be held at 10.00 am on Monday 25 April 2016 10 seek approval from the
Sharcholders and a notice convening the General Meceting. at which the Resolution will be proposed, is sct
out 4t the end of this document,

The purpose of this document is to provide Sharcholders with the background to and reasons for the

Acquisition, o explain why the Directors consider it (o be i the best interests of Premier and Shareholders
as a whole and to reeommend that Sharcholders vote in favour of the Resolution.

2. Background to and reasons for the Acguisition

Premier is a Tull cycle exploration and production company whose focus 15 10 invest in high quality
production and development oppartunitics whilst maintaining exposure to upside value through sclective
cxploration. Premier actively manages its portfolio and, when market conditions allow. looks to add high



quality assefs through selective acquisitions that fit within its core areas of operation and where its position
is commercially advantaged.

The Dircetors believe that the Acquisition is an excellent opportunity 1o enhance the Premicr Group's
position in one of its core arcas, the UK North Sca, and will continue its historie track record of adding
long term value through acquisitions in low oil price environments,

The Directors believe that the key benefits of the Acquisition are:
= Addition of a quality asset base to the Premier Group’s existing UK North Sea business;

= Potential to generate operating and cost synergies across the Premier Group’s combined UK North
Sca business:

« A compelling acquisition valuation that is immediately value enhancing: and

*  Provision of significant linancial benelits 1o the Premicr Group within strict acquisition criteria.

Addition of ¢ high quality asset base to The Prentier Group's existing UK North Sea business

The Acquisition is a continuation of the Premier Group's strategy to focus its portfolio on its core regions,
[urther strengthening the Premier Group's position in the UK North Sea with its associaled tax synergics.
The Acquisition will add approximately 75 mmboe of net reserves and an estimated 15 kboepd of net
production on a full year basis to the Premier Group's UK operations, increasing the size of the UK
reserves and production from 149 mmboc and approximately 17 kboepd respectively. The Acquisition also
adds contingent and prospective resources which ofter potential for future growth.

The Directors belicve that the Acquisition will add high quality assets to the Premier Group, increasing the
Premier Group’s presence in the Central North Sea and establishing a presence in the Southern Gas Basin
with a combination of producing and pre-development assets, and exploration acrcage. Acquiring the
Assets will provide the Premicer Group with, amongst other things. a stake in the Llgin-Franklin assct, one
of the UK’s most prolific producing assets, and will enlarge the Premier Group’s long-term UK portfolio
with the Tolmount arca development, one of the lareest discoveries in the North Sca in recent years. In
addition, the Acquisition will add UK gas revenues to the existing porttolio, which is helpful because the
UK gas price has heen historically less volatile than oil prices, rebalancing the Premier Group’s commudity
CXPOSUTE.

Potential for significant operaiing and cosi synergiey

By combining the two UK North Sea business units, the Threctors believe the Acquisition will complement
the Premier Group's key sirengths and will provide the potential (o generale operating and cost synergics,
which is highly attractive, especially in the current lower oil price environment. Following the Acquisition,
the Premier Group will consolidate its interest in the Huntington ficld and assume the operatorship, This
will allow (he Premier Group the opportunity o optimise production from the ficld, (o reduce operating
costs and ultimately extract value from the asset. In addition o Huntington, the Directors helieve that
there will be further opportunities for operating efficiencies through augmenting the Premier Group's
existing operating team and the sharing of best practices. Turther savings in both operating costs and
Premicer Group overheads will he achicved through the removal of duplicated and overlapping activitics.

Compelfing acguisition valiation

The Acquisition valucs the Assels at approximaiely S1.6/boc based on 2P reserves estimated by the
Competent Persons, as summarised in the table of reserves set out on page 7 and as set out in full in
Part TV of this document, The Directors believe there are limited opportunities available of this scale and
quality in the UK at such a compelling valuation. with Elgin-Franklin being one of the most prolific
producing assets in the UK exploration and production scctor. The Acquisition has a highly attractive
purchase price of $120 million, compared to the net asset value of 2P reserves and the SNS infrastructure
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{as estimated by the Competent Persons in Part TV of this document) of approximately 5494 million
{pre-tax), as summarised in the able below:

Pre-tax NPV, Smm

Central North Sca reserves (DEM CPR) ... oo oo o a67
Southern North Sca reserves and infrastructure (RISCCPRY. ..o oo o o0 27
TOTAL Assct Valuc ..o e e 494

The Acquisition will allow Premicr to create value for Sharcholders through accelerating the utilisation of
some of the Premier Group's existing UK taix loss position of approximartely $3.5 billion,

Financial benefits to the Premier Gronp

The Acquisition will add both short term and long term financial benefits to the Premicr Group, whilst
meeting the striet financial ¢riteria for acquisitions set by the Board to ensure that the Premier Group's
linancial position is appropriate. The Acquisition will add significant production wtd associated cash flow
in 2010 and 2017, even at current oil and gas prices, aided by the valuable hedging portfolio that will be
acguired with the Assets, Tn 2016, 33% of the estimated ligquids production is hedged at 3971 and 32% of
estimatled gas production at 63pitherm. In 2017, 21% of estimated gas production s hedged al 57piherm.
At 3] December 2015, the tair values on these commodity swaps were asscts of £29.7 million for the oil and
£29.0 million for the gas, In the long term, the Acquisition, it Completion ocours, will continue to generate
valuable production for the Prenuer Group with the most significant producing assel, Elgio-Franklin,
having an cxpected remaining production life of approximately 20 vears.

Bascd on current operator estimates, the abandonment Labilitics in respect of the Asscts amount to
approximately 5435 million, A significant proportion of these abandonment liahilities relate to long-dated
assels such as Elgin-Frankhin which will got be abundoned uvntl after 2030, In respect of the other
abandonment liabilities, the Premicr Group has entered into an arrangement to share the abandonment
cost exposure with FLON on both the Ravenspurn North and Johnston tields with F.ON paying up w
£63 million of the cost depending on final abandoument expenses incurred. Based on (he Premier Group's
cxpectation for the life of ficld of the Assets and after taking account of LE.ON's contribution. the
near-term (pre 2020) abandonment liabilities are approximarely $260 million (pre-tax). In addition, the
Acquisition weludes approximately £250 million of historie tax paid that will be available to the Premier
Croup to offsct against future decommissioning expenditure. The Directors believe  that  these
arrangements significantly help to offset the abandonment liabilities in respect of the Assets,

The Acquisition meets the strict financial criteria set by the Board; the consideration pavable will he
Mnanced lrom existing cash rvesources and has an expected payback period of around two years. I
completed, the Acquisition is expected to be materially aceretive to the Company’s main financial leverage
covenants in its debt arrangements, However. as (s set out in more detail elsewhere in this document, the
completion of he Acquisition is unlikely, in itsell, (o fully mitigate the anticipated shortlall vnder the
financial leverage covenant in respect of the testing periods ending on 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2010
and under the interest cover covenant in respect of the testing period ending on 31 December 2016, Your
attention is drawn to the qualified working cupital statement set oul in Part VII of this document.

For the reasons set oul above, the Directors believe thal the Acquisition will bring signilicant finaucial
benefits to the Premier Group in both the short and longer term.

3.  [Information on the Assets

The Assets (o be acquired by the Premier Group mclude production assels, pre-development assets and
mfrastructure in the Central North Sca and Southern North Sca, plus exploration acreage in both these
arens and also in the West of Shetlands,

The production Assets comprise;

.

* a 3.2% interest in the unitised Elgin-Franklin area (ingluding the Elgin, Franklin and West Franklin
sas cotdensate fields), along with an 18.37% interest in the Glenelg! sas condensate field;

= a 25% operated interest in the Huatington oil field. whiclh vises to 38.53% post the delault of Noreco
O1l {UK) Limited and [ona Lnergy Ine. in respect of their equity in the field;

The only producios well of the Glenelg field is currently shot-in and waiting on o workover to reinstate production
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= a 47% operated interest in the Bahbage gas tield:

= operated interests in the Johnstan (50.1%), Rita® (74%) and Hunter (79%) gas fields;

= interests in the Scoter {12%} and Merganser (7.9%) gas condensate fields; and

= interests in the Orca {23.4685%). Caister® (40%) and Ravenspurn North (28.745%) gas fields,
together with associated property interests including pipelines, processing, and storage and office facilities,
The pre-development Assets comprise:

= a 30% operated interest in the Tolmount gas discovery; and

= interests in the Arran {5.12%) and Austen (25%) discoveries,

Other Assets comprise:

= interests in a further 16 exploration licences in the UK (3 West of Shetland, 7 Central North Sea,
6 Southern North Sca), 13 of which are operated; plus a further | in the process of being awarded;

= o 20% interest in the CMS inlrastructure:

= u 30% interest in the ETS pipeline; and

= a0 42.7% interest in the Minke ficld, which ceased production in 2011,

The Acquisition offers the Premier Group:

= estimaled net working interest production of approximately 15 kboepd on an annualised basis;
= approximately 75 mmboe of net working inierest 2P rescrves; and

= contingent and prospective resources both within the field licences and additional licences which offer
putential for future growth.

Set out in the table below are the LPUK Group's reserves as at | January 2015, the cfteetive date of the
transaction, The figures have been extracted without material adjustment from the Competent Persons
Reports and are preseated in secordance with PRMS. The Competent Persons have used consistent
assumptions in their base case assessment of reserves and valuations. However, due to the nature of the
assets being evaluated, different sensitivities have been provided. The details of the sensitivities provided
and the related reserves and values are set out in the Competent Persons’ Reports which are set out in [ull
in Part 1V of this document.

P'roven and probable
2F reserves

[mmle)
Central North Sea (D&M CPR) ... oo o oo 39
Southern North Sea (RISC CPR) . ... .. o . 36
T AL . e e e e e e 75

The Competent Persons™ have also included an estimate of the EPUK Group's reserves and resources as al
31 December 2015 of 70 mmboc.

The Elgin-Franklin arca, which is operated by TOTAL, is a mid-lifc asset with very low operating costs ot
less than $ahoe in 2016, The gas condensate fields are currently producing approximately 110 kboepd and
are expected o maintain high production rales for the next three years as new wells are drilled on the
ticlds. [t is a long-term asset which is expected to keep producing for approximately another twenty years.

The Huntington oil ficld is a Central North Sca asset familiar to the Premicr Group, as it has held the
largest equity stake since the QilExco Acquisition in 2009. Tt currently produces approximately 13 kboepd
with reserves of approximutely lOmmboc as at 1 January 2005, As a result of the Acquisition. the Premicr
Group will assume operatorship which will put it in a much stronger position to aptimise future value trom
the field by reducing operating costs and enhancing future production.

The Babbage field. where the Premier Group will assume operatorship, is a dry gas field which currently
produces [rom S wells with infill production well and near-field exploration opportunitics. This field, along

- Rita's praduction was shut-in trom late 2003, Divestigations are onderway as to cause and pessible remedy to the well tailure

* Production on Caister ceased in late 2005, with na turther planoed development activity



with the other assets in the Southern North Sea. offers diversification of the Premier Group’s UK portiolio
through incremental gas production. Turther gas production will also be added (rom the interests o be
acguired in the Scoter and Merganser gas condensate ficlds in the Central North Sca, in addition to the
Flgin-Franklin area production,

The Tolmount discovery is one of the largest discoveries in the Southern Gas Basin in recent years with
eslimated gross resources of 145 BefB830 Bel. It represents significant future value as development options
are matured with a projeet sanction decision cxpected to be made in the near future, Gross peak
production is estimated at 100-200 mmsctd, RISC {(UK) [td has classified the Tolmount volumes as
reserves rather than contingent resources as an ceonomic development has been found and the field is
progressing towards development. [n addition to the current base development, there is signiticant growth
potential in the surrounding area and through access to third party business.

Development studies are underway at the Arran and Austen discoveries and there are turther discovered
resources in the portfolio along with strategic exploraiion licences with the potential to extend the life of
existing producing asscts.

4. Principal terms and conditions of the Acquisition

The Purchaser and Premier have entered inio the Sale and Purchase Agreement with the Seller and E.ON
in relation to the LPUK Group. The parties have also entered into the Additional Restructuring [ndemnity
Deed,

The consideration payable hy the Purchaser for the FPUK Group is calculated using a locked box
mechanism, based on the balance sheet of the EPUK Group as at 31 December 2004, The consideration
constitutes 4 base purchase price of $120 million (as at | January 2015), plus a completion adjustment of
515 million, giving a total consideration of $135 million. Additional adjustments to the consideration are
described in Part I of this documeni.

The Purchaser hay paid a deposit of $1.3 million to the Seller, which the Seller is entitled 1o keep for its
own benefit if the Sale and Purchase Agreement Is terminated in certain circumstances.

The Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction {or waiver, where applicable) of certain conditions, which
include the approval of the Resolution by Shareholders at the General Meeting, the EPUK Group paying
dividends or distributions o the Seller prior to Completion in an amount cqual o £1451858,608.20, the
Premicer Group's lending banks and US private placement notcholders providing required consents and
waivers in respect of the Acquisition, and obtaining confirmation from the Secretary of State that the
Acquisiion will not result in the revocation of the EPUK Group's petrolecum exploration andior
production licenees or reguire any further change of control of the EPUK Group. As at the date of this
document two ot these conditions have already been satisfied, as the Premier Group’s lending banks and
US privaie placement notcholders have now provided the consents and waivers required in connection
with the Acquisition and the Aequisition has also received the necessary contirmation trom the Sccretary
of State. The Acquisition is also subject to the Purchaser’s complinnce with its obligations in respect of
Complction (which includes delivery of certain guarantees and letters of credit).

Under the Acquisition Agreements. the Seller and the Purchaser have cach given customary
representations, warrantics, covenants and indemnitics to the other, including undertakings regarding
achieving satistaction of the conditions as well as regarding the conduct of the business of the EPUK
Group pending Completion. The Seller and the Purchaser have also agreed arrangements [or the provision
of security by the Purchaser for decommissioning liabilitics and for the sharing of certain decommissioning
COSES,

Further details of the Acquisition Agreements are set out in Part TIT of this document,

5. Financing of the Acquisition

The consideration for the Acquisition will be satisfied through the Premicr Group’s existing cash balanees
and is not conditional on the Premier Group obtaining new funds to finance the Acquisition.

6. Financial cffects of the Acquisition

For the year ended 31 Deeember 2015, the LPUK Group generated a loss after tax of £115.4 million.
EBITDAX of £96.4 million, and had gross assets of £537.4 million. The financial information is extracted



without material adjustment from Part V of this document which also sets out further information on
EPUK.

Given the cash gencrative nature of the Assets, the Acquisition is expecied o be immediately carnings
enhaneing for Premicr and allows the Premier Group to accelerate the utilisation of its existing UK tax loss
position,

As at 31 December 2015, the FPUK Group had net assets of £143.4 million, Transaction costs are
anticipaled to be approximately (3.3 million and will be expensed in Premicr’s income statement in the
vear ending 31 December 2016, An unaudited pro forma statement of net assets illustrating the effeer of
the Acguisition on the Premier Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2015, as if it had been undertaken at
that date, is set out in Part VI of this document. This informetion is unaudited and has been prepared (or
illustrative purposes only. 1t shows that the impact of the Acguisition would have led to a pro forma
decrease in net assets of $4.9 million as at 31 December 2015,

Shareholders should read the whole of this document and not just rely on the summarised financial
information contained in this letler.

7. Current trading and prospecls
Prentier

Premier issued its Full Year Results Statement on 25 Fehruary 2016, The performance of Premier was
described in the Chicl Exceultive Officer’s stutement as follows:

“Despite the significant reduction in oil and gus prices, reflected in our resules today, 2015 was « year in
whiich we excecded production guidance, added 1o reserves, achieved notable explovation suecess and
reached agreement on o value-udding eoquisition. We abse reduced operating costs By over 23 per cent,
significantdy cut buck on current and future development spend and disposed of negative cash flow assets.

Orer forward plan includes firther actions to reduce delyt, positioning ourselves for a prolonged period of
lower oif prices, whilst continidng fo take actions fo build longer-termt value for a recovering conumodity
environment,”

There has been no material change in the Board’s assessment of the matters described above since
25 Tebruary 2016.

FPUK

Production from the Assets since the beginning of 2016 has averaged 17.2 kboepd ahead of the operator’s
budeet and 15% ahcad of 2015 production of 150 kboepd, with all three main producing assets
contributing to the outperformance. Production from Llgin-Franklin has been particularly strong at
5.3 kboepd (net), 14% ahead of 2015, Targely due to the performance of the West Franklin development
wells, the latest of which was brought on stream in August 2015, Ongoing development drilling will
continue at Elgin-Franklin, with seven new wells expected on line in the next 3 years at a cost to Premicr of
approximately £50 million. Production is expected to remain at current levels through to 2019, The other
main producing assets, Hunitington and the Babbage arca, are both ahcad of E.ON's budeget and are
performing in line with 2015 production levels ut 5.2 kboepd {net) and 3.4 kboepd {net) respectively.
despite an anticipated decline.

8.  Working capital

Your attention is drawn to the gualified working capital statement set out in Part VI of this document.

Y, Risk Factors

Sharcholders should consider fully and carelully the risk factors associated with the Acquisition and the
operations of the Enlarged Group. Your attention is drawn to the risk tactors set out in Part 1 of this
document,

H). General meeting

In aceordance with the Listing Rules, the Acquisition is conditional upon. among other things. the approval
of Shareholders at the General Meeting. Set out at the end of this document is a Notice convening the
General Meeting. The General Meeting will be held at 157-197 Buckingham Palice Road, London,



SWIW 9ST at 100 am on Monday 25 April 2016, The Resolution for Shareholders to approve the
Acquisition will be proposed as an ordinary resolution requiring a simple majority of votes in favour 1o be
passed. The Acquisition will not proceed it the Resolution is not passed.

The Bourd considers it to he in the best interests of Premicr and its Sharcholders for completion of the
Acquisition to occur as soon as possible. For this reason, the General Meeting is to be convened in
accordance with the applicable statutory notice period rather than the 14 working days under the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

11. Action to be taken

You will find enclosed with this document the Form of Proxy for use at the General Meeting or at any
adjournment thereof. You arc requested to complete and sign the Form of Proxy in accordance with the
instructions printed on it and return il as soon as possible to, bul in any event so as to be received no later
than 10.00 am on Thursday 21 April 2016 by the Registrar, Capita Asset Services at PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU or clectronically via the internet. Instructions om how to do this can he
found on the Farm of Proxy. You may also deliver the Form of Proxy by hand to Capila Assel Services, The
Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 41U during usual business hours. CREST members
may also choose to use the CREST clectronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures
set out in the notice convening the General Meeting al the end of this document, The lodging of the Form of
Proxy (or the electronic appointment of a proxy) will not preclude you from attending and voting at the
General Mecting in person it you so wish.

12. Further information

You should read the whole of this document in respecet of the Acquisition and the information
incorporated by reference into it and not just rely on the summarised information contained in Part [ of
this document. In particular. your attention is drawn to the risk factors set out in Part IT of this document,
the information set out in Part LI of this document, and the information incorporated by reflerence into
this document as listed in Part V1L

13, Recommendation

The Board considers the Acguisition to be in the best interests of Premier and its Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the Board recommends that Shareholders vote in favour of the Resolution, as the Directors
intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings which, as at 6 April 2016 (being the latest practicable
date prior to publication of this document), amount to 2,400,671 Ordinary Shares in aggregate,
representing approximately 0.47% of Premier’s existing issued share capital.

Yours Taithfully,

Mike Welton
Chairmuan
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PART II—RISK FACTORS

Shareholders should be aware that a shareholding in Premier involves a degree of risk. In addition (o the
other information contained in, or incorporated by reference into this document, the following risk factors
should be considered carefully in evaluating whether to vote in favour of the Resolution.

The risk factors in this document set out the necessary disclosure in accordance with the Listing Rules, and
do not seek Lo cover all of the material risks which generally affect the Premier Group.

The risks and uncertainties described below represent those known to the Board as al the date of this
document which the Board consider to be material risks relating to the Acquisition, in addition to material
risks relating to the Enlarged Group which result from or are impacted by the Aequisition. However, these
risks and uncerlainties are not the only ones facing the Premier Group, the EPUK Group or, following
Completion, the Enlarged Group. Additional risks and uncertainties that do not currently exist or that are
not currently known to the Board, or that the Board currently consider to be immaterial, could also have a
material adverse effect on the business, resulls of operalions, financial condition or prospects of the
Premier Group, the EPUK Group or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group.

If any or a combination of the events described below actually occurs, the business, results of operations,
financial conditions or prospects of the Premicr Gronp, the EPUK Group or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group could be malerially and adversely impacied. In such case, the market price of Premier
shares could decline and investors may lose all or part of their investment.

Shareholders should read this document as a whole and not rely solely on the information set out in this
section.

1. Risk factors relating to the Acquisition
The Aequisition does not proceed

The Acquisition is subject 1o the satislaction {or waiver, where applicable) of certain conditions, which
include the approval of the Resolution by Sharcholders at the General Meeting. the EPUK Group payving
dividends or distributions to the Seller prior to Completion in an amount equal to £145,185,608.20, the
Premicr Group's lending banks and US privale placement noteholders providing consents and waivers
required in connection with the Acquisition under the terms of its eredit facilities agreements and note
arrangements, and ohtaining confirmation from the Secretary of State that the Acquisition will not result
in the revocation of the EPUK Group’s petroleum exploration andfor production licences or require any
further change of control of the LPUK Group. The Acquisition s alse subject to the Purchaser's
compliance with its obligations in respect of Completion (which includes delivery of certain guarantees and
letters of credin). As at the date of this document two of these conditions have alrcady been sutisficd, as the
Premicr Group's lending banks and US private placement notcholders have now provided the consents
and waivers required in connection with the Acquisition and the Acquisition has also received the
necessary conlirmation [rom the Secretary of State, TFurther detail on the condilions to the Acquisition are
summuarised in Part 1I1 of this document.

There is no guarantee that the remaining conditions will be satistied (or waived, if applicable), in which
case the Acquisition will not proceed to Completion, If the Shareholders do not approve the Acquisition at
the General Meeting, the Acquisition will not complete. Il the Acquisition does not proceed 1o
Completion, the benetits of the Acguisition, identiticd in the Chairman’s Letter in Part 1 ot this document,
will not materialise and. in certain circumstances, the Seller would be entitled to retain the Depuosit.

Indemnities, warranties and parent company guarantee under the Acguisition Agreements

The Sale and Purchase Agreement contains certain indemnitics and warrantics given by the Purchaser in
favour of the Seller and the Seller Group. Tn particular, the Sale and Purchase Agreement requires the
Purchaser (o provide an indemnity in respect of the Scller’s continued provision of sceurity in favour of the
LPUK Group trom Completion, an indemnity in respeet of decommissioning labilitics and various letters
of credit and guarantees. The Sale and Purchase Agreement also requires Premier to guarantee the
Purchaser’s payment obligations under certain Acquisition Agreements. Further details of the Acquisition
Agreements are set out in Part HI of this document. 1t the Purchaser or Premier is required to make
payments under any of the provisions described above this could have an adverse effect on the Folarged
Group's cash (low and [inancial condition.



The Premier Group may be subject to wnforeseen labilities and risks arising from the Acguisition

Whilst the Premier Group has access to certain information on the Assets as o result of its existing interests
in Huntinglon and has reviewed information disclosed by the Seller during the sule process there can be no
assuranee that the Assets are not subject to third party rights and liabilitics (including, among others, fixed
or floating charges, hire purchase agreements and retentian of title claims) of which the Premier Group is
unaware. Whilst some warranty and other protection is provided {or by the Seller under the Acquisition
Agreements, these warrantics and protections are subject to financial and other customary limitations and
there is no certainty that the Purchaser would be able to enforce its contractual or other rights against the
Scller or recover the [ull amount of any losses sullered by the Premicer Group. Further details of the
Acguisition Agreements are set out in Part 11 of this document.

Preniier may fail to realise the anticipated financial bengfits from the Acquisition

There is no assurance that the Acquisition will achicve the financial benelits that Premicr anticipates.
Premicr belicves that the eonsideration for the Acquisition is justified in part by the financial bencfits it
expects to achieve by acquiring the Assets, However, these expected financial benefits may not develop and
other assumptions upon which Premicr delermined the consideration may prove o be incorreet. To the
extent that Premier achicves lower financial benefits than expected. its and the Enlarged Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and the price of the Ordinary Shares may suffer,

The Premier Group's success will be dependent upon ifs ability to integrate the Assets

The Premier Group may encounter numerous integration challenges in connection with the Acquisition.
including challenges which are not currently foreseeable. Tn addition, the Premier Group’s management
and resources may be diverted away from its core business activitics duc o personnel being required to
assist in the integration process, This integration process may take longer than expected. or difficulties
relating to the integration, of which the Board is not yetr aware. may arise including unforeseen operating
difficultics and pose management, sdministrative and linancial challenges. In addition, unanticipaied costs
muy be incurred in respect of the Acquisition und the integration of the Assets. This could adversely affect
the implementation of the Premier Group’s plans, and the Premier Group may not he successful in
addressing risks or problems encountered in connection with the integration and [ailure (o do so may
adversely affect its business or financial condition. Sec further detail below.

2. Risk factors relating to the Enlarged Group
Elgin-Franklin area—exposure to HPHT operations and minority equity

Owncrship of the Elgin-Franklin area Asscts will expose the Premier Group to producing high pressure,
high temperature (“HPHT™) operations which, compared to “normal™ oil and gas operations, have a more
onerous design specitication and greater operational complexity, leading to higher risk levels, In the event
of a hydrocarbon release, HHPUT lields also give rise 1o more significant potential consequences duc 1o
both fluid compaosition and characteristics (large surface volumes and dense gas).

In March 2012, there was a well tailure and gas leak at surface from the Elgin platform. The risks
associated with potential future gas leaks are well characterised by the eperator and are the subject of
active management programmes. There is an extensive ongoing workplan 1o address the abandonment of
older wells, and the re-design of newer wells to mitigate the risk. There is also ongoing study work to
undersiand the potential for any further measures that may be required to prevent future leaks. Tt is
anticipaled that any similar events would be covered by insurance for (he cost impact, but there could still
be reputational and cash tlow consequences tor the Premier CGroup.

The cquity level in the unitised Llgin-Franklin arca (5.2%:) means that the Premier Group will not have a
controlling vote and can therefore he voted in on projects relating to the fields that it may prefer not to
carry out. There are consequently risks on the future cost levels associuted with the ficld.

UK gas trading markets

Prior to the Acquisition, the Premier Group has limited gas volumes associated with production operations
in the UK. The acquired Assctls will provide a significant volume of vus production which requires
speeialist provisions for trading and operations. The Acquisition also cxposes the Premier Group to the
risks associated with different market drivers from its current business, for example, seasonal swings in
prices and European imports and exports, which could impact the revenue generated by the Assets.
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hyfrastructure and pipeline ownership

The Southern Gas Basin is a new area for the Premier Group to participate in and the Assets to be
acquired include equily in infrastructure and pipelines which are used (0 transport hydrocarbons for third
partics (CMS and L'TS). Although the Premier Group will not be operator of these Assets, it will be
exposed o the obligations to maintain integrity of the systems, and fulfil the service provisions fo the
relevant third parlies.

There is also an ownership position in infrastructure and pipelines in the Elgin-Franklio arca, which are
currently used to serviee both equity and some third party hydrocurbons.

Decommiissioning

The Assets 1o be acquired include a number of liclds which are expected to cease production in the
medium-ternt. The detailed plans in relation to the decommissioning of cach individual asset will be agreed
with the relevant authorities and stakeholders at the time of decommissioning, This is a relatively new area,
with a limited oumber of these projects having been undertaken o date. The risk associated with these
projects relates to uncertainty in arcus that impact the projeet costs, namely: stakeholder requirements:
specific conditions related to individual assets: costs for major contracts; and rig and vessel rates.

Premier Group functionol oversight, assurance and support for production, development and exploration
operations and project delivery across the Pranier Group

The integration of acquired Assets and associated personnel into the Premier Group management
structure will be [acilitated by a number of work siream (cams, cach headed by a functional lead cither
based in Premier’s London office or in its Aberdeen office. The London-based group functional managers’
primary role is to provide oversight. technical assurance and suppart for the range of the Premier Group's
current operated production assets and cxploration/development projects world-wide. This portfolio
includes fnrer afia production asset management in the UKCS (see below), Indonesia (Anoa, Gajah Baru,
Naga, Pelikan} and Vietnam (Chim Sao); the Solan and Catcher development projects on the UKCS; the
Sca Lion development project in the North Falklands Basing development projects in Indonesia and
Victnam: and cxploration activity in Brazil and Mexico. There is a risk that the additional workload on
those group tunctional managers associated with the integration work streams impacts adversely on their
ability o deliver assurance and support for the Premier Group’s existing portfolio of activity, resulting in
poor operational decisions, sub-optimal production performance {therefore impaired cash flow) and
project delivery cost and schedule overruns,

The Premier Group's current production, development and praject activity on the UK Continental Shelf

It is currently envisaged that the Premier Group's UK business unit based in Aberdeen will play a major
role in the integration of the Assets post-Completion and, thereafter, the associated new Asset
nanagement. This business unit currently manages the operated B-block produciion Assets (Balmoral,
Brenda, Nicol and Stirling) and the non-operated Kyle, Huntington and Nelson production assets in the
Central North Sea ("CONS7), and Wytch Fum (non-operated) in Dorset. The business unit also oversees
the management of two significant development projects in the exeeution phase—=Solan (West of Shetland,
where tirst oil is imminent) and Catcher {(ONS), and will be managing a number of additional otfshore
UKCS drilling commitments in 2016, The additional workload which would be placed on this business unit
in connection with the integration and management of the Assets presents a risk that ils management of
the existing UKRCS production asset and project portfolio may be adversely affeeted. This could, among
other things, have an adverse impact on production delivery, HSE performance, project delivery or the
managemenl of relations with counterpartics.

Orpanisational capability and competency management

There is a risk that the capahility of the Premier Group organisation is not adequate to deliver plans for
strategic yrowth, including the integration, effective deployment and retention of personnel associated with
the Assets. The capability of the organisation is 4 function of the quality of its leadership, the competencies
of its human resources and the application of its business management systema. Inadequate systems or lack
of complignce may lead 1o loss of value and failure o achieve business objectives. Loss of personnel o
competitors, inability to attract and retain quality human reseurees, and key competency gaps could affect
operational performance and delivery of growth strategy, Failure to successtully manage the FEnlarged
Group's expected growth and development could adversely affect the Enlarged Group.
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Fiscal risk

There is a risk that UK tax law may change in the future which could restrict the Premier Group's ability to
naximise vse of ity tax losses.

Hydrocarbon price volatifity

Hydrocarbon prices are subject to large fluctuations in respunse to a variety of factors bevond the Premier
Group's control. Price fluctuations can affect the Premicr Group’s business assumptions, investment
decisions and financial position. In particular, an extended period of the current low hydrocarbon price
regime may reduce the economic viahility of the Premier Group's projects, would result in a reduction in
revenues or net income, impair the Premicr Group™s ability to make planned expenditures and could
muatcrially adversely affeet the Premier Group's ability to integrate the Assets and associated personnel
post-Completion.

The Premier Group mitigates against this risk by maintaining oil and gas price hedging in the derivatives
market 1o underpin its linancial strength and protect its capacity (0 fund its future developments and
operations. The Acquisition would add materially to the protection oftered by such hedging. The Premicr
Group uses a set of internal investment criteria to ensure that exploration and appraisal opportunities,
development and operations projects, and acquisition and divestment proposals can be tested and are
robust to downside price sensitivity scenurios.

Exchange rate fluctnations and devaluations could have a material adverse effect on the Enlarged Group's results of
aperations

Currency cxchange rate fluctuations and curreney devaluations could have & material adverse etfect on the
Enlarged Group’s results of UKCS cperations from time to time. As the Enlarged Group’s reporting
currency is the US dollar but it predominantly incurs UKCS operating expenses in pounds sterling, a
depreciation of the US dollar against pounds sterling adversely affects the Lnlarged Group’s reported
results of UKCS operations,

Estimation of reserves, resources and production profiles

The estimation of oil and gaus reserves, and their anticipated production profiles involves subjeetive
judgments and determinations based on available geological, technical, contractual and economic
information. They are not exact determinations. In addition, these judgments may change based on new
information from production or drilling activitics or changes in cconomie factors, as well as trom
developments such as acquisitions and disposals, new discoveries and extensions of existing tields and the
application of improved recovery techniques. Published reserve estimates are also subject o correction for
errors in the application of published rules and guidance. There are numerous uncertaintics inherent in
estimating quantities of reserves and cash flows to he derived therefrom including many factors that will he
heyond the control of the Enlarged Group.

The reserves, resources and production profile data contained in this document are estimates only and
should not be construed as representing exact guantitics. They are based on production data, prices, costs,
ownership, geophysical, geological and engineering data, and other information assembled hy the Premier
Group. The estimales may prove o be incorrect and potential investors should not place undue reliance on
the forward-looking statements contained in this document concerning the Premicr Group's reserves and
resources o praduction levels or those of the Assers,

It the assumptions upon which the estimates of the Premier Group's hydrocarbon reserves, resources or
production profiles and those of the Assets have been based prove to be incorrect, the Premier Group may
be unuble to recover and produce the estimated levels or quality of hydrocarbons sct out in this document
and the Premier Group’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations could he
materially adversely aflected.

Production and development defivery

The delivery of the Premier Group's production plans depends on the successtul continuation of existing
licld production operations and the development of key projects. Both of these involve risks normally
incidental to such activities including blowouts, oil spills, explosions, tires, cquipment damage or failure,
natural disasters, availability of technology and engineering capacity, availability of skilled resources,
maintaining project schedules and managing costs, as well s technical, fiscal, regulatory, political and
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other conditions. Such potential obstacles may impair the Premier Group’s continuation of existing field
production and delivery of key projects and, in turn, adversely afllect the Premier Group's operational
performance and finuncial position (including the financial impact from failure to fulfil contractual
commitments related to project delivery),

The Premier Group may face interruptions or delays in the availability of infrastructure, including rigs,
TPSOs, and pipelines, on which exploration and production activitics are dependent. The production
performance of the reservoirs and wells may also be difterent from that forecast due to normal geological
or mechanical uncertainties. Such interruptions, delays or performance differences could result in
disruptions or changes to the Premicr Group’s existing production and projects, lower production and
increased costs, and may have an adverse ceffect on the Premier Group®s profitability,

Joint venture partner aligirment, supply chain delivery and other contractual counterparties

Onperations in the oil and gas industry are sometimes conducted in a joint venture environment. A limited
number of the Premicr Group™s major projects are operated by joint venture partners (as will be the Lilgin-
Franklin field) and the Premier Group's ability to intfluence these operating partners is sometimes limited
duc to the Premicr Group's limited cquity in such ventures. There is a risk that joint venture partners are
not aligned in their objectives and drivers and this may lead to operational or production incfficiencies
and/or delays, or a disruptive departure by one or more partners from the joint venture, Any
mismanagement of these projects by the operator may result in incrcased costs (o the Premier Group
which could adversely affeet its business, results of operations, cash flow and prospects.

The Premier Group is heavily dependent on supply chain providers to deliver services and products to
time, cost and quality criteria. There is a heightened risk during any extended period of downturn in the
upstream services seclor (such as is currently being experienced) of supply chain counterparties’ inability to
deliver. This could delay, restrict or lower the profitability and viability of the Premicr Group's projects
and therefore have a material adverse effect on the Premier Group®s business,

The Premier Group has entered into or is subject to agreements with a number of contractual
counterparties in relation to the sale and supply of hydrocarbon produciion velumes. Therefore, the
Premier Crroup is subjeet to the risk of delayed payment for delivered production volumes or counterparty
default. Such delays or defaults could materially atfect the Premier Group’s business, results of operations
and cash flows.

—_—
LA



PART MMI—PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE ACQUISITION AGREEMENTS
1. Sale and Purchase Agreement

On 3] January 2016, the Purchaser and Premier entered into an amended und restated sale and purchase
agreenent with the Seller and LLON in relation to the LPUK Group (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement™),

The assets of the FPUK Group include legal and beneficial interests in certain petroleum exploration
and/for produciion licences, participating interests in the joint operating agreements and/or unitisation and
unit operating agreements relating to such licenees, and legal and beneficial interests in eertain property
and data relating to such licences, together with all rights, liahilities and obligations associated with such
interests {the “Licence Interests™).

SPA Conditions

Completion is conditional upon satisfaction {or wuiver, as applicable) of the SPA Conditions, which

include:

{A) the Seerctary of State having indicated to the Purchaser (or the Premicr Group) that it does not
intend either fo revoke any of the petroleum exploration and/or production licences held by the
EPUK Group. or require a further change of control of the EPUK Group, as a result of the sale ol the
LPUK Group (the “0OGA Condition™);

{B) the passing of the Resolution for the purposes of the Listing Rules (the “*Shareholder Condition™);

{C}y if. for any reason, the Acquisition s subsequently reclassificd as a reverse takcover tor Premicr under
the Listing Rules, the UKLA approving the associated prospectus for publicution and agreeing 1o
readmit Premicr’s shares to listing on Completion (1he “Reverse Condition™):

(D) the EPUK Group paying dividends or distributions to the Seller on or prior to Completion in an
amaunt equal to £145,188,608,20 (the “Dividend Condition™); and

{F} the Premier Group’s lending hanks and US private placement noteholders providing the consents and
waivers required in connection with the Acquisition under the terms ol its credil lacilities agreements
and note agreements (the “Lender Condition™),

{togcther, the “SPA Conditions™).

If any one or more of the SPA Conditions remains unsatisfied and has not been waived, or becomes
mmpossible 1o salisfy and has not been waived by the Purchaser, by 30 June 2016 (or such later dale as the
partics agree in writing), then either the Scller or the Purchaser may give notice to terminate the Sale and
Purchase Agreement and the Acquisition will not then proceed to Completion, As at the date of this
document. the OGA Coudition and the Leuder Coudition have already been satisfied and EPUK las paid
to the Scller. on 24 February 2016, a dividend of £60 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 in
partial satistagtion of the Dividend Condition,

The parties have agreed to co-operate in goad faith to implement certain pre-Completion restructuring of
the EPUK Group in order 1o create a more efficient capital structure for the EPUK Group lollowing
Completion. As part of this restructuring, it is intended that Newceo will be inserted as the holding company
of FPUK such that the Acquisition is implemented by way of the acquisition by the Purchaser of the entire
issued share capital of Neweo rather than of the entire issued share capital of EPUK.

The Seller and the Purchuaser have agreed o undertake cerlain actions at Completion, including:

{A) entry into the Tax Deed, the Decommissioning Liability Agreement, and an indemnity in respect of

the Huntington chartering arrangements, each as deseribed below;

{B) entry into Bilateral Decommissioning Security Agreements for certain Licence Interests, as deseribed
below:

{C} the provision by Premier of aceeptable seeurily under field-wide decommissioning sceurity agreements
in rclation to certain Licence Interests, as described below;

{D} the novation from E,ON to Premier of the letter of comfort provided by E,ON 1o EPUK in relation
the payment of a £60 million dividend (o the Seller on 24 February 2016;

{E} the provision by Premier of acceptuble security in favour of ELON Global Commaodilies SE in respect
of the liabilitics of the LPUK Group under various marketing and trading agreements; and



{F) if agreed by the Seller and the Purchaser prior to Completion, entry into the transitional services
agreement in respect of transitional services (o be provided by the Seller.

If either the Purchaser or the Seller breaches certain of ils obligations in respect of Completion, then the

non-defaulting party may cleet cither to cffect Completion so far as is practicable or to terminate the Sale

and Purchase Agreement and the Acquisition will not then proceed 1o Completion.

Deposit

The Purchaser has paid a deposit of 51,3 million to the Seller (the “Depasit’™), The Seller is entitled 10

keep the Deposil for ils own benelit if the Sule and Purchase Agreement is terminated:

{A) duc W a fzilure to satisly the OGA Condition or the Dividend Condition, where the [ailure results
from the Purchaser’s failure to use all reasonable endeavours to satisfy the $PA Conditions. to keep
the Seller reasonably informed of progress or to comply with certain of its obligations in respect of
Completion;

{B3) by the Scller, due (o the Purchaser’s [ailure to comply with certain of its obligations in respect of
Complction;

{Cy it Premier or the Directors adversely modify, amend or withdraw the recommendation 1w
Sharcholders (0 vole in [avour of the Resolution and the Acquisition: or

{IM duc o a (ailure o satisly (or waive) the Lender Condition, the Reverse Condition (il applicable) or
the Sharcholder Condition.

If the Sale and Purchase Agreement terminates for any reason other than sct outr above, the Seller will

repay the Deposit to the Purchaser.

Consideration and adjustments

The consideration for the acquisition of the EPUK Group provided for in the $Sale and Purchase
Agreement s # base purchase price (as al 1 January 20135 of §120 million, plus a completion adjustment of
$15 million, giving a total consideration of $135 million (the ~“Consideration™).

The parties have agreed a locked box mechanism based on the balance sheet of the LPUK Group as at
31 December 2014, At Completion. the Purchaser will pay to the Seller an amount equal to the
Consideration less the Deposit, which is then adjusted in accordance with a customary locked box
adjustment, the principal purpose of which is to cnsure that the Consideration is adjusted downwards in
the event that value is transterred from the EPUK Group to the Seller Group {other than permitted value
transfers) in the period from 31 December 2014 10 Completion.

The parties have apreed 1o cooperate in good faith to implement certain pre-Completion restructuring of
the EPUK Group in order to ercate a more cfficient capital structure for the EPUK Group following
Completion.

Pre-completion covenants

The Seller has given certain customary covenants in relation to the period prior to Completion, ingluding a
covenant to carry on the EPUK Group’s activities in the ordinary and usual course of business,

Warranties, indemnities and liabilicy
Werranties

The Seller has given certain warranties relating to, among other things: its legal status; its entry into the
Acquisition Agreements, and in relation o the EPUK Group, its share capital, accounts and financial
condition. the petroleum exploration and/or production licenees, the operation of certain licences. material
contracts. related party arrangements, litigation, employees and benelit arrangements, pension schemes,
lax, [P and L1 systems, real property and complianee with environmental law. Some of these warranties ure
repeated ar Completion.

The warranties given by the Seller are qualified by, among other things, matters fairly disclosed to the
Purchaser, by matters contained or referred to m the Acquisition Agreements and by the actual knowledge
of the Purchaser.

Lach of the Purchaser, Premicr und L.ON has also given certain warrantics relating to its legal status, its
entry into the relevant Acquisition Agreements, no litigation or other proceedings subsist or are
threatened which would materially and adversely affect its ability 10 perform its obligations, ils solvency
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and, in the case of the Purchaser, that it will have sufficient funds available at Completion to complete the
sale and purchase of the EPUK Group.

Furend company guaraniees

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Premier guarantees the discharge by the Purchaser of its
obligations to pay amounts due under or in connection with the Sule and Purchuse Agreement, the
Decommissioning Liability Agreement. the Tax Deed and any transitional scrvices agreement.

Pursuant 1o the Sale and Purchase Agreement, E.ON guarantees the discharge by the Seller of its
chligations 1o puy amounts due in respect of any claim under or in respect of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and the Tax Deed und amounts due under or in connection with the Decommissioning Liability
Agreement,

Limitations o Seller’s fahiliy

The Seller has no liability under or in respeet of the Sale and Purchase Agreement or the Tax Deed (exeept
tar claims in respect of the locked box adjustment (“Tocked Box Claims™)), except to the extent that such
liability cxceeds in aggregate $1.2 million (in which case the Seller is liuble for the entire amount and not
just the excess). Other than in respect of Locked Box Claims and claims relating to the termination of the
FEPUK Group's seismic contracts, no account is taken of claims of 50.25 million or less,

The maximum aggregate liability of the Seller in respect of the aggregate of:

{A) all claims iy respect of certain warranties 48 to title to the EPUK Group and the Licence Inierests
(“Asset Title Warranty Claims™)., the warranty as to sceurity provided by the EPUK Group
(Cuarantee Warranty Claims™), certain warranties in respect of the Seller’s title and capacity
{(“Fundamental Claims™), and all claims i respect of the Tax Deed or i respect of the tax warraitties
{(*“Tax Claims™). is imited to S120 million; and

{B) all other claims under the Sale and Purchase Agreement (exeept Locked Box Claims) {“(eneral
Claims™), is limited to $36 million,

and the maximum aggregate liability ol the Seller under or in relation o the Suale and Purchase Agreement

and the Tax Deed (except [or Locked Box Cliims) is limited w0 $120 million.

The Scller is not liable under or in respect of the Sale and Purchase Agreement or the 'lax Deed unless it

receives written notice of a claim;

{A) in respect of a T.ocked Box Claim, within 12 months of Completion;

{B) in respect of & Fundamental Claim, Guarantee Warranty Claim or Asset Title Warranty Claim, within
18 months of Completion;

{(C) in respect of a Tax Claim, within five years of the end of the last accounting period prior to
Completion; and
(D} in respect of any other claim, within 12 months of Completion,

The Sale and Purchase Agreement and the other Acquisition Agreements also contuin other customary
exclusions and limitations of Hability.

Indemnitics

Under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Purchuser hus agreed to indemuify the Seller Group in

respect of certain liabilities, including:

{A) decommissioning liubilitics {as further deseribed below):

{B) losscs incurred by the Scller Group from Completion in connection with its obligations and liabilitics
under the bareboat chartering arrangements relating to Huntington:

{C} ligbility under any securily provided by the Seller Group which remains in force from Completion (as
further described below); and

{D) the Seller Group having to repay, for whatever reason, any dividends or distributions made by the
EPUK Group to the Seller in satistaction of the Dividend Condition,

If, as at 13 April 2017. the Seller Group has not been released {rom the last of its obligations under the
Huntington chartering arrungements, then Premicer will pay we the Seller an amount equal 1o £2.35 million.
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Provision of securily

The Purchaser must use reasonuable endeavours 1o secure the release wl Completion of euch member of the
Seller Group from any sceurily provided by them in respect of any contlract, agreement, commitment or
obligation of an EPUK Company that has been disclosed to the Purchaser. Subject to Completion
occurring, the Purchaser will indemnify the Seller Group against all loss which it or any of them may incur
or sulfer under or in connection with any such security.

The Purchaser must use reasonable endeavours to release the guarantee provided by E.ON UK ple in
respect of EPUK’s leasehold interests and provide acceprable security from Premier in its place,

The Purchaser is also required to provide acceptable security trom Premier at Completion in favour of
E.ON Global Commaoditics SE, in respect of the liabilities of the EPUK Group under various marketing
and trading agreements.

Deconumissioning liahility and security

Pursuant (o the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Scller and the Purchaser have agreed to enter into
customary bilateral decommissioning sceurity agreements {cach a “Bilateral Decommissioning Security
Agreement”™) af Completion with respect to each Licence Interest which does not have, at Completion. a
licld-wide decommissioning sceurity agreement in place (which, as at the date of this decument. meuans
Elgin-Franklin, Scoter. Ravenspurn North, Merganser, Johnston, Glenelg, Caister, Minke, GAEL
Northern, GAEL Southern, SEAL, ETS and CMS}. Pursuant to each Biluteral Decommissioning Security
Agreement, the Purchaser gives an indemnity to the Seller in respect of decommissioning liabilities, and
provides sccurity tor decommissioning costs in favour ot the Seller (where required by the terms of the
relevant agreement).

For those Licence Interests with a lield-wide decommissioning securily agreement in place al Completion
{which. as at the date of this document. meuns Tuntington, Babbage, Rita and Hunter), and pursuant to
decommissioning arrangements in place at Completion for Ravenspurn North and Johnston, Premier has
agreed o provide acceptable security where required by the terms of the relevunt agreements.

Tirg Hahilities

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Seller and the Purchaser have agreed to enter info a tax
deed at Completion, the main purposce of which is to provide the Purchaser with protection, in the form of
an indemnity from the Seller, against non-ordinary course pre-completion tax liabilities of the LPUK
Group (subject to certain customary exceptions) (the “Tax Deed™).

The Tax Deed also provides for the Purchaser to reimburse the Seller in respect of any tax overprovisions
or repayiments relating to pre-Completion periods of the EPUK Companies and for the Seller to be able to
dircet the Purchaser to procure that the EPUK Companics claim from or surrender to members of the
Seller Group auy such group relief as it may direct {in each case subject 1o certdin customary exceptions}.
The Tax Deed also upportions responsibility Tor the conduct of thivd party (including tax authorily) clams
which could give rise to a claim by the Purchaser against the Scller under the Tax Deed. as well as
apportioning responsibility for the preparation of the tax returns of the EPUK Companies for pre- and
post-Completion periods and for dealing with tax authorities in relation 1o sucl periods.

Termination

The Sale and Purchase Agreement may be terminated if any of the SPA Conditions remain unsatistied and
huve not been waived, or if either the Purchaser or the Scller breaches iis obligations in respect of
Completion, cach as further deseribed above, In the case of any such termination, the Acquisition will not
proceed to Completion.

The Purchaser may ulso terminate the Sale und Purchase Agreement on the occurrence ol o material
adverse change in respect of Elgin-Lranklin, which is defined as certain events that result or that a
reasonable and prudent eperator would expect to result in total preduction at Elgin-Franklin talling under
a certain threshold (calculated as a 90% reduction to average daily net production (boe) during the year
ended 30 December 20135).

Governing law

The Sule and Purchase Apreement s poverned by English law.



2. Additional Restructuring Indemnity Deed

On 31 Januacy 2016, the Seller and the Purchaser also entered into an additional restructuring indemnity
deed, as subsequently amended and restaled on 23 Lebroary 2016 (the “Additional Restructuring
Indemnity Deed™), pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed. conditional on the Seller procuring the payment
by EPUK of a £60 million pre-Completion cash dividend to the Seller {which was paid on 24 February
2016), wr indemnify the Seller in respect of any tax liability of any member of the Seller Group which arises
or is increased as a result of the Acquisition being carricd out in aceordance with the Sale and Purchase
Agreement us amended and restated on 31 January 2016 (including the pre-Completion restructuring of
ihe LPUK Group), to the extent that the wmount of such tax liability exceeds the expecled aggregate
amount of £1.65 million {subject to certain customary exceptions).

The Additional Restructuring Indemnity Deed provides on the other hand for the Seller to pay to the
Purchiaser an amount equal (0 the value of any tax benelit to any member ol the Seller Group wlich arises
or is increased as a result of the pre-Completion restructuring of the LPUK Group.

The Additional Restrueturing [ndemnity Deed also contains cooperation provisions pursuant to which the
Seller and the Purchaser agree to discuss in good faith the anticipated tax treatment of the pre-Completion
restructuring of the EPUK Group with a view 1o minimising any (ax liability of the Seller Group arising
therefrom. The Seller also agrees to use all reasonable endeavours to fully support as favourable a tax
position as is reasonably possible in relation to the taxation of the Acquisition,

3. Decommissioning Liability Agreement

The Scller and the Purchaser have agreed to enter into a decommissioning liability agreement (the
“Decommissioning Liability Agreement”} at Completion to divide between them certain decommissioning
costs und expenses in respect of Johnston and Ravenspurn North (the ~Decommissioning Costs™).

Pursuant to the Decommissioning Liubility Agrecement:

{A) the Premicer Group will be responsible for the first £40 million of the LPUK Group's interest share of
the Decommissioning Costs;

{B) the next £90 million of the EPUK Group’s interest share of the Decommissioning Costs (i.e., (rom
LAGO00L00L to L1300 million) will be borne in the proportions 70% by the Seller and 3% by the
Premicr Group;

{CY the Premier Group will be responsible for the EPUK Group's further interest share of the
Decommissioning Costs (Le., in excess ol £130 million); and
{1 the Premicr Group will be responsible for any other losses relating o decommissioning.
The Seller and (he Purchaser have also agreed to divide between them the provision of security under the
relevant decommissioning sceurity agreements in respeet of the EPUK Group's interest share of the
Decommissioning Costs. Where a member of the Premier Group is required to provide security in relation
1o such Decommissioning Costs, and the aggregate amount of such sceurity exceeds £40 million, then the
Scller shall provide an affiliate guarantce {where permitted by the relevant unitisation and unit operating
agreement) or a letier of credit, each in the required form, in an amount equal to 70% of the amount by
which the required securily exceeds 40 million, The aggregaie amount of any affiliate guarantees and
letters of eredit provided by the Scller shall not exceed £63 million.
The Purchaser s required to make, and o procure that each member of the Premier Group makes, all
claims and elections i order (o utilise any tax reliel (a “Relevant Decommissioning Relief™) (hat arises to
any member of the Premier Group in respect of the Seller’s share of any Decommissioning Costs to reduce
the relevant entity’s linhility to tax in priority to any other available fax relief or o obtain a repayment of
Lax.
If and (o the extent that any Relevant Decommissioning Reliel is utilised by a member of the Premicr
Crroup to reduce a liability to make an actual payment of tax or results In a repayment of tax to any
member of the Premier Group {or would in either case have done had the Purchaser complied with its
obligations in the paragraph above), then the Purchaser is required to pay to the Scller an amount equal to
the lower of the amount of the Scller’s share of the relevant Decommissioning Costs and the amount of tax
saved or the tax repaid (as applicable).
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PART IN—COMPETENT PERSONS’ REPORTS

In view of its size relative to that of Premier, the Acquisition constitutes a Class | transaction under the
Listing Rules. Conscquently, Premicr is required by Listing Rule 13.4.6(1) o include an independent
mincral expert’s reports in this document on the Assets, along with a glossary of the technicul terms used in
the mineral experts’ report. Premier commissiongd DeGolver and MacNaughton and RISC {UK) Limited
Lo prepare the independent mineral experts’ reports (refermred o as the Competent Persons’ Reports),
which arce sct out in full below.



DEGOLYER AND MACNAUGHTON
5001 SPRING YVALLEY RoaAD
SUITE BOO EasT
DaLLas, TExas 75244

April 7. 2016

Premier Oil and Gas Services Limited
23 Lower Belgrave Street

London, SW1W ONR

United Kingdom

Ladies and Gentlemoen:

Pursuant to your request, we have prepared estimates, as of January 1, 2018,
of the extent of the proved, probable, and pogsible eil, condensate, and liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) and marketable gas reserves and of the value of the proved and
proved-plus-probable reserves for the Elgin, Franklin, West Franklin, Glenelg,
Huntington, Merganser, and Scoter fields, offshore the United Kingdom, in which
Premier Oil Plc (Premier) has represented that it owns or will acquire an interest.
The effective date ol this report is specific to a transaction dale as represented by
Fremier. This report was prepared in February 2016, therefore, certain events that
may have occurred hefore the preparation of this report but after the as-of date of
January 1, 2015, which might have affected the reserves, prices, costs, and valucs
used in the estimates presented herein, were not taken into acecount. However, from
a subseguent review of data provided by Premier from the interval between the as-of
date and the preparation of this report, it appears that, other than production
during the interval which reduces reserves and without consideration of reserves
changes due to price variances, any other reserves revisions would not be material.

Estimates of proved, probable, and possible reserves have been prepared
according to the Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS) approved in
Mareh 2007 by the Sociely of Petroleum Engineers, the World Petroleum Couneil,
the American Association of Petroleum Geologists, and the Sociely of Petroleum
Evaluation Engineers. PRMS is a referenced standard in published guidance of the
United Kingdom Listing Authority. The reserves definitions are discussed in detail
under the Definition of RKeserves heading of this report.
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This report 15 compliant with the Competent Persons Report reguirements as
published in the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) update of the
Cominittee of European Securities Regulators’ recommendations for the
implementation of the Eurepean Commission Regulation on  Prospectuses
No. 809/2004 dated March 20, 2013 (ESMA/2013/319).

Reserves estimated in this report are expressed as grosg and net reserves.
Gross reserves are defined as the total estimated petroleum to be produced from the
fields after December 31, 2014, Net reserves are defined as that portion of the gross
reserves to be produced from the fields attributable to the interests owned or to be
acquired by Premier, as of January 1, 2015, and cvaluated herein.

This report presents values for proved and proved-plus-probable reserves
that have been estimated using prices and costs provided by Premier and arve
expressed in thousands of United States dollars 110°U.5.$). All monetary values in
this report are expressed in 10°U.8.%. An explanation of the future price and cost
assumptions 1s included under the Valuation of Reserves heading of this report.

Values for proved and proved-plus-probable reserves in this report are
expressed in terms of future gross revenue, future net revenue, and present worth.
The future gross revenue is defined as that revenue to be realized from the sale of
the net reserves plus from tarifl revenue, if any. Future net revenue is defined as the
future gross revenue less tariffs paid and operating cxpenses, abandonment and
capital costs, and host country taxes. Operating expenses include field operating
exponses, estimated exponses of direct supervision, and an allocation of overhead
that directly relates Lo production activities. Host country taxes (as described herein
have been estimated based on information provided by Premier. Present worth is
defined as future net revenue diseounted at a speeified arbitrary discount rate
compounded monthly over the expected period of realization. Present worth should
not be construed as fair market value because no consideration was given to
additienal factors that influence the prices at which properties are bought and sold.
In this report, present worth values using discount rates of 8 and 10 percent are
reported as tolals.

Estimates of petroleum reserves and future net revenue should be regarded
only as estimates that may change as additional information becomes available. Not
only are such reserves and revenue estimates based on that information which is
currently available, but such estimates are also subject to the uncertainties inherent
in the application of judgmental factors in interpreting such information.
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In this report, key information has been provided by Premier on the lelds
evaluated herein. As far as we are aware, there are no special lactors thal would
affect the interests owned or to be acquired by Premier that would require additional
information for the proper evaluation of these fields. All evaluations herein ave
considered in the context of current agreements and regulations and do not consider
uncertainties that might be associated with political conditions.

Information usced in the preparation of this report was obtained from
Premier. In the preparation of this report we have relied upon information furnished
by or directed to be furnished by Premier with respect to the property interests to be
evaluated, production from such properties, cwrrent costs of operation and
development, current prices for production, agreements relating lo current and
future operations and sales of production, concession expiration dates, and various
other information and data thal were accepted as represented. Although we have
not had independent verification, the information used in this report appears
reasonable. The technical staff of Premier involved with the assessment and
implementlation of development of Premier's petroleum assets are represented as
adherent to the generally accepted practices of the petroleum industry. The staff
members appear to be experienced and technically competent in their fields of
expertise. No site visit to the fields evaluated herein was made by DeGolyer and
MacNaughton. However, existing production data, reporls from third parties, and
photographic evidence of the fields were considered adequate because the fields are
in an established producing venue.

Executive Summar

Premier has represented that it owns or will acquire an interest in the Elgin,
Franklin, West Franklin, Glenelg, Huntington, Merganser, and Scoter fields,
offshore the United Kingdom, for which reserves and revenue have been estimated

herein.

The Elgin, Franklin, West Franklin, Huntington, Merganser, and Scoter
fields are currently producing. The Glenelg field previously produced but is currently
shut in, waiting on a workover to restore production. For this report, technical and
commercial uncertainties have been considered in cach case exclusive of ongoing
political events in a given venue. All eontracts, regulations, and agreements in place
on January 1, 2015, have been considered to be valid for their stated terms, as
represented by Premier.
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Estimated reserves are presented in thousands of barrels 110%hbl) for oil,
condensate, and LPG, millions of cubie feet (10™1%) lor gas, and thousands of barrels
of oil equivalent (10"boe) for oil, condensate, LPG, and marketable gas. Marketable
gas quantities were converted to barrels of o0il equivalent thoe) using energy
equivalencies. Marketable gas was converted to boe using a factor of 5,620 cubic feel

per boe,

Estimates of the gross proved, probable, and possible oil, condensate, and
LPG and marketable gas reserves for the fields evaluated in this report, as of
January 1, 2015, are summarized as follows, expressed in thousands of barrels
{10"bbl), millions of cubic feet (10°ft"), and thousands of barrels of oil equivalent
(10"boel:

(iross Reserves

0il, Condensate, and LI’G Marketable (ras Oil Equivalent
Proved Probable  Peossible  Proved  Probable DPossible Proved Probable Possible
{UFhbD  (10'bhly (LPbD 105D L105FE} (LY (1'boe)  (10FDboe) (0% hoe}
EXENE BT AHATO 1ML fE3 0T SO002E BTN T4 070 113055
Nl

1. Prohable and possible vescrves have notl heen risk adjusted to nrike them camparable o proved resermees.
2, Marketoble gas inehades fuel sas as deserihed borein and has Been converted Lo oib equivalent using sn

enorgy equivilent facto ol 5620 cubic foot per e,

Estimatos of the net proved, probable, and possible oll, condensate, and LPG
and markelable gas reserves attributable to the interests evaluated herein, as ol
January 1, 2015, for the fields evaluated herein are summarized as follows,
expressed in thousands of harrels (10°bbl), millions of cubic feet (10°t"), and
thousands of barrels of o1l equivalent (10°boer:

Nit Hiosorvies
hl, Condensate, and LPG Marketuble Gas Qil Equivalent
Proved Protrable  Possible  Proved Probable Possible  Proved  Probable Possibie
(LFbLD (0L (10°bbY O0FE) 0%y (0% 10%ocl 10%beed (1P hoe)

14.954 48375 59110 LER S 270149 20,452 28,257 9,658 4041

Noles:
1. Probable and prssible reserves have not been risk sdijnsted o make them comparable 1o proved reserves.
2 Marketable s includes fuel gas az desevibed heveinoand has been converted weotl coguivadent asing an

energy equivalent Bwctor of 5,620 cubic feet per hoe.
Estimates of future net revenue and present worth of the rescerves estimated

in this report woere prepared using a Base Case seenario and four price sensitivities.,

The Base Case price is reflective of the lowest near-lerm price seenario. Condensate
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and LPG prices are 70 percent of the Brent oil price. An explanation of the Base
Case and lour price sensitivily assumptions is included under the Valualion ol
Reserves heading of this report.

Estimated future net revenue and present worth at & and 10 percent of the
future net revenue attributable to the interests evaluated herein for the proved and
proved-plug-probable reserves, as of January 1, 2015, utilizing the five economic
scenarios are summarized as follows, expressed in thousands of United States
dollars (10°U1.5.%

Valuation Summary

Proved Proved plus Probable
Frature Present Presant Fuiure Present Present
Net Worth Worth Net Worth Worth

Revenue at 8 Pereent  at 10 Percent Revenue at 8 Percent Al LU Percent

(M LL5.8) (PS8} (LFU.S.8) (10°U.8.8) (10°0U.5.5) (PS5
e iaser 16,9106 1 1) 822 385505 215,966 190 528
Senaitivity Caze 1 251,854 1 14193.131 R0 L] 225111
Sensitivily Cose 2 112,231 2 233,030 641,123 An8.644 41107
mensitividy Coge 3 3714944 S ELLYE R FRd,452 BEL LT RATT
Sensitivily Co=e 4 G0 TS * 204 081 363,217 339950 02,070

Naotes Values fwr probable vescrves and guontitics hove aet been visk odjusted 1o make them comparable b valees for

proved reserves and quantivics,

Reserves estimates herein are based on the Base Case price scenario
projected to an cconomic limit, and quantities in the sensitivity cases arc those
mcluded to the limit of projected Base Case production or when an annual economie
limit is reached, whichever occurs first. Details of the annual pricing and cost
assumptions are presented under the Valuation of Reserves heading of this veport.

Qwnership and Infrastructure

Premier has represented that it owns or will own an interest in the Elgin,
Franklin. West Franklin, Glenelg, Huntington, Mergansecr. and Scoter fields offshore
the United Kingdom, described as follows:
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Working

Interest

Field (percent)
lgin 5.2000
Franklin 35,2004
Weat Franklin 5 2000
Glenely 18.5700
tluntington PARLYE
Merganser 7.9185
Seoler 12,0000

These interests are held through contractual instruments that are common in
the petroleum indusirv. We had an opportunity to review certain segments of
pertinent agreements; however, we, ags engineers, cannot express an opinion as to
the accounting or legal aspects of those agreements.

For this report, technical and commercial uncertainties have been considered
in cach case exelusive of ongoing political cvents in a given venue. All contracts,
regulations, and agreements in place on January 1, 2015, have been considered ta he

valid for their stated terms, as represented by Premier.

The infrastructure in the arca of these fields is very advanced. The offshore
United Kingdom petroleum production provinee is an claborate composite of
platforms, pipelines, and portable structures. There are numerous established bases
along the coasl of the United Kingdom, and there is an extensive established
network of service companices te allow developments of all types, including complex
mechanical and operational elements. Power options, including electrical, gas, and

diesel sources, are available to operators in this venue.

There are certain environmental considerations in any venue of petroleum
production. We are not aware of any extracrdinary environmental elements
associaled with the properties evaluated herein. As such, we have included
abandonment costs, as appropriate, to accomplish routine and safe removal of
subsurface and surface equipment at the offshore installation. Reclamation costs, if

any, are nol included in the evaluation herein, unless specifically referenced.

Definition of Reserves

Estimates of proved, probahble, and possible reserves presented in this report
have been prepared in accordance with the PRMS approved in March 2007 by the
Society of Petroleum Engineers, the World Petroleum Council, the American
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Association of Petroleum Geologists, and the Society of Petroleum Ewvaluation
Engineers, The petroleum reserves are defined as follows:

Reserves are those quantities of petroleum anticipated to be commercially
recoverable by application of development projects lo known accumulations [rom a
given date forward under defined conditions. Reserves must further satisfy four
criteria: they must be discovered, recoverable, commercial, and remaining {as of the
cevaluation date) based on the develepment projectts) applied. Reserves are further
categorized in accordance with the level of certainty associated with the estimates
and may be sub-tlassified based on project maturity and/or characterized by
development and production status.

Proved Reserves — Proved Reserves are those quantities of petroleum
which, by analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be
cstimated with reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverabie,
from a given date forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and government regulations.
If deterministic methods are used, the term recasonable certainty is
intended to express a high degree of confidence that the quantities will
be recovered. If probabilistic methods are used, there should be at
leasi a 90-percent probability that the quantities actually recovered
will equal or exceed the estimate.

Unproved Reserves — Unproved Rescrves are based on geoscience
and/or engineering data similar 1o that used in estimates of Proved
Reserves, bul technical or other uncertainiies preclude such reserves
being clagsified as Proved. Unproved Reserves mav be further
categorized as Probable Reserves and Possible Regerves,

Probable Reserves — Probable Reserves are those additional
Reserves which analysis of geoscience and engineering data
indicate are less likely to be recovered than Proved Reserves
but more certain 1o be recovered than Possible Reserves, It is
equally likely that actual remaining guantities recovered will
be greater than or less than the sum of the estimated Proved
plus Probable Rescrves (2P). In this context, when probabilistic
methods are used, there should be at least a 5O-percent
probability that the actual quantities recovered will equal or
excced the 2P estimate.
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Possible Reserves — TPossible Reserves are those additional
reserves which analysis of geoscience and engineering data
suggest are less likely to be recoverable than Probable
Reserves. The total quantities ultimately recovered from the
project have a low probability to exceed the sum of Proved plus
Probable plus Possible Reserves (3P), which is equivalent to the
high estimate scenario. In this context. when probabilistic
methods are used, there should be at least a 10-percent
probability that the actual quantities recovered will equal or
exceed the 3P estimate,

Reserves Status Catfegories — Reserves stalus categories deline the development and

producing status of wells and reservoirs.

Developed Reserves — Developed Reserves are expected quantities te he
recovered from existing wells and facilities. Reserves are considered
developed only after the necessary equipment has been installed, or
when the costs to do so are relatively minor compared to the cost of a
well. Where required facilities become unavailable, it may bhe
necessary to reclassify Developed Reserves as Undeveloped. Developed
Reserves may be further sub-classified as  Producing  or
Non-Producing.

Developed Producing Reserves — Developed Producing Rescrves
are expecled Lo be recovered from completion intervals that are
open and producing at the time of the estimale. Improved
recovery reserves are considered producing only after the
improved recovery project 1s in operation.

Developed Non-Producing Reserves — Developed Non-Producing
Reserves include shut-in and behind-pipe Reserves. Shut-in
Reserves are expected to be recovered [rom (1) comipletion
intervals which are open at the time of the estimate but which
have not yet started producing, (21 wells which were shut-in for
market conditions or pipcline connections, or (3) wells not
capable of production for mechanical reasons. Behind-pipe
Reserves are expected to be recovered from zones in existing
wells which will require additional completion werk or future
recompletion prior te the start of production. In all cases,
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production can be mitiated or restored with relatively low

expendilure compared {o the cost of drilling a new well,

Undeveloped Reserves — Undeveloped Reserves are quantities expected
Lo be recovered through [uture investments: (1) from new wells on
undrilled acreage in known accumulations, (2)from deepening
existing wells to a different (but known! reservoir, (3) from infill welly
that will increase recovery. or {4) where a relalively large expenditure
fe.g. when compared (o the cost of drilling a new well) is required to
fa) recomplete an existing well or (b install production or

transportation facilities for primary or improved recovery projects.

The extent Lo which probable and possible reserves ullimately may be
recategorized as proved reserves is dependent upon future drilling, testing, and well
performance. The degree of risk to be applied in evaluating probable and possible
reserves is influenced by economic and technological factors as well as the time
element. Estimates of probahle and possible reserves in this report have not been
adjusted in consideration of these additional risks to make them to comparable
estimates of proved reserves.

Estimation of Reserves

Estimates of reserves were prepared by the use of appropriate geologic,
petreleum  engineering, and evaluation principles and techniques that are in
accordance with practices generally recopnized by the petroleum industry and in
accordance with definitions established by the PRMS. The method or combination ol
methods used in the analysis of each regervoir was tempered by experience with
similar reservoirs, stage of development, quality and eompleteness of basic data, and
production history.

Based on the current stage of field development, preduction performance,
development plans provided by Premier, and analyses of areas offsetting existing
wells with Lest or production data, reserves were categorized as proved, probable, or
possible.

For depletion-type reservoirs or those whose performance disclosed a reliable

decline in producing-rate trend or other diagnostic characteristics, reserves were
estimated by the application of appropriate decline curves or other performance
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relationships. In the analyses of production-decline curves, reserves were estimated
only to the limits of economic production,

In certain cases, clements of the reserves estimates incorporated information
based on analogy with similar wells or reservoirs for which more complete data were

available,

Reserves estimates presented herein are based on data available through
Decemher 31, 2014, and are supported by details of drilling results, analyses of
available geological data, well-test results, pressures, available core data, and
production performance. This report takes into account all relevant information
provided to us by Premier.

The oil, condensate, and LPG reserves estimatled in this report are reported
in 10°bbl where 1 barrel equals 42 United States gallons. Oil, condensate, and
LPG reserves are to be recovered by conventional field and plant operations.

Gas quantities included in this report are marketable gas and sales gas
expressed al a pressure base of 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute tpsia) and a
temperature hase of 60 degrees Fahrenheit (°F) and are reported in 10°ft"
Marketable gas reserves are defined as the total gas afler veduction for shrinkage
resulting from field separation, processing, including removal of nonhydrocarhon gas
to meet pipeline specifications and LPG extraction, and flare and other losses but
not from fuel usage. For the Huntington field, fuel gas estimates range from
2 to 6 percent of the marketable gas and is included as reserves. For all other fields,
fuel gas is estimaled fo be T percenl of the marketable gas and is included as
reserves. The marketable gas is converted to boe using a factor of 5,620 cubie feet
per boe for reporting herein. Sales gas 18 the quantity of gas to be delivered into a
gas pipeline for sale after reduction [or fuel. The [uel gas guantities included are a
portion of marketable gas reserves and are as follows, expressed in millions of cubie
feet (10°ft"

31
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Fuel Gas Portion of
Marketable Gas

Reserves
Gross Net
{10%ft")} {10°Ft%)
Proved
Developed 41.252 2,717
Lindeveloped 51.159 3,166
Total Proved 92,441 5,883
Probable 32 344 1.85h
Pozsible L 18 1 453

Note: Drobable reserves have nod been risk
adjusted o make them comparable
1o proved reserves,

For this report, technical and commercial uncertainties have been considered
in each case exclusive of ongoing polilical evenls in a given venue, All contracts,

regulations, and agreements in place on January 1, 2015, are considered to be valid
for their stated terms, as represented by Premier.

Methodology

There are seven fields offshore the United Kingdom evaluated in this report:
Elgin, Franklin, West Franklim, Glenelg, Huntington, Merganser, and Scoter.
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The reserves estimates for the fields were based on the available performance

data, incorporating analogy when appropriate.
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The Elgin (ield is located in blocks 22/30bF1, 22/30¢, and 295b in the South
Central Graben, approximately 240 kilometers easl of Aberdeen. The field was
discovered in 1991 and began preducing in 2001, The Elgin structure is a complex
domal shape delimited by a normal fault to the northeast and normal faults to the
west and south. The main producing reservoirs are the Jurassic Fulmar sandstones
at depths ranging from 5,000 to 5,600 meters subsea, The field is a high pressure,
high temperature gas-condensate accumulation. Porosity ranges from 15 to
17 percent, water saturation ranges from 43 to 60 percenl, and permeability ranges
from 10 Lo 400 millidarcys.

Proved developed reserves were estimated for one producing well and one
planned workover. Proved undeveloped reserves were estimated [or three additional
wells, with recovery and performance based on analogy Lo existing wells in the (ield.
Probuable and possible reserves were estimaled based on better performance as
compared to proved reserves, additional workovers, and two additional wells to be
drilled.

The Franklin field is located in block 29/5b in the South Central Graben,
approximately 240 kilometers east of Aberdeen. The field was discovered in 1986
and began producing in 2001. The Franklin structure iz an elongated
northwest/southeast-fault block dipping towards the southwest and bounded by a
major fault to the northeast. The main producing reserveirs are the Jurassic Fulmar
sandstones at depths ranging from 5,000 to 5,600 mecters subsea. The field is a high
pressure, high temperature gas-condensate accumulation. Porosity ranges from
15 1o 17 pereent, water saluration runges from 40 to 43 percent, and permeability
ranges {rom 25 millidarcys to 1 darcy.,

Proved developed reserves were estimated for two producing wells and one
planned workover. Proved undeveloped reserves were estimated for two additional
wells based on analogy to other wells in the field. Probahle and possible reserves
were estimated based on belter performance as compared to proved reserves and
three additional drilled wells.

The West Franklin field is located in blocks 29/6b and 29/4d, approximately
240 kilomecters cast of Aberdeen. The field was discovered in 2003 and began
producing in 2007 from the F7 well in the Fulmar Formation. The field is a high
pressure, high temperature gas-condensate accumulation. Porosity ranges from
15 to 17 percent, water saturation ranges from 43 to 60 perceni, and permeability
ranges from 10 to 400 millidareys.
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Proved developed reserves were estimated [or three producing wells. Proved
undeveloped reserves were estimated for two additional wells Lo be drilled. hased on
analogy to the performance of other wells in the field. Probable and possible reserves
were estimated based on better performance as compared to proved reserves and one
additional well to be drilled.

The Glenelg field is located in blocks 29/4d and 29/5b in the central North
Sea, approximately 240 kilometers east of Aberdeen. The field was discovered in
1999 and began producing in 2006 Mrom the G10 well. The field is a high pressure,
high temperature gas-condensate accumulation. Porosity ranges from 15 to
20 pereent and water saturation ranges from 40 to 80 percent.

The only producing well is currently shut in, waiting on a workover. Proved
undeveloped reserves were based on restoring the well Lo production. Probable and
possible regserves were based on improved performance of that well.

The Huntingion field is located in block 24/14b in the central North Sea,
immediately southwest of the Everest gas-condensate field. The discovery well,
22/14b-5, was drilled in 2007 and tested the Paleocene Forties sandstone. Production
m the Huntington field is from the Forties reservoir, which is a high-guality
Lurbidite system containing stacked channel sequences deposited in a submarine fan
system. The field contains a combined pinchout and stratigraphic accumulation. For
the IForties reservoir, porosity ranges from 19 to 22 percent, and water saturation
ranges from 45 to 59 percent.

Estimates of reserves were based on performance methods. Proved developed
reserves were estimated for four preducing wells. Probable and possibie reserves
estimates considered improved performance as compared to proved reserves.

The Merganser field is located in blocks 22/30a and 22/25a in the Kast
Central Graben of the central North Sea. The Merganser field was discovered in
1995 by exploration well 22/30a-14 and began producing in 2006, Merganser is a salt
diapir Mank structure with radial faulling and is composed ol a stacked sequence of
the Forties, Andrew, and Maureen sandstone members with highly complex
reservoir character. Porosity ranges from 11 to 19 percent and water saturation
ranges from 301o 54 percent. The field produces from the Forties and Andrew

reservoirs and consists of two subsea wells tied into the Scoter pipeline.
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Proved developed reserves were estimaled based on performance for two
producing wells. Probable and possible reserves estimates considered more elficient
recovery as compared to proved reserves.

The Scoter field is located in blocks 23/26d and 22/30a in the East Central
Graben of the central North Sea. The Scoter field was discovered in 1989 by the
22/30a-6 exploration well in the Forties reservoir and began producing in 2004, It is
situated above a major regional northwest/southeast-trending faulil zone. The Scoter
field is a dome-like structure, slightly elongated in a northwest/southwest-direction.
In the Forties reservoir interval, poresity ranges from 14 to 26 percent and water

saturation ranges from 29 to 45 percent.

Proved developed reserves woere gstimated for two producing wells based on
performance analysis. Probable and possible reserves estimates included better
performance as compared to proved reserves.

Estimated reserves for the fields evaluated herein are presented in thousands
of barrels 110°bbl) for cil, condensate, and LPG, millions of cubie feet 110°ft") for
marketable gas, and thousands of barrels of oil equivalent {(10°boe) for oil,
condensate, LPG, and marketable gas. Marketable gas quantities were converted to
boe using energy equivalencies. Marketable gas was converted to boe using a factor
ol 5,620 cubie feet per boe,

Estimates of the gross proved, probable, and possible reserves for the
properiies evaluated in this report, as of January 1, 2015, are summarized as
follows, expressed in thousands of barrels (10°bbl and millions of cubic feet (10%L%),
as well as in thousands of barrels of o1l equivalent (10°boe}:
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rross Roserves

Qil. Condensate, and LPG

Mavketahle (1as (M} Equivalent

Proved  Prohable  Possikle Proved Probable  Possible Proved  Probable  Possible
Fivld {L0'bbL 110°bbL] {I0°hhD oY L (9 (1 boe) dg'boel (1% hou!
Fliin TR T4 2444 AN RIS A WL T A0, b4 THR S At B L1325
Franklin R dA T8 Rk 1 i 1iaih Wi 1201 ELR | HETED [ R
Wosl [Mraesikim HEX A RN Zgb o A gl 1HATY T 22 AR {31 LI WAED Tah 2514
[i-raely Mokl RNy R HHRTL Lt RtH 14,835 TR 65,0610 SN
Huntington 7704 L IR £,7 M0 1 |1, 74815 W 1,210 [N
Muersanser T Bt 315} 1L 2kl ST HoEEs A5 V2
Sender | I st wh BE| B i Al 1 B M AL
Tutal 234,182 81634 8670 LG 0 Hi3 073 SO0026  466.57) 164,070 113,053
Mt

1. Peebanbsle send pussitole reserves bave no boeees ciskoadiustod to nadke theesn ool T proved reseres,

20 Markerabiv cass aneiaeles Toel pis s deserred sercin and Baes e enmyeried wooi L eqoesnlend asine anoenerey squivilon Paelar

of SLmziteulne feet poer bo.

Ao Preebible el possisle reserves have not been viskoadiossed 1o mcke thosn coroprorihle tooproved reseaves soothe valeolting ol e,

Estimates of the net proved, probable, and possible reserves, as ol

January 1, 2015, attributable to the interests evaluated herein are listed as follows,

expressed in thousands of barrels 1 10°bbli and mitliens of cubic feet (101"

Net Reserves

0il, Condensate, and LPPG

Marketable Gas

Proved Probahle Possible Proved Probable Possible
Field (L0*bbD  {10*bbl) (10bhi) (10t (10%ft") (10Tt}

FKkgin a.145 1.271 470 21449 5081 2087
Franklin 2,651 1,154 270 18925 T30 1,733
Wost Franklin 2850 1.567 1,578 17,344 94910 9892
Glenelg 1.5606 i 422 183,028 23,6494 a0y
HunLington 1.5:39 263 3,104 1537 230 2,599
Merganser A4 4 a 3281 200 23
Seoler 165 3 s 2087 104 199
Total 14,953 4,875 5,910 80,391 27,049 20,472

Note: Probable iand possible reserves have not been risk adjustod 1o make them comparable

to proved reserves,
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Estimates of the net ol equivaleni evaluated herein are listed as follows,
expressed in thousands of barrels of oil equivalent (107boe):;

Net Oil Equivalent

Proved plus

Proved plus Probahle plus

Proved Probable Probable Possible Possible

Field (10°boe)  (10°hoe) (10"boe) (10*boe) (107hoe)
Elgin 09.9492 2,175 11.9G7 #4G 12,513
Fruanklin 5,247 2 AR H.8130 LIz 9,419
West Ifranklin FR Y] NEN1N 2406 308 12,604
Glenelg 3.350 1,231 4,584 1.064 5,648
Huntinglon 2,220 A 2524 3616 £, 140
Merganser 542 H) GE2 hi Ty
Seotor 1.070 22 1.082 41 1,133
Total 29,257 9,688 38,945 9,051 48,496

Nuotes:

1. Prohable and possihle reserves have not been risk adjusted to make them comparable
Lo proved reserves in Lthe calealation of boe.

2. Marketable gas includes {uel gas ax describod herein and his beon converted (o ol
cyuivalent tsing an encrey equivalent factor of 5,620 cabic feet, per boce,

Valuation of Reserves

This report has been prepared using initial prices and costs and future price
and cost assumptions specifiecd by Premier. Estimates of future net revenue and
present worth of proved and proved-plus-probable reserves have heen prepared in
accordance with PRMS. Five economic scenario cases were evalualed, with luture
prices and costs as described below. Gross and nel reserves estimated herein are
based on the Base Case price and cost estimations. The sensitivity cases are
projected to the Base Case projected limit or the economic limit, whichever occurs

first. Only prices are varied in each economic seenario.

Inn this report, values for proved and proved-plus-probable reserves are based
on projections of estimated future production and revenue prepared for these
properties with no risk adjustment applied (o the probable reserves. Probable
reserves involve substantially higher risks than proved reserves. Revenue values for
proved-plus-probable reserves have not been adjusted to account for such risks; this
adjustment would be necessary in order Lo make the values for the probable reserves
comparable with values (or proved reserves.
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Revenue wvalues of Lhe proved and proved-plus-probable reserves were
established ulilizing methods generally accepted by the petroleum industry.
Production forecasts of the proved and proved-plus-probable reserves were based on
the development plan for the fields. The future net revenue and present worth of the
fields” reserves were estimated using the price and cost assumptions, monetary
conversion values, and the appropriate concession terms provided by Premier.

The present worth attributable to the fields evaluated has becn estimated
using the Base Case assumptions and the four price sensitivity scenarios provided

by Premier. The price assumptions are ag follows:
Oil, Condensate, LPG, and Gas Prices
Bage Case Price Assumptions

(il, condensate, and LPG prices were based on the dated Brent
oil price of U.S.$52.39 per barrel in 2015, U.S.$35.00 in 2016,
U.5.$40.00 in 2017, U.5.$45.00 in 2018, U.5.$60.00 in 2019,
and were escalated 2.0 percent per year each year thereafter.
Condensate and LPG prices were 70 percent of the Brent price.
Revenue from gas is based on sales gas quantities. Initial sales
gas prices were hased on current sales gas prices in the fields
evaluated herein. Base Case sales gas prices were U.S.$6.60
per thousand cubice fect (107" in 2015, U.8.$4.95 in 2016,
U.8.$5.10 in 2017, U.S.$5.25 in 2018, U.S.$5.40 in 2019, and
were escalated 2.0 percent per year each year thereafter,

Price Sensitivity Case 1

0il, condensate, and LPG prices for this low price sensitivity
case were based on the dated Brent oil price of U.8.$52.39 per
harrel in 2015, U.S.$50.00 in 2016, U.S.$1.00 in 2017,
[1.8.$52.02 in 2018, U.5.353.06 in 2019, and were escalated
2.0 percent per vear each year thereafter. Condensate and
LPG prices were 70 percent of the Brent price. Revenue from
gas is based on sales gas quantities. Sales gns prices were
U.8.$6.60 per 10°ft" in 2015, U.S.$6.10 in 2016, U.5.$6.22
in 2017, U.5.$6.35 in 2018, US%$647 in 2019, and were
escalated 2.0 percent per vear each year thereafter.
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Price Sensitivity Case 2

0Oil, condensate, and LP(G prices for this highest price
gengitivity case were bascd on the dated Brent ol price of
U.5.$52.39 per barrel in 2015, U.S.$60.90 in 2016, U.S.$71.65
in 2017, U.S.$79.11 in 2018, 1.8.886.92 in 2019, and were
escalated 2.0 percent per vear each vear thereafter. Condensate
and LPG prices were 70 percent of the Brent price. Revenue
from gas is based on sales gas quantities. Sales gas prices were
U.S.$6.60 per 101" in 2015, U.S.$6.10 in 2016, L1.5$6.22 in
2017, U.S.$6.35 in 2018, U.5.$6.47 in 2019, and were escalated
2.0 pereent per vear each year thereafter.

Price Sensitivity Cuse 3

Oil, condensate, and LPG prices for this mid-range price
sensilivity case were based on the dated Brent oil price of
U.5.$52.39 per barrel in 2015, U.5.$55.00 in 2016, U.8.$61.50
in 2017, U.S.$68.29 in 2018, UU.S.$86.15 in 2019, and were
escalated 2.5 percent per vear each vear therealter. Condensate
and LPG prices were 70 percent of the Brent price. Revenue
from gas i1s based on sales gas quantities. Sales gas prices were
U.S.$6.60 per 10*t” in 2015, U.S.$6.00 in 2016, U.S8.$6.15 in
2017, U.8.36.30 in 2018, U.5.$6.46 in 2019, and were escalated
2.5 pereent per year each year thereafter.

FPrice Senxitivity Case 4

0il, condensate, and LP{ prices [or this mid-range price
sensitivity case were based on the dated Brent oil price of
U.5.$52.39 per barrel in 2015, U.5.$52.96 in 2016, U.8.$62.30
m 2017, US$68.79 in 2018, US.E75.58 in 2019, and wcere
escalaled 2.0 percent per year each vear therealter. Condensate
and [LPG prices were 70 percent of the Brent price. Revenue
from gas 1s bascd on sales gas quantitics. Sales gas prices were
U.5.86.60 per 10*t* in 2015, U.5.$6.10 in 2016, U.5.$6.22 in
2017, U1.5.$6.35 in 2018, U.8.$6.47 in 2019, and were escalated
2.0 percentl per vear each year thereafter.
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Operating Expenses. Tariffs, Capital Costs, und Abandonment Costs

Current operating expenses and operating expense forecasts
provided by Premier were used in estimating futwre expenses
required Lo operale the lelds for all five economic scenarios. In
certain cases, future expenses, either higher or lower than
current expenses, may have been used because of anticipated
changed operating conditions. Pipeline and processing lariffs
are paid for access to markets. The Elgin and Franklin fields
receive tariff revenue from the Glenelg field for transportation
and processing. [Future capital expenditures and abandonment
costs woere estimated using curreni forecasts provided by
Premier. No cost escalation or inflation faclor per year wuas
applied. Generally, abandonment costs were assigned the year
after cessation of production, except where other anticipated
abhandonment dates were represented by Premier. Economic
limits for each field have been estimated prior to any

abandonment obligations and any host country tax.
Royulty

No royalty is applicable for these United Kingdom fields,
Exchunge Rate

Where applicable, an exchange rate of U.8.$1.50 per
1.00 United Kingdom pound was used for this report.

Host Country Taxes

United Kingdom income taxes have been estimated based on
data provided by Premicer and were compiled at the field level
for this report. In the Uniled Kingdom, there is a H0-percent
combined tax rate on income, consisting of a 30-percent ring
fence corporate tax rate and a 20-percent supplemental charge.
Premier’s corporate tax position was not considered in this
report. If taxes were considered at the corporate level, the
estimate of taxes would include consideration of tax-loss
carrviforward halances and group relief twhere available),
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which would polentially reduce estimated taxes below laxes
estimatled herein. Annual taxes are actually paid in iwo
portions: a component in the current vear and the balance in
the subsequent yvear.

As in any evaluation, therc may be risk of unexpected cost variances and
timing delays or accelerations. For this evaluation, consideration has been given to
these elements to the extent possible. The resulting scheduling of production and
coste is represented as a reliable estimate incorporating contingencies and Liming
delays where reasonable,

The oil, condensate, and LPG price assumptions for each case are presented
below, expressed in United States dollars per barrel (U.S.8/bbl). The gus price
assumptions for each case are also presented below, expressed in Uniled States
dollars per thousand cubic feet (U.S.$/107t):

il Prices

(U.S.4/bb1
Base Sensitivity Case
Ycar Case 1 2 3 4
2015 B2 A0 52,39 5249 7234
216 A5.00 HEO0 60,90 7. H) 52,96
AN 7 A(h00 51.00) 71.65 61.50 £2.30
2018 45.00) n2.02 79.11 (G8.29 6R.79
G (3} (W) RN BH.42 5610 Th.hH

202} Forward +2.0F poa. +2.06 paas 1200 pa $208% paan #2207 poa

Condensate and LP(G Prices

(U.S.$/bbl)
Base Sensitivity Case
Ycar Case 1 2 ; 4
HHH 4667 S6.67 $6.07 H6.67 J6.67
2HE 24.510) 0,00 42613 H8.A0 4707
HHT 2H.(H) 3570 F1UNES 1300 Ad61
HNE A1.50 Al 5.3k 1780 AR 15
21y 42.(0) BYR B 60.54 G4 2291
224 Forward w2 poa. w20 paas 2009 paal +2.0% paa. +2.0% pa

Gas Prices
{1U.5.8/10°ft™)

Basc Sensitivity Case
Year _ Casc i 1 o 2 o E o 4
015 6.6 660 6.60 6.60 6.60
G 4.95 6. 10 6.10 £.(H) 610
2HMT A0 .24 632 6.15 6.22
2R .20 .30 3.7 .30 .35
214 5.0 6147 .16 617
2020 Forward T2 o #2000 pa 1207 paas +208% pa 200 paa

Note: References to "pa” mean per annuwm.
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Estimated Base Case [uture revenue and costs atiributable to the interests
evaluated herein for the proved and proved-plus-probable reserves, as ol
January 1, 2015, are summarized as follows, expressed in thousands of United
States dollars (10°U.S.$¥

Valuation of Reserves Summary
Rase Casc
Proved plus

Proved Prohbable

{10°0.8.%) (10°U.8.5)
Produet Kevenue 1,726, 9% 1,383,454
Tuarilt Revenue G0 670
Future Grass Revenue 10527 68 | 384,124
Tarifl Paud tond Operating Expenses 271,061 2RG.952
Abandonment and Capital Costs 208,965 244,525
Belore Tax ifutuee Net Revenue 75477342 844,652
Betore Tax Present Worth at 8 {Percent A66.608 521,041
Belore Tax fresent Worth at 10 Percent RRERITE G749
Host Country Taxes a6 ATH.057
Futurce Net Revenue 216,946 365,695
Present Worth at 8 Percent 137,832 2159064
Presont Worth at 10 Dercent 120,422 190,648

Note: Values for proboble reserves have not been risk adjusted to make them
cotmparable Lo values for proved rescrves.

For the sensitivity case economic scenarios, estimates of future revenue and
costs attributable to the interests evaluated herein for the proved and proved-plus-
prohable quantities, as of January 1, 2015, are summarized as follows, expressed in
thousands of United States dollars <10°U.8.%):

Valuation Summary

Hensilivity Case 1 Sensitivily Case 2 Sensitivily Case 3 Sensitivily Cuase 4
Proved Proved Trraved Proved
plus plus [RiTEs plus
Proved Prabable Proved Irohahble Proved Probahle Proved Probable

0LES U0FUSS (YUSS) a0fTLES ad'USs US55 iles T10L005,5

Traoddiael Hevenue | AT EHST 1171003 140708 18449402 1RGNS I =4 751 TA1ART [ ER
Tl Rewaenue 1171 [ORE LR 1370 e 13781 N
Iuture Gress Revernoe IRL X (I Il W] | TA RS 1A G2 12587 LRI | Taalhday
Taaerdl Pavirl aned D pering Kxppenaes A S LRI Er L RELTREI WU S LY YT R
Abhanthststoent aod Capital Custs O AGS LINERTTTN ERLIA LRI
Pteree Tos Fatore Ner Kevenoe 131 7,150 R WA I IR 1251 47 RAGI
PBediere T Prosent Worth ot S5 Vereent ISR IR RTE R Wil TTh S TREAARD
Beliore Uos Presont Worth ol 10 eroent ST A3 IR TS k10 B BLESN TR
st Connt ey Taises BRI e T 025740 ik N AERG BT 5 47320
e et Bevenme 251 H5 IR EA Al | LN ) AT ABLLTIRS AbE 2T
Lrremens Whrllal 8 Poereemt 1652577 daddve 20,740 BLANtE ) ESARIEN . 2274008 LA
Frrepssgens Woetho ol DO e BN | EVER N o = RIS BEIN 1 ARG THILLAYY A= NUEETRT|

SNoles Violoes fur ||:'n||u|1|.i_‘ L g e T ol rish ihl]_iuhll‘d L ik Lheem (TR N ragble toovahoes Ter |:|l'u\'r_'|| L!uulﬂ.ilicr{.
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For reference, the increments during the period of January 1, 2015, through
December 31, 2015, of net reserves, future nel revenue, and present worlth of luture
net revenue discounted at 10 percent associated with the Base Case of the fields
cvaluated herein are summarized as follows, expressed in thousands of harrels
{10"bbly, thousands of cubie feet (10°t"), and thousands of United States dollars
{10"U.8.$), respectively:

2015 Estimates
Base Case
Proved plus
Proved Probable

Net Chil Production, 107hhl 1.939 2202
Net Condensate and LPG Production, 10°%hbl H1R B8
Net Sales Gas Production, 10V 7424 7.662
Belore Tax Fulere Nel Revenue, 1070088 TOATS THEKT
Before Tax Present Worth at 10 Pereent, 10°ULS. 4§ Bh.706 T4.106
After Tax Future Nel Revenue, 100504 G122 112,167
After Tax Present Worth at 10 Percent, 10°U .58 8 170D 111,522

Professional Qualifications

DeGolyer and MacNaughton is a Delaware Corporation with offices at
5001 Spring Valley Road. Suite 800 East, Dallas, Texas 75244, U.S.A. The firm has
been providing petroleum consulting services throughout the world since 1936, The
firm’s professional engincers, geologists, geophysicists, petrophvsicists, and
economists are engaged in the independent evaluation of oil and gas properties,
evaluation of hydrocarbon and other mineral prospects, basin  evaluations,
comprehensive [ield studies, equily studies, and studies of supply and economics
related to the energy industry. Except for the provision of professional services on a
fec basis, DeGolyer and MacNaughton has no commercial arrangement with any
other person or company involved in the interests which are the subject of this

report.
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The evaluatien has been supervised by Mr. Lloyd W. Cade, a Senior Vice
President with DeGolyer and MacNaughton, in the firm’s Europe Africa Division, a
Registered Professional Engineer in the State of Texas, and a member of the
Internaticnal Society of Petroleum Engineers. He has over 33 years of oil and gas
industry experience.

Submitted,

(ibflyrand pe o

DeGOLYER and MacNAUGHTON
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-718

o). Gt PE

i
Llom. Cade, P.E.
Senior Vice President
DeGolyer and MacNaughton
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Declaration

Premier Qil and Gas Services Limited (“Premier”) has commissioned RISC {UK} Ltd (“RISC”) to provide an
independent valuation of the Reserves and a review of the Contingent and Prospective Resources of E.On
E & P UK Limited and E.On E & P UK EU Limited {“E.On”} to form a Competent Person’s Report,

The assessment of petroleum assets is subject to uncertainty because it involves judgments on many
variables that cannot be precisely assessed, including reserves, future oil and gas production rates, the costs
associated with producing these volumes, access to product markets, product prices and the potential
impact of fiscal/regulatory changes.

The statements and opinions attributable to RISC are given in good faith and in the belief that such
statements are neither false nor misleading. In ¢carrying out its tasks, RISC has considered and relied upcn
information obtained from a data room as well as information in the public domain. The informaticn
provided to RISC has included both hard copy and electronic information supplemented with discussions
between RISC and key Premier staff.

Whilst every effort has been made to verify data and resolve apparent inconsistencies, neither RISC nor its
servants accept any lability for its accuracy, nor do we warrant that our enguiries have revealed all of the
matters, which an extensive examination may disclose. In particular, we have not independently verified
property title, encumhbrances, regulations that apply to this asset(s). RISC has also not audited the opening
balances at the valuation date of past recovered and unrecovered development and exploration costs,
undepreciated past development costs and tax losses,

We believe our review and conclusions are sound but no warranty of accuracy or reliability is given to our
conclusions.

RISC has no pecuniary interest, other than to the extent of the professional fees receivable for the
preparation of this report, or other interest in the assets evaluated, that could reasonably be regarded as
affecting our ability to give an unbiased view of these assets,

Our review was carried out only for the purpose referred to above and may not have relevance in other
contexts.

Confidentiality

The information contained in this document is strictly confidential. Premier has agreed not to appropriate,
copy or in any other manner reproduce or otherwise disclose any of the information contained in this
document to any other person (other than the employees or servants of Premier acting in the course of their
employment) without RISC's express written consent.

At the request of Premier, RISC has consented to the disclosure of this document to the London Stock
Exchange {“Recipients”) provided that in consideration of RISC’s consent to the disclosure, the Client and
Recipients acknowledge and agree that:

= The Client indemnifies RISC from all claims, losses, liabilities, expenses or damages arising from a claim
by the Recipient or any other third party in connection with the RISC advice

®  This document does not address the Recipient’s particular circumstancas er requirements. The Recipient
may not rely on the document for any purpose whatever.

= RISC assumes no responsibility to the Recipient to update this document for anything that occurs, or of
which becomes aware, following the release of the document to the Client
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=  The Recipient must keep this document confidential and agrees not to appropriate, copy or in any other
manner reproduce or otherwise disclose any of the information contained in this document to any other
person or arganization.

=  Neither RISC nor any employee, agent or contractor of RISC is liable to the Recipient or any other person
in respect of any cause of action, including negligence, arising in connection with the contents of the
document and the Recipient must not make any claim or commence or pursue any proceedings against
RISC, or any employee, agent or contractor of RISC in respect of any cause of action arising in connection
with the contents of the document.

If Premier or Recipient has not agreed to the above terms, RISC withholds its consent to the disclosure of the
document by the client to Recipients.

RISC {UK} Limited Premier Qil and Gas Services Limited

Rex House, 23 Lower Belgrave St,
4-12 Regent Street

London. SW1Y 4PE

London SWI1W ONR,

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Copyright

This decument is protected by copyright laws and is intended for the use of Premier only. Any unauthorised
reproduction or distribution of the document or any portion of it may entitle a claim for damages.
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@RISC

1. Executive Summary

E.On Exploration and Production through its subsidiaries, E.On E & P UK Limited and E.On E & P UK EU
Limited {"E.On"} is divesting its interests in the UK North Sea. The E.On assets assessed in this report
include producing fields, fields which have ceased production, undeveloped fields, key prospects and
immature discoveries, and exploraticn leads.

E.On’s UK assets also include seven producing fields in the Central North Sea (Elgin, Franklin, West Franklin,
Scoter, Merganser, Glenelg & Huntington), which are not addressed in this report and have been
addressed by another independent assessor.

This report presents the conclusions of an independent evaluation by RISC of E.On’s UK assets excluding
the omitted fields (Elgin, Franklin, West Franklin, Scoter, Merganser, Glenelg & Huntington). The data and
information used in this report were obtained from a data room run by E.On, data supplied by Premier
and public data.

Unless stated otherwise, the effective date of 1° January 2015 has been chosen for reserves (Table 1-1)
and values in this report to align with a Sale and Purchase agreement between Premier Qil and E.Qn,

The reserves and net present values have also been calculated with an effective date of 31°' December
2015 to meet the requirements of the UK Listing Authority {Table 1-2),

RISC has not advised Premier on the acquisition strategy or price bid for E.On’s interests.

Key attributes of the portfolio (excluding the Omitted Fields) are:

®*  Proved+Probahle (2P) gas reserves af 208.2 Bef net to E.On on a working interest hasis at 1% January
2015.

= Net 2P average daily production of approximately 28 MMscf/d in 2016

*»  Addition of 43 MMscf/d net average daily 2P sales production from Tolmount development in 2019,
rising to 84 MMscf/d in 2020.

The location of E.On’s interests are shown in Figure 1-1 and the producing assets are summarised in Table
1-3. E.On's development interests are summarised in Table 1-4, while discoveries and key prospects are
shown in Table 1-5 and additicnal prospectivity in Table 1-6.
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Table 1-1 Summary of Reserves as at 1 January 2015

@RISC

Field Gas Age Gross Field Reserves (Bcf) E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Reserves Working Reserves (Bcf)
1P 2p 3p | Imterest{%) | ,p 2p 3p
Babbage Permian 40.1 54,5 81.7 47.00% 18.8 25.6 43.1
Johnston Permian 13.0 15.6 183 50.10% 6.5 7.9 0.2
Hunter Triassic 1.5 1.5 1.5 79.00% 1.2 1.2 1.2
Rita Carboniferous 2.2 2.2 2.2 74.00% 16 1.6 1.6
Caister Triassic & Carb 1.5 1.5 15 40.00% 0.6 0.6 0.6
Orca Carboniferous 1.6 1.6 1.7 23.47% 0.4 0.4 0.4
Ravenspurn Nth Parmian 6.4 6.7 6.9 28.80% 1.8 1.9 2.0
Tolmount Permian 0 3388 8334 50.00% 0 169.4 416.5
Total 66.3 421.6 956.8 309 208.2 474.6
Field Age Gross Field Reserves E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Oil+Condensate {MMstb) Working Reserves {MMstb}
Reserves 1P 2p ap Interest {3} 1P 2p 3p
Babbage Permian 0 0 0 47.00% 0 0 0
Johnston Permian 0 0 4] 50.10% 0 o 0
Hunter Triassic 0 0 a 79.00% W 0 Q
Rita Carboniferous 0.014 0.014 0.014 74.00% 0.010 0.010 0.010
Caister Triassic & Carb .008 0.008 0.008 40.00% 0.003 0.003 0.003
Orca Carboniferous 0 0 0 23.47% 0] 0 0]
Ravenspurn Nth Permian 0] 0 4] 28.80% G 0 ¢
Telmount Permian 0 3.098 7.396 50.00% 0 1.549 3.698
Total 0.022 3.12 7.418 0.013 1.562 3.711
Field Oil Age Gross Field Reserves E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Equivalent {MMboe) Working Reserves [MMboe}
Reserves 1P Ip 3p Interest {%) 1P Ip 3p
Babbage Permian 6.68 9.08 15.28 47.00% 313 427 7.18
Johnston Perrian 2.17 2.60 3.05 50.10% 1.08 132 1.53
Hunter Triassic 0.25 0.25 0.25 79.00% 0.20 0.20 0.20
Rita Carboniferous .38 0.38 0.38 74.00% 0.28 0.28 0.28
Caister Triassic & Carb 0.26 0.26 0.26 40.00% 0.10 0.10 0.10
Orca Carboniferous Q.27 .27 0.28 23.47% 0.07 .07 0.07
Ravenspurn Nth Permian 1.07 1.12 1.15 28.80% 0.30 0.32 0.33
Tolmount Permian 0 59.43 146.23 50.00% 0 29.72 73.11
Total 11.08 73.39 166.88 5.16 36.28 82.80

Motes: 1} Gross Field Reserves are 100% of the volumes estimated to be economically recoverable from the field

from 1%t January 2015. 2} Qil equivalent converted at §,000 scf = 1 Boe.
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Table 1-2 Summary of Reserves as at 31 Decernber 2015

@RISC

Field Gas Age Gross Field Reserves {Bcf) E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Reserves Working Reserves [Bcf)
1P 2P 3p | Interest(%) | 4p 2P 3P
Babbage Permian 26.4 40.6 78.0 47.00% 12.4 1%.1 36.7
Johnston Permian 10.3 12.9 155 50.10% 5.2 6.5 7.7
Hunter Triassic 0.9 0.9 ¢.9 79.00% 0.7 0.7 0.7
Rita Carboniferous 0 0] D 74.009% 0 0 H
Caister Triassic & Carb 0 0] 0 40.00% 0 0 0
Orca Carboniferous 0 0] 0 23.47% 0 0 0
Ravenspurn Nth Permian 0 0 0 28.80% 0 0 0
Tolmount Permian 0 3388 8334 50.00% 0 169.4 416.5
Total 37.7 3924 927.4 13.3 195.3 461.6
Field Age Gross Field Reserves E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Oil+Condensate {MMstb} Working Reserves {(MMsth)
Reserves 1p Ip ap Interest (%) 1p Ip 3p
Babbage Permian 0 0 0 47.00% 0 0 0
Johnston Permian 0 0 0 50.10% 0 0 0
Hunter Triassic 1] 0 0 75.00% 0 0 0
Rita Carboniferous 0 0 0 74.00% 0 0 0
Caister Triassic & Carb 0 0 0 40.00% 0 0 0
Orca Carboniferous 0 0 0 23.47% 0 0 o
Ravenspurn Nth Permian 0 0 0 28.80% 0 0 o
Telmount Permian 0 3.098 7.396 50.00% 0 1.549 3.698
Total 0 3.098 7.386 0 1.549 3.698
Field Oil Age Gross Field Reserves E.On E.On Net Working Interest
Equivalent {MMboe) Working Reserves {MMboe}
Reserves 1P 2p ap Interest (%) 1p 2p 3p
Babbage Permian 4.4 6.8 13.0 47.00% 2.1 3.2 6.1
Johnston Permian 1.7 2.2 2.6 50.10% 0.9 1.1 13
Hunter Triassic 0 0 0 79.00% 0 o 0
Rita Carboniferous 0 0 0 74.00% 0 0 0
Caister Triassic & Carb 0 0] 0 40.00% 0 0 o
Orca Carbaniferous 0 0 0 23.47% 0 0 0
Ravenspurn Nth Permian 04 0.4 0.4 28.80% 0.1 01 0.1
Tolmount Permian 0 59.43 146,23 50.00% 0 29.72 73.11
Total 6.5 68.83 162.23 3.1 34.12 80.61

Motes: 1} Gross Field Reserves are 100% of the volumes estimated to be economically recoverahle from the field
from 31 December 2015. 2) Qil equivalent converted at 6,000 scf = 1 Boe.
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E-on

UK Licences
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REGION

1 - Elgin, Franklin

Exploration

Not part of this report

Corfe

West Franklin Terrace,
Elgin West

2 — Huntington Area

Not part of this report

Ekland

3 - Babbage Area

Babbage, lohnston,
Ravenspurn North

Cobra, Hawking

Ada, Newton, Pythan,
Newton Deep, Dodgson,
Joly, Adder, Viper, Boa

4 — Tolmount Area

Tolmount

Artemis, Mongour

Artemnis East, Malin, Cluin

5 — Other CNS

Not part of this report

Arrvan, Auster

b — Other SNS

Caister, Hunter, Orca,
Rita & Minke [ceased
production}, CMS, ETS

Maorth Rita, Deep Hunter

7 — Other CNS Exploration

TR?, Tumbleweed,
Chimera

8 - Other 5NS Exploration

Lyra

9 - West of Shetlands

Colza, Mardyke,

Gunnisan
Note: Third Party Revenue analyses for Huntingtor, Babbage and Todmount areas are not included in this report
Figure 1-1 Location map and key of main E.On licenced UK blocks and fields
| |

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)

Page 4



Table 1-3 E.On"s Production Interests

@RISC

E.On's Working
A A N
rea sset Name Status QOperator Interest (%)
Southern North Sea Babbage Producing E.Cn 47.00
Southern North Sea Caister Ceased Production in ConocoPhillips 40.00
2015
Southern North Sea Hunter Restarted Production in | E.On 79.00
2015
Southern North Sea Johnston Producing E.Cn 50.10
Southern Morth Sea Minke Ceased Production GDF Suez 42.67
Southern North Sea Orca Producing GDF Suez 23.47
Southern North Sea Ravenspurn North Producing Perenco 28.80
Southern Morth Sea Rita Currently Shut-in E.Cn 74.00
Southern North Sea Caister Murdoch Infrastructure ConocoPhillips 20.00
System
Southern North Sea Esmond Infrastructure Perenco 30.00
Transportation
System
Table 1-4 E.On’s Development Interasts
E.On's Working
Area Asset Name Status Cperator Interest (%)
Central North Sea Arran Awalt_mg development Dana 5.12
sanction
Central North Sea Austen Under review GDF Suez 25.00
Southern North Sea Tolmount Development pending Eon
50.00
FID
| |
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Table 1-5 E.On’s Discoveries and Key Prospect Interests

@RISC

Area Asset Name Field Area Eon’s Working
Interest (%)
Central North Sea Corfe Discovery Elgin/Franklin 25
Central North Sea Ekland Prospect Huntington 40
Southern North Sea Cobra Discovery Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Hawking Discavery Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Ada Prospect Babbage 47
Southern North Sea Newton Prospect Babbage 50
Southern Morth Sea Python Prospect Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Artemis Discovery Tolmount 100
Southern North Sea Artemis East Prospect Tolmount 100
Southern North Sea Mongour Discovery Tolmount 50
Southern North Sea Malin prospect Tolmount 50
_________________________________________________| |

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)

Page &




@RISC

Table 1-6 E.On"s Additional Prospectivity Interests (Leads)

Area Asset Name Field Area Eon’s Working
Interest (%)
Southern North Sea Cluin Tolmount 50
Southern North Sea Newton Deep Babbage 50
Southern Narth Sea Dadgson Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Joly Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Adder Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Viper Babbage 50
Southern North Sea Boa Babbage 50
Southern North Sea North Rita Rita 74
Southern North Sea Deep Hunter Caister 78
Southern North Sea Lyra Breagh 35
Central North 5ea West Franklin Terrace Elgin/Franklin 5.2
Central North Sea Elgin West Elgin/Franklin 5.2
Central North Sea TR7 Galley 40
Central North Sea Tumbleweed Kittiwake 40
Central North Sea Chimaera Galley 40
West of Shetland Colza - 100
West of Shetland Mardyke - 100
Woest of Shetland Gunison - 100

1.1. Production Assets and Reserves

RISC estimates that Eon’s assets have 208.2 Bcf of 2P gas reserves and 1.562 MMsth of 2P oil+condensate
reservas as at 1* January 2015 on a net working interest basis. This reduces to 195.3 Bef and 1.549 MMsth
of 2P cil+condensate with an effective date of 31 December 2015. Table 1-7 and Table 1-8 summarise the
reserves derived from these assessments. Deterministic methods have been used to estimate reserves.
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@RISC

Table 1-7 E.On Net Reserves as at 1 January 2015 {Price Scenario A}

E.On Economic Gas Bef! Condensate  GastLiquids
Field Status \.N| Case Limit MMBbI Equivalent
MMboe?
1P 2016 1.8 ) 0.30
Ravenspurn
Praducing 29% 2P 2016 1.9 O 0.32
North
3P 2016 2.0 )] 0.33
1P 2028 6.5 ) 1.09
Johnston Producing 50% 2p 2028 7.9 0] 1.3C
3P 2028 9.7 O 1.54
1P 2016 0.6 0.003 Q.10
. Ceased
Caister A0% 2P 2016 0.6 0.003 0.10
Production
3P 2016 0.6 0.003 0.10
1P 2021 18.8 0 3.14
Babbage Producing 47% 2P 2024 256 0 4.27
3p 2030 431 0 7.19
1P 2016 0.3 0 0.06
Orca Producing 23% 2P 2016 Q.3 0 0.06
3ap 2016 0.3 o) 0.07
1P 2018 1.2 O 0.19
Hunter Producing 79% 2P 2018 1.2 o 0.19
3P 2018 1.2 0] 0.19
1P 2016 1.6 0.010 0.28
Rita Currently 74% 2P 2016 16 0.010 0.28
Shut-in
3P 2016 1.6 0.010 0.28
1P a o 0
Tolmount Development o0 5y 2040 169.0 1.543 29.72
pending FID
3P 2043 A416.5 3.688 73.11

" NPV's based on energy units Trillion British Thermal Units {TBTU). 1 TBTU is equivalent to 1 Billion Cubic Feet of Gas assuming
that the calorific value/heating content of the gas is 1 therm = 1,000 BTU. The calorific value will depend upon the percentage of
inert gases such as nitrogen and carben dioxide in the sales gas and RISC has converted TBTU to Bef of each field based on the
specific calorific value of the gas in that field eg: Qrca field | 737 BTU/standard cubic feet of gas ((.737 TBTU = 1 Befh.

2 Calculated using an average conversion factor of 6 Mscf per barrel of oil equivalent {bae)

1
RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)

64

Page 8



@RISC

Table 1-8 E.On Net Reserves as at 31 December 2015 {Price Scenario A)

E.On Economic Gas Bef® Condensate  GastLiquids
Field Status \.N| Case Limit MMBbI Equivalent
MMboe?
1P 2016 Q ) 0
Ravenspurn
Praducing 29% 2P 2016 0 O 0
North
3P 2016 0 )] 0
1P 2028 518 ) 0.89
Johnston Producing 50% 2p 2028 6.46 0] 111
3P 2028 7.74 O 1.33
1P 2016 0 0 0
Ceased
Caister A0% 2P 2016 a G 0
Production
3P 2016 )] o 0
1P 2021 12.41 0 2.14
Babbage Producing 47% 2p 2024 19.10 0 3.29
3P 2030 26.67 0 0.32
1P 2016 a G 0
Orca Producing 23% 2P 2016 0 o 0
3ap 2016 0 o) 0
1P 2018 D.72 O D.12
Hunter Producing 79% 2P 2018 0.72 o n.12
3P 2018 0.72 0] 0.12
1P 2016 a 0 0
Rita Currently 74% 2P 2016 0 0 0
Shut-in
3P 2016 a 0 0
1P a o 0
Tolmount Development o0 5y 2040 169.0 1.543 29.72
pending FID
3P 2043 A416.5 3.688 73.11

The following Net Present Values {Table 1-9 to

¥ NPV’s based on energy units Trillion British Thermal Units {TBTU). 1 TBTU is equivalent to 1 Billion Cubic Feet of Gas assuming
that the calorific value/heating content of the gas is 1 therm = 1,000 BTU. The calorific value will depend upon the percentage of
inert gases such as nitrogen and carben dioxide in the sales gas and RISC has converted TBTU to Bef of each field based on the
specific calorific value of the gas in that field eg: Qrea field : 737 BTU/standard cubic feet of gas (0.737 TBTU = 1 Bef),

4 Calculated using an average conversion factor of 6 Mscf per barrel of oil equivalent {boe}

1
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Table 1-12) have not been adjusted for other factors {eg analogous transactions, strategic, political and
security risks) that a buyer or seller may consider in any transaction concerning these assets and therefore
may not be representative of the fair market value.

Four price scenarios have heen evaluated at two different effective dates, 01-lan-2015 and 31-Dec-2015:
*  RISC’s base case price estimate {Scenario A}

= Sensitivities on RISC’'s base case price estimate, representing the higher prices achieved in the last
twelve months {Scenarios B, C and D).

The economic results for the pipelines are independent of the oil and gas price scenarios. A single scenario
was evaluated for each of the Esmond Transmission System (ETS) and Caister Murdoch System (CMS)
working interests, at each of the effective dates.

1 I
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Table 1-9 Pre-Tax Valuation Summary [NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 1 January 2015)

@RISC

, E.On Price Price Price Price
Field Status Wl Case Scenario ‘A’ Scenario ‘B Scenario 'C' Scenaria ‘O
1F Q 0 0 0
Rita Currently 74% 2p ) 0 0 0
Shut-in
P Q 0 0 4]
1P -60 -60 -60 -60
Ravenspurn Morth Producing 29% 2P -5a -59 -59 -59
3P -59 -54 -59 -59
1P > 9 7 10
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 10 14 12 15
3P 14 19 16 21
1P -37 -37 -37 -37
Calster Ceased 40% 2p 37 37 37 37
Production
3P =37 37 =37 =37
1F 4 16 10 21
Babbage PFroducing 47% 2F 20 39 30 a7
3P 51 78 66 90
1F -20 -20 =20 =20
Orca Producing 23% 2P -20 -20 -20 -20
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -11 -10 -10 -10
. 79%
Hunter Producing 2P -11 -10 -1 -10
3P -11 -10 -10 -10
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Minke Ceased 43% 2P 12 12 12 12
Production
3P -12 -12 -12 -12
1F -33 -33 -33 -33
Tolmount Development 50% 2P 111 214 160 267
pending FID
3P 554 789 682 Ba7
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 0% 29 29 29 29
1P -139 -122 -130 -116
Total {Including 2P 27 154 29 216
Pipelines}
3P 535 773 651 395
| |
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Table 1-10 Post Tax® Valuation Summary (NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 1 January 2015)
, E.On Price Scenario Price Price Price
Field Status Wl Case ‘A Scenario ‘B Scenario 'C' Scenario ‘D’
1P o3 0 0 0
] Currently
Rita , 74% 2P a o] 0 Q
Shut-in
3P ¢ 0 0 0
1F -60 -60 -B0 -60
Ravenspurn North Producing 20% 2P -50 -59 -59 -59
3F -59 -59 -59 -59
1P 5 9 7 10
Johnston Producing S50% 2F 10 14 12 15
3P 14 17 16 17
1P -37 -37 -37 -37
Caister Ceased 40% 2% 37 37 37 37
Production
3P =37 -37 -37 -37
1P 4 16 10 20
Babbage Producing 47% 2P 20 31 27 36
3P 42 54 49 58
1P =20 =20 =20 =20
Orca Producing 23% 2P -20 -20 -20 -20
Eld -20 -20 -20 =20
1P -11 -10 -10 -10
. 79%
Hunter Producing 2P -11 -10 -10 -10
3P -11 -10 -1 -10
1P <12 212 -12 -12
Minke Ceased 13% 2¢ 12 12 12 12
Productian
3P 212 212 -12 =12
1F -33 -33 -33 -33
Tolmount Deve!opment S0% 2P 28 81 53 108
pending FID
3P 256 363 307 418
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 17 17 17 17
1P -151 -134 -142 -129
Tf:ntal.{lncludmg. 2p %8 1 a3 12
Pipelines}
3P 126 309 247 368
Cansolidated Tax benefit 2ps 76 71 75 313
| |
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Table 1-11 Pre-Tax Valuation Surnmary (NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 31st December 2015)

Field Status E.On Case Price Price Price Price
wi Scenario ‘A’ Scenario ‘B Scenario 'C Scenaria ‘D'
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Rita Currently 74% 2P 12 12 12 12
Shut-in
3P -12 -12 -12 -12
1P B2 62 -62 52
Ravenspurn North Producing 29% 2P -652 -62 -62 -62
ey B2 62 -62 -62
1P -1 3 1 4
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 3 8 6 10
3F i) 13 10 15
1F -43 -43 -43 -43
Caister Ceased 40% 2p 43 43 43 -43
Production
3P -43 -43 -43 -43
1F -24 -10 -18 -5
Babbage Producing 47% 2P -7 13 4 23
3P 25 55 41 68
1P -20 -20 -20 -20
Orca Producing 23% 2P 20 20 =20 =20
3P -20 -20 =20 =20
1P -12 -11 -11 -11
. 79%
Hunter Producing 2P 212 -11 -11 -11
3IF -12 -11 -11 -11
1F -13 -13 -13 -13
Minke Ceased 43% 2P 13 13 13 13
Production
3P -13 -13 -13 -13
1F -36 -36 -36 -36
Tolmount Development 50% 2P 122 235 176 294
pending FID
3P 656 882 763 1,000
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 32 32 32 12
1P -195 -176 -186 -170
T?tal'{lncludmg 2p 16 123 53 194
Pipelines}
3P 555 817 681 950

* Tax losses acquired in respect of EPUK EU have been applied
B Consolidated tax benefit calculated for arithmetic total of field 2P cash flows anly

1 I
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Table 1-12 Post Tax” Valuation Summary [NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 31st December 2015)

Field Status E.On Case Price Scenario Price Price Price
W) ‘A Scenario ‘B Scenario 'C' Scenaria ‘D'
1p 12 -12 -12 -12
Rita Currently 74% 2p 12 12 12 12
Shut-in
3P -12 -12 -12 -12
1P -B2 -62 -B52 -B52
Ravenspurn North Producing 29% 2P -b2 -62 -62 -62
P -62 -g2 -62 -62
1P -1 3 1 4
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 3 8 B 10
3P 8 13 10 15
1P -43 -43 -43 -43
: Ceased
Caister . 40% 2P -43 -43 -43 -43
Praduction
el -43 -43 -43 -43
1P =24 =10 =18 -5
Babbage Producing 47% 2P -7 13 4 23
3P 25 44 38 49
1P -20 -20 -20 -20
Orea Producing 239% 2P -20 =20 -20 -20
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -12 -11 -11 -11
. 79%
Hunter Producing P -12 -11 -11 -11
3P -12 -11 -11 -11
1P -13 -13 -13 -13
Minke Ceased 43% 2P 13 -13 13 13
Production
3P -13 213 -13 -13
1P -3b -36 -36 -36
Tolmount Deve!oprnent 50% 2P 31 89 58 119
pending FID
3P 295 413 352 473
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 18 18 18 18
1P -209 -190 -200 -184
Tf:utal.{lncludmg 2p 121 37 79 5
Pipelines}
3P 120 323 253 390
Cansolidated Tax benefit 2pe 24 78 82 73
7 Tax losses acquired in respect of EPUK EU have been applied
| |
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1.2. Processing Terminals and Pipelines

RISC has valued the net tariff income and abandonment liability of the Caister Murdoch System and
Esmond Transmission System pipelines. The costs associated with the Freon replacement project at
Theddlethorpe Gas Terminal, which is used by the Caister, Rita and Hunter fields is part of a cost share
agreement with the users cof the terminal and this cost forms part of field Operating Expenditure (Opex).

The following Net Present Values [Table 1-13) have not heen adjusted for other factors (eg analogous
transactions, strategic, political and security risks) that a buyer or seller may consider in any transaction
concerhing these assets and therefore may not be represantative of the falr market value,

The economic results for the pipelines (Table 1-13} are independent of the oil and gas price scenarios. A
single scenario was evaluated for each of the ETS and CMS working interests at the effective date of 31-
Dec-2015.

Table 1-13 Pre-Tax & Post-Tax Valuation {NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 31 December 2015)

. E.On Pre-Tax Post-Tax
Field Status Wi NPV NPV ‘
Caister Murdoch System Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 ‘
Esmond Transpartation System Facility 30% 32 18 ‘

% Consolidated tax benefit calculated for arithmetic total of field 2P cash flows anly

1 I
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1.3. Contingent Resources

RISC has reviewed the Contingent Resource volumes,

Table 1-14 Contingent Resources

@RISC

Net Gas Net iqqui
. E.On Resource Candensate Gas-l-lqumds
Field Status Wi Case Resource Equivalent
Bef MMboe
MMsth
Producing Field Projects
R Upside wells plus 1c 27.4 4.57
avenspurn
North P sub-economic 29% 2C 47.2 7.87
preduction 3C 68.0 11.33
Jinfill well plus ic 14.4 2.40
Babbage sub-economic A7% 2C 233 3.88
production 3C 371 457
1C 38 0.02 0.65
Rita Currently Shut-in 2C 4.5 0.03 0.78
3C 5.1 0.04 0.89
1C 0.3 0.05
Orca Sub-econamic 23% 2C 0.5 0.08
production
3C 0.7 012
Undeveloped discoveries
1c 76.9 0.666 13.50
Tolmount Development 50% ple 0 0 o
pending FID
3C a 0 0
1C - - -
Development too
Austen immature to 25% 2C - -
assess valumes 3c . i .
1c 5.1 0.138 0.99
Arran Development 5% 2C 8.0 0.215 1.54
pending decision
3C 11.4 0.328 2.23

1.4. Exploration Potential

RISC has not valued the Exploration potential. There are eleven prospects which have reached a mature
level in order to be relatively confident of a calibrated Geological Chance of Success. There are a further

1
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fifteen leads in the Southern and Central North Sea, and a further three leads in the West of Shetlands
hlocks.

1.5.

Opportunities and Risks

In addition to the uncertainty expressed by the ranges of resource volumes, costs and prices identified
abowe, the group of assets are characterised by the following opportunities and risks:

Risks:

Facility and pipeline integrity in the mature assets could lead ta unforeseen outages

Tariff/cost share uncertainties where gas is exported in third party infrastructure

Tolmount {and other) project delays due to lack of confidence in current environment

Significant number of late life mature assets with uncertain abandonment liability

Eleven suspended wells which will require either permanent abandonment or regular monitoring in
line with guidance given by the Qil and Gas Authority.

Opportunities:

New field development at Tolmount, which has a field life of over twenty years in the 2C volume case

Contingent resources in undeveloped fields indicate potential for reserves additions

Operating cost reductions with move to unmanned/not normally manned installations

Capital and operating cost reductions as operators find efficiencies and suppliers become more
competitive in the current market

Ahandonment cost reductions as the North Sea industry gains experience and perhaps economies of
scale with multi-field abandonment campaigns. Greater cooperation between operators leading to
efficiencies and cost reductions

Third party revenues in CMS and ETS pipelines

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 17
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2. Basis of Assessment

2.1. Data Availability and Methodology

In preparing this Competent Person's Report, RISC has relied on infermation provided by E.On and Premier
as well as information from the public demain. A RISC team visited E.On's physical data room during June
2015 and December 2015 and accessed a Virtual Data Room (VDR) to review seismic data, well data,
geological models, reservoir engineering models, cost data and commercial terms.

The dataset included data provided between June 2015 and January 2016.

RISC has reviewed basic and interpreted data as presented by E.On and made adjustments as required to
form an independent view of future production, resources, costs, schedule for selected assets.

Reserves and Net Present Values have been reported as at 1% January 2015 to align with the Effective Date
of a Sale and Purchase Agreament between Premier Qil and E.On,

A total of four price scenarios have been run with Price Scenario ‘A’ representing RISC's view of future
prices, The three other scenarios (Price Scenario ‘B, Price Scenario ‘C’ & Price Scenario 'D’) represent price
sensitivities above RISC's base scenario.

We have not conducted a site visit,

2.2. Qualifications

RISC is an independent il and gas advisory firm. All of the RISC staff engaged in this assignment are
professionally qualified engineers, geoscientists or analysts, each with many years of relevant experience
and most have in excess of 20 years. The preparation of this report has been managed by Mr Gavin Ward.
Mr Ward has a B.Sc (Hons) Geclogy & Physics {Aston University), an MBA from the Cranfield School of
Management, is a Chartered Accountant and Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
{FCCA). Mr Ward has 28 years of experience in the sector, is a member of the Society of Petroleum
Engineers and is a Council Member of the Petrocleum Exploration Society of Great Britain. Mr Ward is a
Competent Person as defined in London Stock Exchange, AIM Guidance Note for Mining, Oil and Gas
Companies, March 2006.

RISC was founded in 1994 to provide independent advice to companies associated with the oil and gas
industry. Today the company has approximately forty highly experienced professional staff at offices in
Perth, Brishane, Jakarta and London. We have completed over 2,000 assignments in sixty eight countries
for nearly 500 clients. Our services cover the entire range of the oil and gas business lifecycle and include:

®  Qil and gas asset valuations, expert advice to banks for debt or equity finance;

= Exploration/portfolio management;

®  Field development studies and operations planning;

= Reserves assessment and certification, peer reviews;

= (as market advice;

* Independent Expert/Expert Witness;

= Strategy and corporate planning.

1 I
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2.3. Limitations

The assessment of petroleum assets is subject to uncertainty because it involves judgments on many
variables that cannot be precisely assessed, including reserves/resources, future oil and gas production
rates, the costs associated with producing these volumes, access to product markets, product prices and
the potential impact of fiscal/regulatory changes.

The E.On assets assessed in this report comprise producing fields, fields which have ceased producticn,
undeveloped fields, key prospects and immature discoveries, and exploration leads. Additional assets that
form part of the proposed transaction but which are net included in this report and are referred to as the
‘Cmitted Fields'.

The Net Present Value estimates presented in this report have not been adjusted for hedging contracts or
other factors (eg strategic, political and security risks) that a buyer or seller may consider in any transaction
concerning these assets and therefore may not be representative of the fair market value. The statements
and opinions attributakle to RISC are given in good faith and in the belief that such statements are neither
false nor misleading. While every effort has been made to verify data and resolve apparent inconsistencies,
neither RISC nor its servants accept any liahility for, or warrant the accuracy or reliability of our
conclusions, nor do we warrant that our enquiries have revealed all of the matters, which an extensive
examination may disclose. In particular, we have not independently verified property title, encumbrances
and regulations that apply to these assets,

RISC has not audited the opening balances at the valuation date of past recovered and unrecovered
development and exploration costs, undepreciated past development costs and tax losses,

We believe our review and conclusions are sound but no warranty of accuracy or reliability is given to our
conclusions.

2.4. Independence
RISC makes the following disclosures:

= RISC is independent with respect to E.On and Premier and confirms that there is no conflict of
interest with any party invelved in the assignment.

= Under the terms of engagement bhetween RISC and Premier for the provision of this report, RISC
will receive a fee, payable by Premier. The payment of this fee is not contingent on the intended
purpose of this report.

= Neither RISC Directors nor any staff involved in the preparation of this report hold interests in
Premier.

2.5. Standard

Reserves and resources are reported in accordance with the definitions of reserves, contingent resources
and prospective resources and guidelines set out in the Petrcleum Resources Management System (PRMS)
approved by the Society of Petroleum Engineers in 2007 and European Securities and Markets Authority
{ESMA).

1 I
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2.6. Consent

Neither the whole nor any part of this report nor any reference to it may be included in or attached to any
prospectus, document, circular, resolution, letter or statement without the prior consent of RISC.

1 I
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3. Production Assets

The producing assets covered in this report are all in the Southern North Sea. The E.On assets assessed in
this section include five producing fields, two fields which have ceased production and one currently shut-
in.

3.1. Southern North Sea Regional Geology

The evolution of the Southern North Sea Basin occurred through several main phases in geological histary,
Firstly was the creation of the Sub-Cambrian peneplain, before the Caledonia QOrogeny in the late Silurian
to Devonian. The Variscan Orogeny followed throughout the Carboniferous and inte the Permian causing
folding and faulting of Carboniferous strata. This generated & dominant north west to south east
orientated structural grain in the Southern North Sea Basin with a subordinate orthogenal north east to
south west (De Keysers) fault set exhibiting a dominant strike-slip offset rather than vertical movement.
These fault trends controlled the early deposition of the Permian sandstones that provide the dominant
reservoir rocks in the Southern North Sea, with deposition unconformable above a largely peneplaned
Carboniferous subcrop. Basinal extension and subsidence throughout the Permian and into the Mesozoic
provided accommodation space. Deposition of the Permian Zechstein evaporites followed Permian clastic
deposition, providing the regional seal for the Permian Sandstone play. Continued extension and regional
subsidence into the Mesozoic resulted in widespread continental clastic deposition in the Triassic before
sea level rise towards the end of the Triassic resulted in marine conditions in the Jurassic and Cretaceous
Pericds. Uplift during Late Cretaceous and Tertiary inversions, associated with the Alpine orogeny, resulted
in almost all of the Late Mesozoic section being ercded. Undifferentiated Quaternary-Tertiary marine
sands and clays top the regional stratigraphy.
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Figure 3-1 Regional geological cross section through Southern North Sea
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3.1.1, Saurce Rocks

Hydrocarbons encountered in the Southern North Sea are thought to be sourced from Carboniferous
Westphalian Coals and Namurian marine shales, These either directly underlie the Permian reserveair sands
or lie adjacent to eroded palaechighs, such as around the Babbage Field. As a consequence migraticn
pathways are generally short and often vertical with intra-Carboniferous sands acting as carrier beds. Gas
quality and composition are known to vary across the basin in relation to local geological conditions.

3.1.2, Reservoirs

The primary reservoir exploited in the region is the Lower Leman Sandstone Formation of Rotliegendes
{Permian) age, comprising aeclian, fluvial and sabkha facies, deposited along the southern margin and to
the south of the Silverpit Lake {Figure 3-4), Reservoir facies and thickness are known to vary locally in
relation to local structural setting and climatic controls. Aeolian deposition dominates to the south and
west, whilst fluvial influence increases with proximity to the Silverpit Lake which itself is characterised by
mudstone and evaporitic facies. Reservair guality is heavily dependent on depositional facies with the
aealian sequences providing the best quality reservair.
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Figure 3-4 Leman Palaecogeography
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3.1.3, Traps

All producing fields in the Southern North Sea are wholly structural traps apart from Ravenspurn North
which lies on the fringe of the basin and has an element of stratigraphic trapping on the northern flank
due to pinch out of the reservoir. Traps are dominantly fault bound structural closures where the top seal
is provided by the Silverpit mudstones {where developed) or the Zechstein evaporites. Fault seal is
commonly provided by juxtaposition of Leman Sandstones against Silverpit Mudstones.

3.2. Babbage Gas Field, Block 48/2a (Licence P.456)

3.2.1, Overview

Babbage Field was discovered by the 48/2-2 well in 1988. The well flowed at a rate of 3.8 MMsci/d and
was considered uneconomical for development at the time. A second well, 48/2a-4, was drilled onto the
crest of the structure in 2006 which achieved a flow rate of 11 MMsef/d on test, establishing the presence
of a significant gas accumulation. E.On have a 47% interest in the Babbage development area that includes
Babbage Field and earlier development of Johnston and Ravenspurn North Fields. Although they are part
of the same development area, E.On holds different interests in Johnston {50%) and Ravenspurn North
{(29%).
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3.2.2, Develapment and current status

Babbage has undergone two phases of development well drilling to-date. In Phase 1, between 2008 and
2010, threa horizontal, multi-fracced wells were drilled (B1, B2z and B3), along with installation of the
nine-slot minimum facilities platform. First gas was achieved in August 2010. Phase 2 comprised the drilling
of two horizontal, multi-fracced wells (B4 and B5y) from the platform in 2012-2013, with resultant first gas
in October 2013,

The platform has a 50 MMscf/d test separator and produced water treatment, cyclone for sand {proppant)
removal, power generation, crane, helideck, utilities and accornmodation for thirty people. Gas is exported
to West Sole through a 28" & 14" pipeline and 80 km an to Dimlington Gas Terminal through a 24" pipeline,
The platform has initially been manned to support well drilling, fraccing and clean-up operations. However
there are plans to reduce manning to daylight hours only. It has a capacity of 75 MMscf/d.

Production peaked at 60 MMscf/d in 2011 and was restored in 2014 with the two new wells. 2015
production up to August averaged 43 MMscf/d. The gas is largely methane with 1 mole% CQO,, 2.4 mole%
nitrogen and minor condensate (0.1 bbl/MMscf).

Phase 3 of development is currently in the planning stage and, subject to all approvals, may include: an
infill well {‘)’-well}; an ‘Ada’ appraisal well and if successful development drilling and tie-back; well
workovers; and changes to facilities.

Figure 3-6 Babbage Platform
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3.2.3, Reservoir description and In Place Volumes

Located in UKCS Block 48/2 in the Sole Pit Basin of the Southern Gas Basin, the Babbage Field sits in a
north-west trending tilted fault block, with tightly fault-sealed compartments, The gas producing interval
is from a Lower Leman Sandstone Formation reservoir of Rotliegendes age, which lies at a depth of 10,500
ft TVDSS. The reservoir is composed of an 80 ft thick upper interval and a 200 ft thick lower interval of
aeolian, fluvial and sabkha facies. On both a local and regional scale these facies have been extensively
studied and are fairly well understood. The diagenetic overprint on the facies is particularly significant due
to the occurrence of illite which, where present, can significantly reduce permeability in the reservoir
{blocking the pore throats). There appears to be a regional correlation between illite precipitation and
timing and maximum depth of burial., Babbage appears to have been affected by such illitisation, in
particular within the fluvial facies where permeability is markedly lower than in the associated aeolian
facies. Aeolian and fluvial facies make up the large proportion of the reservoir, the remainder being
sabkha, which acts as an effective barrier to vertical flow.

An additional control on reservoir guality and therefore its production, is the presence of fracture systems
which intercept the wellbores of B1 and B3. These are naturally occurring and have been the subject of
extensive study, both regionally and locally, and thelr impact modelled dynamically to account for the
presence of water influx in the wells at high drawdown {i.e. scenarios are moadelled in which the fractures
are extended into the aquifer).

In 2014, the Operator adopted a five-layer lithastratigraphic, reservoir zonation scheme, developed by PM
Geos, based solely on the 48/2-2 well data {including core). This scheme identifies the major wet-dry
cycles and lithology packages. The major shale intervals mark layer boundaries and the scheme divides the
Leman inte units of similar lithology and reservoir properties (Figure 3-7}. It has been recognised, however,
that there is a larger variability of facies across the field than seen in this one well: for example, in 48/2a-
4, the equivalent aeolian dune succession in 42/2-2 shows greater variability in frequency and variation in
fluvial and aeolian facies, resulting in greater variability in reservoir quality. This, along with regional, offset
wall and field data, forms the basis for the Operator’s static field model and consequently for dynamic
reservoir simulation modelling. A nhumber of revisions have been undertaken by the Operator and are still
ongoing in order to obtain a better representation of the reservoir and its performance. The most recent
full field modelling resulted in a downgrade of the 2007 GIIP of 461 Bcef to a range from 262 Bef {(PS0) to
376 Bcef (P10). The Operator’s ‘Best Technical’ case is 328 Bef.
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3.2.3.1.

Figure 3-7 Lithostratigraphic sub-units of the Babbage Field

in Place Volumes

E.On has estimated the developed GlIP for the Babbage Field at 231 bcf in what they refer to as their ‘Best
Technical Case’ and total GIIP 328 bef,

Tahle 3-1 Bahbage Field Grass Gas Initially in Place by Fault Black

E.On E.On
Pref d Pref d
Developed referre P90 P10 Undeveloped | . o P90 P10
segments Technical {Bcf) {Bcf} segment Technical (Bcf) (Bcf)
8 Case & Case
(Bcf} {Bcf)
B3 Block 89 64 94 SW Black a8 41 64
{Ada)
B1 Block 49 36 56 NW Block 7 5 9
B2 Block 84 77 101 ME Block 15 10 16
BSy Block 9 7 10 48/2-2 Block 27 21 28
Developed Undeveloped®
Total 231 Total 97
# arithmetic addition of probabilistic volumes is a mathematically incorrect method of assessing the PSO or P10 totals.
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3.2.3.2.  Depth Mapping

The Cperater performed an internal review of the seismic data guality, interpretation and depth
conversion, using the CGG 2007 PrSTM Depth Migrated seismic across the Johnston and Babbage areas.
This review has revealed that the existing interpretation is still relevant for Johnston and Babbage, but the
results are not sufficiently confident over Ada (possible extension of Babbage, to the SE) to proceed with
further work on the prospect. Consequently, an update of the inversion study using the 2011 GXT seismic,
refined interpretation, wavelet and seismic velocity {for creating the low frequency madel) is proposed to
further de-risk the ‘) well area and Ada. Technical work is ongoing at this stage.
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Figure 3-8 Salt Topography

3.2.4. Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Figure 3-9 shows the field gas production history by well.
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Figure 3-9 Bahbage Well Production History
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Declining gas rates are apparent in the three Phase-1 wells. However, production has been constrained by
gas demand and facility constraints since the two Phase-2 wells were added. Figure 3-10 shows the data
from Phase-2 well BSy.
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Figure 3-10 Babhage Phase-2 Well B5y Production History

Allocated gas production from well BSy has remained reasonably constant at 30 MMscf/d over two years
of production. However, the flowing WHP (wellhead pressure) and BHP (bottom hole pressures) have
declined or been reduced to maintain gas production. At a certain point the minimum WHP required for
gas export will be reached and the gas rate will decline. Traditional production decline analysis is not
appropriate in this situation so RISC has conducted flowing material balance analysis to analyse field
performance.

RISC has also conducted exponential and harmonic rate decline analysis on wells where well head
pressures have been uniform. Figure 3-11 shows exponential decline analysis of well B3, using a period of
relatively uniform WHP,
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Figure 3-11 Babbage Well B3 Rate Decline Analysis

Babbage is divided into a number of fault segments as illustrated in Figure 3-12 with the development well
locations,
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Figure 3-12 Bahbage Fault Segments and Planned Wells

Communication between wells is limited due to faulting and the low permeability reservoir. RISC has
conducted flowing material balance analysis for each individual well to estimate the GIIP connected to
each well. Figure 3-13 shows an example of the analysis for well B1.
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Figure 3-13 Babbage Well B1 Flowing Material Balance Analysis

The GIIP estimated by E.On from geclogical modelling and by RISC fram flowing material balance for each

well are shown in Table 3-2.

Table 3-2 Babbage GIIF {Bcf) by well

GIIP from E.On Geological Modelling {Bcf) GIIP Method #1
Well

P90 P50 P10 {RISC Flowing Material Balance)
B1 22

36 49 56
B4 12
B3 37

64 29 94
Infill n/a
B2 50

77 84 101
BS 75

There is reasonable agreement between the total GIIP ranges estimated from the different sources of data
and analysis methods. The flowing material halance connected GIIP estimate supports E.On’s developed

Best Technical Case GIIP in aggregate.

The B3 segment contains well B3 and the proposed southern infill well. The infill well is targeting the GIIP

hot accessed by well B3,
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RISC has estimated production forecasts (Figure 3-14) using the flowing material balance models and
Decline Curve Analysis where appropriate.
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Figure 3-14 Babbage Gas Sales Forecasts

The Qperator's forecast is based on a 3D simulation model, RISC has reviewed results presented by E.On
in their 10 Nov 2014 Babbage dynamic simulation model report. The dynamic modelling work appears
thorough with reasonable matches to well test results, PLTs and production history. The Operator’s
forecast is approximately mid way between RISC exponential and harmonic decline forecasts, and similar
to RISC flowing material balance forecast.

RISC has used the exponential and harmanic decline forecasts for 1P and 3P developed reserves and used
a mid forecast for 2P.

Bahbage sales gas has 1 mole% CO,, 2.4 mole% nitrogen and an estimated heating value (HHV) of 37.8
MJ/m? (1015 BTU/scf). Condensate production is effectively zero.

3.2.5, Future Development and Costs

3.2.5.1. Babbage ‘I infilt well (Block 2-2)

The Babbage ‘) infill well {48/2-2 area) is targeted in a region to the SE of the platform to access undrained
gas areas. In the October 2014 TCM the well was described as having a 3,500m step-out {from the
platform) with a 4,000t horizontal section and five fracs, at a cost of £77.5 MM (or £76.3 MM for a subsea
well). This well is still in planning and under discussion within the JV. A proposed schedule for well design,
planning and approvals is shown in Figure 3-17 below.

If the J well is successful, E.On plans to develop of potential scutheast extension of Bakbage called Ada
{discussed in section 6.4.1).

The Operator’'s mid-case GIIP for 1 infill is 68 Bcf, with estimated recovery of 28 Bcf, with marginal
EConomics,
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If drilled the proposed infill well would target the GIIP in fault segment B3 not accessed by well B3, RISC
estimates that it will access 30 to 50 Bef GIIP, and has generated a range of production forecasts as shown
in Figure 3-15.
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Figure 3-15 Babbage Southern Infill Well Gas Sales Forecasts

Babbage wells have had initial rates of between 10 and 45 MMscf/d (average 24). RISC estimate an initial
rate for the southern infill of 10 to 30 MMscf/d. The Operator has presented a similar P50 recovery as RISC
hut higher initial well rate. The rescurces associated with the potential southern infill well are classified as
contingent. Table 3-3 shows the potential gas recovery over 15 years.

Table 3-3 Babbage Contingent Resources

Contingent Resource Sales Gas (Bcf) Gross | 1C 2C | 3C

JInfill Well | 18 28 | 37

The block also contains the Hawking and part of the Cobra gas discoveries. These require further appraisal
and are currently viewed as uneconomic (discussed in secticns 6.4.2 and 6.4.4). There are also exploration
prospects in the permit.
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Figure 3-16 Babbage Infill Well and Ada Locations

Both the Babbage ‘) infill well in Block 48/2-2 and the ‘Ada’ Prospect targets lie immediately adjacent to

the ‘salt wall’ which straddles the southern portion of the Babbage structure.
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Figure 3-17 Babbage ‘) Infill Well Project Schedule
3.2.52 Capital Costs

The results of the infill well are not included in our preduction forecasts for reserves and no other

development activities are planned hence no capital costs are forecast.
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3.2.5.3. Operating Costs

Operating costs were approximately £25m gross in 2015, this included approximately £7m gross for the
Dimlington Freon removal preject, According to the 2016 budget there are no further costs for this project
in 2016 as casts were accrued in 2015. Gross operating costs are forecast to be approximately £23-30m
{£12-15m net) in 2016 depending on whether a well intervention {coiled tubing campaign) is conducted.
We assume that the historical performance on which our production forecast is based will have included
some well intervention activity therefore have included it in our cost forecast. Beyond 2016 gross
operating costs are budgeted to he £15-20m gross 2017-2019, with gradual reductions thereafter.

3.2.5.4. Decommissioning Costs

The planis to PRA wells and remove all facilities, E.On have conducted a level 1 (-50%/+75%} cost estimatea
hased on engineering judgements and analogy. The estimate is £78m gross, RISC considers this to be
reasonable, £2.8m gross is budgeted for abandonment of 48/02-1 exploration well in 2016,

3.2.6.

RISC’s estimates of reserves at 1/1/2015 are shown in Table 3-4.

Reserves

Table 3-4 RISC Estimate for Babbage Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
1P 3P (Proved + Probable +
Babbage Field Reserves (Proved) 2P (Proved + Probable) Possible}
Gas (Bcf) c°:‘h:’h‘:::;te Gas (Bcf) c°{"‘\$::;“e Gas {Bcf) c::{:f;:bsl?te
Reserves at 01 January
3015 13.8 0, 25.6 0 43.1 [

3.2.7.

Contingent Resources

Additional volumes that could be produced in the event of higher gas prices, by an extension of field life
beyond the economic limit, have been assigned as contingent resources.

Table 3-5 RISC Estimate for Babbage Field Contingent Resources

Net to E.On
Babbage Field 1C 2C ac
Contingent Resources
Condensate Condensate Condensate
Gas [Bch) (MMEBbI) Gas (Bcf} (MMEBDI) Gas (Bcf} (MMEBb(]

Contingent Resources
after the Economic Limit 59 0 102 0 9.7 0
I well 85 ] 131 ] 17.4 o
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3.3. Caister Murdoch System and Quadrant 44 Area

3.3.1. QOverview

The Caister Murdoch System (CMS) consists of the Murdoch complex with E.On tiebacks from Caister NUI,
subsea wells in Hunter and Rita. Gas is aggregated at Murdoch and exparted via the CMS export line to
Theddlethorpe gas terminal. E.On has field interests in the CM$ Area (Table 3-6).

Table 3-6 E.On interests in CMS Area

Field E.On Interest Development
Caister 40% NUI tied back to Murdoch K Platfarm
Hunter 79% One subsea well tied back to Murdoch, stopped production in 2010 and
restarted in 2015
Rita 74% Dual lateral well tied back via Hunter. Shut-in during 2015
Orca 23.4685% Three well platform development exporting to D/15-FA in Dutch sector
Minke 42.67% Single subsea well tied to D-15. Ceased production in 2011
Infrastructure
CMS Pipeline 20%
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Figure 3-18 Location Map of Caister Murdoch System Fields

The Minke and Orca Fields straddle the UK/Netherlands barder.

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 3G

92



@RISC

The Caister Murdoch System is centred on the Murdoch complex. The fields in which E.On has an interest
are Caister, Hunter and Rita. Caister is developed with eight wells and a Normally Unmanned Installation
{NUI)} satellite platform. Rita is developed with a dual lateral well tied back to the Hunter field via a 14km,
8” carbon steel pipeline. Hunter was developed with a single subsea well and an 8km, 8" subsea tieback
te Murdoch. Preduction ceased in 2012 but the subsea pipeline is still used for Rita preduction. In 2015
Rita was shut-in and production restarted from Hunter. There is also a flexible flowline from Rita to
Murdoch that was disconnected in 2012, Gas is aggregated at Murdoch and end exported via the 26",
188km CMS export line to Theddlethorpe gas terminal. The NUIis remotely operated from Theddlethorpe.
The layout of Hunter, Caister and Rita is shown schematically below:

Rita Hunter and Caister fields

CAVENDISH

Wik LM KL

|
CMS Pipeline

Figure 3-1% Hunter, Caister and Rita Development Schematic

3.4. Caister Gas-Condensate Field, block 44/23a (Licence P.452)

3.4.1, Overview

The field consists of two reservoir formations discovered in 1968. Production started in 1993 via a NUI
with eight production wells drilled. The gas has a CGR of about 5 bbl/MMscf.

1 I
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3.4.2, Development and Current Status

Developed in 1993 using a NUI in 42m water depth with twenty-five year design life. Asset Integrity
Rectification (AIR) campaign is essential to allow for extended life and continued operations beyond end-
2015. Integrity issues mean that facility is unlikely to continue production beyond its twenty-five year
design life {2018). According to the Operator's ‘Cessation of Production’ document {January 2016}, “The
asset integrity rectification project is deeply uneconomic and there are no known remaining development
opportunities in the Caister Field.”

No further reservoir development is planned.

3.4.3. Reservoir Descripticn and In Place Volumes

The Bunter reservoir is good quality with an active aquifer developed with three wells A1, A3 and A8. E.On
estimate a GIIP of 172 Bcf with 77 Bcf or 45% recovery to date. Bunter reservoir gas contains 15 mole%%
CO.. Production from the Bunter reserveir has ceased.,

The Carboniferous reservoir is divided into northern and southern accumulations. E.On estimate the north,
developed with two wells A4 and A5, to contain 62 Bef GIIP, It has recovered 18 Bef or 30% recovery to
date. The southern accumulation is estimated to contain 187 Bef GIIP, developed with three wells A2, AS
and X9. It has recovered 134 Bcf or 79% to date. Only two wells (A5 and X9} can produce continuously at
4 and 7 MMscf/d respectively, with occasional cyclic production from A2 due to water loading.
Carboniferous reservoir gas contains less than 3 mole% CO,.

3.4.4. Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

The Bunter reservoir has not produced in 2015 and the Carboniferous reservoir produced at up to 9
MMscf/d with an average of 5 MMscf/d.

Figure 3-20 shows Calster gas sales history since Jan-2014 with sales declining from 10 to 5 MMscf/d.
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Figure 3-20 Caister Recent Gas Sales History
_________________________________________________| |
RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 38

04



@RISC

No further production is expected from Caister.

3.4.5, Future Development and Costs

The Caister NUI was to reach the end of its design life in 2018, however integrity rectification works are
required to maintain asset integrity to meet design life. Production ceased in late 2015, with no further
planned development activity.

3.4.5.1. Capital Costs

E.On was treating rectification works as operating costs therefore there are no capital costs for these late
life assets.

3.4.5.2. Operating Costs

Operating costs are very sensitive to whether production from Caister proceeds beyond 2015, We have
assumed production ceased at end 2015 but surveillance costs of £1m pa gross will be incurred until
decommissioning occurs in 2018.

3.4.5.3. Decommissioning Costs

Decommissioning plans involve full removal of topsides and jacket with onshore disposal, flushing of
pipelines and P&A of wells.

A detailed Caister decommissioning cost estimate has not been prepared. The estimated range of costs is
£50m — £100m. We recommend using a mid point until firm plans are drawn up and experience is gained
fram other abandonment programmes by the same Operator (Conoco Phillips, who are also abandoning
the V fields).

Hunter and Rita P&A and decommissioning cost estimates are very immature. Abandonment of Rita

subsea well and subsea facilities is estimated to cost £12m gross and Hunter £14m gross,

3.4.6, Reserves

RISC's estimates of reserves are shown below. As production is currently shut-in, the reserves effective
1/1/15 are equal te 2015 production. As a result the 1P, 2P and 3P are identical,

Table 3-7 RISC Estimate for Caister Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
3P (Proved +
1P 2P {Proved + Probable +
(Proved) Probable) Possible)
Caister Field Conde Conde Conde
Reserves Gas Gas Gas

(Bef) nsate ®cf) nsate (Beh) nsate
[(MMEBDI) [(MMEDI) [(MMIEBhI)

Reserves at 01 0.6 0.003 0.6 0.003 0.6 0.003

lanuary 2015
| |
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3.5. Hunter Gas-Condensate Field, block 44/23e {Licence P.452)

3.5.1. Overview

Hunter was discoverad in 1992 and was acquired by E.On in September 2005. Hunter started production
in 2006 from a single subsea well tied back 10 Murdoch K Platform.

3.5.2. Development and Current Status

Hunter was developed with single subsea well and an 8km, 8" subsea tieback to Murdoch. Gas from the
Hunter field is exported via the Murdock K to the Murdoch platform and onward via the Caister Murdoch
System [CMS} to the ConocoPhillips-operated facilities at Theddlethorpe. Hunter production ceased in
2010 but the subsea pipeline remained in use for Rita production, With Rita offline in late 2015, Hunter’s
production was restarted with cyclic production.

3.5.3. Reservoir Description and In Place Volumes

The Bunter Sandstone reservoir comprises braided fluvial and alluvial plain deposits characterized by
sandstones and siltstones with local shales. Reservoir quality is generally moderate with average porosity
at 15% and permeabilities in the 1-10 mD range (up to 1000 mD). E.On estimated GIIP in 2006 to be 9.1 -
21.5—58 Bcf {P90 - PS0 — P10).

3.5.4. Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Production ceased in 2010 with an estimated 2.2 Bcf produced giving an implied recovery factor of 10%.
ROV work may be required to maintain long-term production. However, cyclical production is expected
and it is unclear whether further subsea work will progress.
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Figure 3-21 Hunter Gas Production History
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Given that production from Rita is currently shut-in (and therefore doesn’t back out Hunter production),
we have assumed intermittent production from Hunter for the next two years as summarised below (Table

3-8 & Figure 3-22).

Table 3-8 Hunter field forecast production

Quarter 2016 Ql | 2016Q2 | 2016Q3 | 201604 | 2017Q1 | 2017 Q2 | 2017 Q3 2017 Q4
Gas rate,
4., 4.0 0 2. 2.
MMscf/d 0 0 0 Q 0 0
wis
P - W i L R [ DO PR
Figure 3-22 Hunter Gas Sales Forecasts, Annual Quarterly Rates
3.5.5, Future Development and Costs

Operating costs are estimated to be approximately £1 million pa gross. Decommissioning costs are

estimated to be £14 million gross.

3.5.6.

RISC’s estimates of resarves are shown in Table 3-9.

Reserves
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Table 3-9 RISC Estimate for Hunter Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015
Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
i1y 2P {Proved + Probable +
{Proved) Probable) Possible)
Hunter Field Conde Conde Conde
Reserves Gas Gas Gas
{Beh nsate (Befy nsate (Bef) nsate
(MMBhI) (MMBhI) {MMBhI)
Reserves at 01
January 2015 1.2 0 1.2 0 1.2 0

The Net Present Value for Hunter was calculated using 830 Btu/scf.

3.5.7. Contingent Resources

RISC assigns no Contingent Resources.

3.6. Johnston Gas Field, Block 43/27a (Licence P360)

3.6.1. Overview

The Johnston Field is a dry gas accumulation located within blocks 43/26a and 43/27a in the UK Southern
North Sea in approximately 39 m depth of water, 85km north-east of Easington. Gas is transported across
Ravenspurn North to the Easington Gas Pracessing Terminal. E.On is the Operator with 50.1% interest.

3.6.2. Development and Current Status

The discovery well was drilled in 1990 and after drilling cne appraisal well in 1991, a development plan
was submitted and approved in 1993. Initially two horizontal development wells were drilled from a four

slot subsea template, tied back to Ravenspurn North through a 12" pipeline. Commercial production
commencing in October 1994, An additional four subsea wells have been drilled with two tied back to the
template. Wells I1, J2 and 13 have watered out, 14 produces cyclically due to liquid loading. There are no

firm plans for further development.
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Figure 3-23 Johnston Subsea Tieback

The last well J6 was drilled in October 2013 but performance has been disappointing and hydraulic
fracturing is being considered, The well is currently shut-in due to a mechanical failure at the subsea
wellhead. It is unclear if and when the wellhead will be repaired to restore production.

2015 production up to end August has averaged 8.2 MMsef/d.

3.6.3. Reservoir Description In Place Volumes

The field is a structural trap, fault bounded to the SW and dip-closed to the north, east and south. High
guality 3D seismic data, enhanced by seismic attribute analysis has been used to establish the field
geometry and optimum well locaticns. The sandstone reservair is Early Permian, Lower Leman Sandstone
Formation of the Upper Rotliegend Group. This reservoir is a series of interbedded aeolian dune, fluvial,
and clastic sabkbha lithcfacies resulting in variable reservoir quality. The top seal and fault bounding side
seal are provided by the overlying clay stone of the Silverpit Shale Formation and the evaporite dominated
Zechstein Supergroup.

E.On estimate the P50 GIIP to be between 378 and 402 Bef from material balance and history matched
simulation.
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Figure 3-24 Depth Structure Map of Johnston Field

3.6.4. Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Gas production started in Sept-1994 with a peak monthly production of 90 MMscf/d. Cumulative
production at end 2014 was 237 Bef with a rate of 15 MMscf/d.
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Figure 3-25 Johnston Gas Production History

The recent daily production history of the three active wells is shown below. Field monthly production is
shown from Mar-Aug 2015,
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Figure 3-26 Johnston Recent Gas Production History

Well 14 cannot produce stably due to a high and increasing Water-Gas-Ratio {(WGR} of 63 bbl/MMscf
and pressure depletion. It is produced cyclically with shut-in period to re-charge reservoir pressure. The
historic well uptime has heen 54%.

well 15 producers stably with a WGR of 18 bbl/MMscf, The historic well uptime has been 80%.

Well 16 was shut in 1an-2015 due to mechanical problem with the subsea tree. It is not clear if and when
the tree will be repaired. The WGR has increased from an initial 10 bbl/MMscf to 120 bbl/MMscf.

RISC has reviewed the historic decline trend of the three active wells up to 28/2/2015 and generated
production forecast as follows:

Decline analysis has been conducted on each producing well using daily production data up to 28 Feb
2015. The forecast has then been matched to total field production up to end August 2015 and forecast
from that point.

The 1P forecast is based on exponential decline fitted to well )4 and J5. Well uptime is estimated at
75% reducing to 45% once well rates drop below the critical rate and production becomes cycelic.

The 3P forecast is based on harmenic decline fitted to well 14 and 15. Well uptime is estimated at 85%
reducing to 65% once well rates drop below the critical rate and production becomes cyclic.

The 2P forecast is mid way between the 1P and 3P,

The developed reserves forecasts are shown in Figure 3-27.
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Figure 3-27 lohnston Gas Production Forecast

Gas sales are estimated to be 97.2% of production based on historical data. The gas heating value (HHV}
is estimated to be 37.2 MJ/m3 (998 BTU/scf).

3.6.5. Future Development and Costs

No further development of the field is expected.

3.6.5.1. Capital Costs

No further capital expenditure is forecast.

3.6.5.2. Operating Costs

E.On forecasts net annual OPEX to reduce from $2.2m {£2.8m gross) in 2015 to 51.5m (£2.0m gross) in
2016 to $0.7m (£0.9m gross) in 2017 and more modest {10% pa) reductions beyond 2017. RISC has seen
no information on operating costs and the rationale for the reductions. We understand some of the costs
will be tariff related and therefore will decline with production. We also expect cost reduction measures
to be implemented in the current environment, However in the absence of explanation we believe the
forecast reductions to be optimistic. We therefore estimate a 25% reduction in OPEX from 2015 levels in
2016 and 2017 and 10% pa thereafter. This assumes that no material campaign maintenance or well or
subsea intervention is required over remaining field life.

3.6.5.3. Decommissioning Costs

E.On estimates £47m {gross) deccmmissioning costs. We consider this estimate to be reasonable.

| |
RISC — Project Eva CPR {15.0092) Page 46

102



@RISC

3.6.6. Reserves
RISC's estimates of reserves are shown in Table 3-10,

Table 3-10 RISC Estimate for Johnston Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
1P 2P {Proved + Probable +
(Proved) Prabable) Possible)
Johnston Field Sales Conde Conde Conde
Reserves Sales Sales
Gas nsate nsate nsate
{Bcf) {Bcf}
(Bef) {MMBbI) {MMBbI) (MMBbI)
Reserves at 01
. 7. .2
January 2015 6.3 0 ? 0 ? 0
3.6.7. Contingent Resources

RISC assigns no Contingent Resources,

3.7. Minke-Orca Gas-Condensate Fields, blocks 44/29b & Q44/30 (Licences P454,
P611)

3.7.1. QOverview

Minke and Orca gas field straddle the UK/Dutch border. Minke is a single well subsea development tieback
to the D15 Platform facility in Dutch waters with gas exported via the Noordgastransport pipeline to
Netherlands. Minke started production in 2007 and ceased in 2011 after producing 5.5 Bcf.
Decommissioning is required. The D15 reception facilities are now used by Orca.

3.7.2. Development and Current Status

Qrca was developed with three wells from the Orca Platform with gas exported 20 km to the D/15-FA
facility.

From D/15-FA gas is transported via the 36-inch diameter, 130 kilometre long Noardgastransport {NGT}
extension to L/10, for anward transportation via the existing Noordgastransport pipeline to the Uithuizen
terminal.
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Figure 3-28 Schematic of Orca Development

Orca has been unitised with UK share set at 49%. E.On’s share of Orca is 23.4685%.

3.7.3, Reservoir Description and In Place Volumes

The gas has 3 mole% £O; and 20-26% Nitrogen. Less than 0.3 bbl/MMscf of condensate is extracted. Due
to the high Nitrogen content, the heating value (HHV) is low at 737 BTU/scf {27.5 MJ/m3).

3.7.4. Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Orca gas production peaked at 35 MMscf/d early 2014 and declined to 5 MMscf/d. Well A2 watered out
and stopped production in Feh-2014, Well A3 started production after A2 watered out but production has
become cyclical and effectively stopped July-2014. Well A1 produces steadily.
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Figure 3-29 Orca Production History

RISC has analysed uptime and fitted a range of decline curves and used these to generate production
forecasts. The forecasts to the economic limit are shown in Figure 3-30.

‘o

Figure 3-30 Orca Production Forecasts

Gas sales are estimated to be 97% of production based on histarical data, The gas heating value (HHV) is
estimated to be 27.5 MJ)/m3 (737 BTU/scf). Condensate production is negligible.

3.7.5. Future Development and Costs

No further development is planned.
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3.7.5.1, Operating Costs

Orca field 2016 OPEX is forecast to be approximately £10m gross {£4m net) beycnd this OPEX is forecast
to be approximately £4m gross (E1.5m net),

3.7.5.2.  Decommissioning Costs

It is planned to remove the Orca topsides and jacket with piles cut Bm below the mudline. Wells will be
P&A and also cut 6m below the mudline. Pipelines will be flushed and left in situ. E.On estimate platform
and pipeline costs of £81m {£65m) gross, this appears to exclude well P&A costs however the pipeline cost
estimate of €34m appears high if the pipeline is to be left on the seabed. We estimate facility
decommissioning and well P&A costs of £60m gross (£14m net).

Minke P&A and decommissioning costs is estimated to be £22m gross although a full decommissioning
study has not been conducted.

3.7.6. Reserves

RISC’s estimates of reserves are shown in Table 3-11.

Table 3-11 RISC Estimate for Orca Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
1¢ 2P (Proved + Probable +
(Proved) Probable) Possible)
OrcaI;Mmke Field Sales Conde Sales Conde Sales Conde
eserves Gas nsate Gas nsate Gas nsate
(Bcf} [MMBhI) {Bcf} [(MMBhI) (Bcf} [(MMBhI)
Reserves at 01
January 2015 0.3 0 0.3 0 0.3 0
The Net Present Value for Orca was calculated using 737 Btu/scf.

As Minke production ceased in 2011, there are zero reserves at the effective date of 1/1/15,

3.7.7. Contingent Resources

Additional volumes that could be produced in the event of higher gas prices, by an extension of field life
beyond the economic limit have been assigned as contingent resources {Table 3-12). RISC assigns no
Contingent Resources from additional infill drilling.
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Table 3-12 RISC Estimate for Orca Field Contingent Resources

Orca-Minke Field Net to E.On
Contingent 1C 2C 3Ic
Resources
Gas Conde Gas Conde Gas Conde
(Bef) nsate (8ef) nsate (8ch) nsate
{MMEbI) {MMEDbI) [MMEBLI)
Contingent
Resources beyond 0.3 0 0.5 0 0.7 0
Ecanomic Limit

3.8. Ravenspurn North Gas Field, blocks 42/30a & 43/26a {Licence P380)

3.8.1, Qverview

Ravenspurn North is a dry gas field discovered in 1984 within blocks 42/30a and 43/26a in the UK Southern
North Sea. It came on-stream in 1990, had a peak rate of approximately 450 MMscf/d in 1997 and is

currently producing 25 MMscf/d. Perenco is the Operator (71.255%) and E.On has the remaining 28.745%
interest.

The field is a fault and dip closed faulted anticline breken into a series of fault blocks (Figure 3-31).
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Figure 3-31 Ravenspurn North field segments

The gas has a low CGR of 1.6 bbl/MMscf, 1 mole% CO: and minor {<1ppm) amounts of H2S.
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3.8.2. Development and Current Status

The Ravenspurn North field development consists of a gravity based concrete platform with
accommaodation, process facilities and compression linked to a steel wellhead platform. Two additional
wellhead platforms were subsequently installed. Gas is exported to the Cleeton facilities then enward via
the Cleeton/Ravenspurn South line to the Perenco operated terminal at Dimlington.

Forty-two development wells have been drilled although three were not completed. Wells are largely
deviated and hydraulically fractured. There are two horizontal wells.

4 Coum Fagrm
Fsmes i1, e

Figure 3-32 Ravenspurn North Surface Layout

3.8.3. Reservoir Description and In Place Volumes

The Lower Permian Rotliegendes Leman sandstone at 3,000 mTVDSS consists of aeolian sands and low
permeability sabkha and fluvial sands. As shown in Figure 3-31 the reservoir is divided into areas of:

=  Better permeability (1-50 mD) or “Sweet Developed’ reservoir with an estimated GIIP of 606-640 Bcf

(E.On}
= Low permeability {<1 mD)or "Tight Developed’ reservoir with an estimated GIIP of 958-372 Bcf (E.On)
=  Low permeability or ‘Tight Undeveloped’ reservoir with an estimated GIIP of 498 Bcf (E.On)

3.8.4, Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Historic gas sales are shown in Figure 3-33. There has been negligible water production in any well.
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Figure 3-33 Ravenspurn North Historic and Forecast Gas Production (Gross 100%}

Of the forty-two development wells, three never produced (tight}, nineteen have died and twenty are still
producing. The gas recovery per well varies from zero to 107 Bef with an average of 24 Bef/well, The range
is shown in Figure 3-34.
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Figure 3-34 Ravenspurn North Histeric Cumulative Gas per well

The last well drilled (F17) was horizontal and started production in 1997 and produced 34 Bcf to date. The
other horizontal well, F10 died in 1999 after producing 30 Bcf,

Figure 3-35 shows the monthly gas production over the past 3 years.
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Figure 3-35 Ravenspurn North Recent Historic Production

The average gas production in 2014 was 27.8 MMscf/d. The 2015 average up to end August has been 19.2
MMscf/d although there appears to have been a lengthy shutdown in July-Aug 2015.

RISC has reviewed the historic decline trend of the field and generated production forecast based upon:

= The forecast matched to actual field production up to end August 2015 and forecast from that point.

=  The 3P forecast is based on harmonic decline fitted to the field decline. Based on historic production,
well uptime is estimated at 56%. The uptime is low because on average wells are only open 17 days
per month. Most wells are on cyclical production with shut-in periods te re-charge reservoir pressure.

= The 1P forecasts is based on exponential decline fitted to the field decline. A lower well uptime of
45% is used to account for potential deterioration in well uptime,

=  The 2P forecast is mid way between the 1P and 3P.

The economic cutoff leads to uneconomic production in 2016, so reserves are based on 2015 only. This
truncated forecast is shown in Figure 3-36 below.
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Figure 3-36 Ravenspurn North Preduction Forecast (Developed Reserves)

Ravenspurn North gas sales are estimated to be 91.4% of production based on historical data, with the
remained used for offshore fuel including compression. The gas heating value {HHV) is estimated to he
37.5 MJ/m3 (1006 BTU/scf).

3.8.5. Future Development and Costs

There is ne firm further development planned. Workovers are being considered to install velocity strings.
It appears this work has not been suspended by the JV so we have not included the benefit in our reserves
assessment.

3.8.6.  Upside Opportunities {Contingent Resources)
Two upside opportunities have been identified:

= One or two horizontal infill wells in the North, with multistage fracs, expected to recover 25 Bcf over
15 years from mid 2018

=  Asecond phase of Heavy Duty Well Work on shut-in wells D2, D3, D4, D6 and D14 starting 2Q 2016.
The objective is to clear proppant from the wellbores using coiled tubing and restore production. The
cost is estimated to he £13.2 million and recover an incremental 6.6 Bef.

The previous Qperator {BP) conducted a similar operation and restored preduction in D1, D12 and D13.
However, the fill in three ather wells was too extensive and could not be removed. The Phase-2 work was
proposed in 2012 but not been carried cut yet. RISC classifies the resources as contingent, being
contingent on the project progressing.

As an example of the five clean-out candidates, Well D4 is an average well. It stopped production in 2008
at a rate of 1.5 MMscf/d and has been confirmed to contain proppant fill.

Figure 3-37 shows the stream day production history and exponential decline analysis.
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Figure 3-37 Ravenspurn Morth Well D4 Exponential Decline

Successful restart of D4 could recover an additional 2 Bcf from an initial rate of 1.5 MMscf/d. However
reservoir depletion since the well last produced in 2008 may reduce this rescurce,

RISC has analysed the historic production of the well work candidates, estimated the potential incremental
recovery, well rate and forecast as shown in Figure 3-38.
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Figure 3-38 Ravenspurn North Well Work Forecast

The 3C forecast is based on the coiled tubing operations restoring the pre shut-down performance in each
well. 10 Bcf of the 12 Bef technical ultimate recovery is recovered in 10 years. The 2C assumes 50% discount
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rate (compared to the 3C case) to account for the potential risk of depletion and risk of mechanical failure
of the clean-up operations. The 1C assumes 10% of the 3C case.

In addition to the workovers, two horizontal infill wells have been proposed in the tight reservair in the
horth,
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Figure 3-39 Ravenspurn North Proposed Infill Oppartunities

= Aninfill well north of DOS in a block of 220 Bcf GIIP with 31% recovery factor tc date from D01, D09,
D11, D12, D13 and D14. Average recovery per well to date is 11.4 Bcf.

= Aninfill well north of D10 in a block of 142 Bef GIIP and enly 9% recovery factor to date from D10.
Producticn from D10 is shown below:
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Figure 3-40 Ravenspurn North Well D10 Production History

A second well in the D10 block is likely to have similar performance +/- 50%.

RISC estimates that the infill opportunities could recover the same as previous wells in the block with the
higher productivity horizental design offsetting potential depletion. Therefore RISC estimates the flowing
centingent resources,

Table 3-13 Ravenspurn North Contingent Resources

Contingent Resource {Bcf, wellhead)} Gross 1c 2C 3c
D-09 Infill 5 12 12
D-10 Infill 6 12 18
well Work 1 5 10
Total 13 29 45

3.8.6.1, Capital Costs

E.On report £2.8m gross of CAPEX in 2015 for base production. It is not clear what activity this covers and
RISC was unable to validate if it was incurred. However RISC has included this sum in its forecasts.

In the upside case E.On forecast £13m gross (S4m net) in 2016 for workovers to remove proppant from 5
wells {wells D2, D3, D4, D6 and D14) and install velocity strings. Production as a result of these activities
are classified as contingent resources.

The two potential horizeontal infill wells in the tight reservair in the North of the field are estimated by E.On
to cost £120m gross. As the preoduction for Contingent Resources are is not included in our forecasts we
have not included these costs.
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3.8.6.2. Operating Costs

Operating costs at Ravenspurn North are forecast to cost £35m pa gross {$10m pa net) for 7 years. We
forecast reductions 10% pa after that, There is no incremental QPEX associated with the contingent
resources as production would come from existing wells.

Costs at this level are likely to be unsustainable given the modest production. This would also impact
lohnsten as Ravenspurn Morth is the host platform for the lohnstene subsea tieback.
3.8.6.3. Decommissioning Costs

E.On forecast decommissioning costs of £92m gross. We consider this to be too low and estimate costs in
the range £100-£200m. There is considerable uncertainty as we are unsure of the plans for
decommissioning the concrete gravity structure.

3.8.7. Reserves

RISC’s estimates of reserves are shown in Table 3-14.

Table 3-14 RISC Estimate for Ravenspurn Narth Field Reserves as at 1 Januwary 2015

Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
ip 2P {Proved + Probable +
(Proved) Probable) Possible)
Ravenspurn North
Field Reserves Gas Conde Gas Conde Gas Conde
(Bef) nsate (Bef) nsate (Bef) nsate
(MMBhbI) (MMBbI) (MMBBI)
Reserves at 01
January 2015 1.8 0 1.9 0 2.0 0
3.8.8. Contingent Resources

This first line in the table below is the additional volume that could technically be produced in the event
of higher gas prices, by an extension of the reserves forecast field life beyond an the economic limit. The
second line in the table refers to the sum of the upside development wells.
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3.9.1.

Table 3-15 RISC Estimate for Ravenspurn North Field Contingent Resources

@RISC

Net to E.On
Ravenspurn North Field 1C 2 3C
Contingent Resources Conde Conde Conde
Gas Gas Gas
(Bef) nsate (Bcf) nsate (Bef} nsate
{MMBbI) {MMBbI) {MMBhI)
Contingent Resources
not Classified as 14.4 0 13.2 0 22.0 0
Economic Reserves
ide D | t
Upside Developmen 13 0 ’g 0 16 0
Wells

Rita Gas-Condensate Field, blocks 44/22¢ & 44/21b (Licence P766 & P771}

Overview

Rita is a dual lateral subsea well tied back via Hunter 1o CMS.
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Figure 3-41 Location Map of Caister Murdoch System Fields

Development and Current Status

Rita is developed with a dual lateral well tied back to the Hunter field via a 14km, 8” carbon steel pipeline,
Hunter was developed with single subsea well and an 8km, 8" subsea tieback to Murdoch. Hunter
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production ceased in 2012 but the subsea pipeline was used for Rita production. There is also a flexible
flowline from Rita to Murdoch that was disconnected in 2012. Gas is aggregated at Murdoch and exported
via the 26" 188km CMS export line te Theddlethorpe gas terminal. The NUI is remotely operated from
Theddlethorpe. The layout of Hunter, Caister and Rita is shown in Figure 3-42 below,

Rita Hunter and Caister fields

CJ‘\VENDlSH
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Figure 3-42 Hunter, Caister and Rita Development Schematic

Rita was discovered in 1996, appraised in 1998 and started production in April 2009. No further
develocpment is planned. The field has experienced several long cutages due to pipeline and umbilical

integrity issues.

3.9.3. Reservoir Description and In Place Volumes

The Rita structure comprises two adjacent tilted fault block compartments, Rita West and Rita East,
accessed via two harizental wells 44/22¢-12 and 44/22¢-12z respectively. The reservoir for the Rita field is
the Carboniferous Westphalian C/D sands characterised by fluvial channel sandstones preserved beneath
the Base Permian Unconformity. Individual channel sands are up to 50 ft thick with overall net to gross
around 25% and porosities ranging from 6% to 10 %. E.On estimate a base case GIIP for Rita of 55 Bcf
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{estimated 48.9 Bcf recoverable — 89% recovery) with an upside GIIP estimate of 71 Bcf (estimated 51.2
Bcf recoverable — 72% recovery).

3.9.4, Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

Initial production of 70 MMscf/d declined to 30 MMscf/d in 2011 when production stoepped due to issues
with the flexible flowline. A new rigid flowline was installed and production restarted in 2013. Production
declined to 11 MiMscf/d after producing 38 Bcf.
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Figure 3-43 Rita Gas Production History

Rita's production was shut-in from late 2015, Investigations are underway as to cause and possible remedy
to the well failure. In the absence of clear plans and costs to reinstate production, for the purposes of
current valuation, we assume the field remains shut-in.

Figure 3-44 shows the production forecasts, hased on production decline modelling, for production being
restarted. The volumes after 2015 are attributed to the Caontingent Resources, not reserves.
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3.9.5. Future Development and Costs

No further development is planned.

3.9.6, Reserves

RISC's estimates of reserves are shown in Table 3-16. These are the volumes preduced during 2015.

Table 3-16 RISC Estimate for Rita Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
1P 2P {Proved + Probable +
(Proved) Probable) Possible)
Rita Field Conde Conde Conde
Reserves Gas Gas Gas
(Bef) nsate (Bch) nsate (Bef) nsate
[MMEDI] [MMEDI]) [MMEhI)
R T 1
eserves at @ 16 0.01 1.6 0.01 1.6 0.01
January 2015

3.9.7. Contingent Resources

This is the volume that could technically be produced by restarting production {Table 3-17). RISC assigns
no Contingent Resources from additional infill drilling.
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Table 3-17 RISC Estimate for Rita Field Contingent Resources

Net to E.On

Rita Field 1€ 2C ac

Contingent

Resources Gas Conde Gas Conde Gas Conde

(Bef) nsate (Bcf) nsate (Bef} nsate
[MIMEBDI) [(MMEhI) [(MMBhI)
Contingent
Resources not 3.8 0.02 45 0.03 5.1 0.04
Classified as
Economic Reserves
| |
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4. Undeveloped Discoveries

4.1. Qverview

@RISC

E.On have three undeveloped fields in the portfolio {Figure 4-1). RISC has reviewed these and offers the

following comments.

Jmirgron
Fan gl e Teerreea

4.2. Tolmount Gas Field, block 42/28d (licence P1330)

4.2.1, QOverview

Figure 4-1 Arran, Austen & Telmount Field Location Map

The Tolmount Field is situated in the UK Southern North Sea, Block 42/28d, Licence P.1330. The licence
was originally awarded, in the 23" Licencing Round, to Dana in 2005 with 100% equity, with E.On farming-

in at 50% equity and assuming Operatorship in 2010.

Tolmount Field was discovered by well 42/28d-12 in 2011, with further appraisal drilling of wells 42/28d-
13 and -13z in 2013 confirming the presence of high quality, Lower Leman Sandstone Formation reservoir.
A work programme of PSDIM seismic to evaluate and rank prospectivity, and mature locations to ‘drill-
ready’ status was underway at the time of the Information Memorandum {June 2015). Project SELECT
Phase activities were also ongoing in the form of subsurface activities, drilling studies, offshore surveys
and pre-development studies. The Final Investment Decision (FID) is expected in Q1 2017, with First Gas

2018.

1
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Figure 4-2 Area Map of Tolmount Field and surrounding prospects

4.2.2. Reservoir Description and In Place Volumes

The Tolmount Field sits within the Lower Leman Sandstone Formation Play Fairway to the south of the
Permian “Silver Pit Lake’ and north of the ‘Amethyst High'. Aeolian dunes and fluvial sands predominate,
with local sabkha and ‘wet’ /’damp’ inter-dune facies, deposited unconformably on the Carboniferous
{Base Permian Unconfarmity} terrain. Prevailing easterly winds dominate the orientation of dune
depasition, whilst the fluvial transport is predominantly from the south and scuthwest (Figure 4-3}.
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Figure 4-3 Lower Leman 5andstone Fm — Depositional Setting

4.2.2.1. Structure

The structure of Tolmount is linear, with a crest striking broadly northwest-southeast, with parallel faulting
setting up the structure, along with a set of faults perpendicular to strike. As a consequence of these two
fault sets, compartmentalisation is likely to be an issue. A Badley’s Fault Seal study has cencluded that the
northwest-southeast striking faults have a higher seal potential than those striking northeast-southwest.
Gas pressures appear to be on the same gradient and PVT analysis indicates no significant compositional
differences or evidence of gravitational gradient, suggesting equilibration over the geological time scale,
Overall, the Operator concludes there is a small risk of compartmentalisation. Where
compartmentalisation appears to be a risk, it can be mitigated to a large degree by drilling wells into the
largest ‘compartments’ and if necessary, across faults to maximise drainage.

4.2.2.2 Depth Muapping

RISC reviewed the quality of the data provided by E.On in the data room and found it good gquality but
limited in detail. The data room contained extensive data from the latest E.On depth conversion, the
associated E.On depth conversion report and a depth conversion report from an independent contractor
which was completed a year earlier.

E.On has elected to produce a 10 layer depth convarsion in model MV09vE, The layers reflect the major
velocity changes ohserved in the southern North Sea and is accepted as standard practice in depth
conversion in this area of the Southern North Sea. The surfaces both Two Way Time {TWT) and depth
included Seabed, Top Chalk, Base Chalk, Top Corallian, Top Bunter, Top Zechstein, Top Rotliegendes, Top
Leman and Carboniferous.

The TWT interpretation was validated by RISC in Premier’s office from the screen captures of various
seismic lines from the 3D seismic survey. The TWT grids honoured the seismic data apart from the edges
of the grids, which may have been an issue in the production of the grids, where the interpretation area
had not been defined. The Top Corallian TWT grid has been smoothed by E.On in order to remove the
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depth conversion artefacts seen below Top Corallian, due to the extensive faulting of the Corallian.
Inevitably this issue and approach will lead to some potentially large uncertainties in the depth conversion.

Table 4-1 E.On Depth Model 10 layer cake

Layer Interval Velocity Maodel

1 Water 1,500 m/s

2 Tertiary 2,200 m/s

3 Chalk v =-5.1T + Vo{map}
4 Base Chalk - Top Corallian Interval velocity map
5 Top Corallian - Top Bunter WV =-1.17 + VO[{map)
6 Bunter V = 0.857 + Voimap)
7 Zechstein Salt Interval velocity map
a Zechstein Anhydrite and Dolomite 6,000 m/s

] Silverpit 4 481 m/s

10 Leman 4,422 m/s

The lower Cretaceous and upper Jurassic is dominated by lower velocity mudstones and claystones which
push the top reservoir seismic pick down in TWT. The remaining Jurassic and Triassic has significantly more
evaporates and limestones which are higher velocity and represent a pull up in TWT. The splitting of the
Zechstein into high velocity Anhydrite (circa 20,000 ft/s) and lower velocity Halite (circa 15,000 ft/s) in
principle is a sound method, especially when the high velocity anhydrite layers can be mapped as in many
areas of the gas basin. However, E.On has not directly mapped the thickness of the Anhydrite and has
assumed a constant thickness. £.0n has used an interval velacity of 6,000m/s {19,685 ft/s), which is
acceptable in the Southern Gas Basin.

An audit of the E.On velocities has been carried out by producing Interval velacity maps from E.On TWT
and depth maps. In addition, the Interval velocities at the wells have been calculated from E.On well tops
and TWTs. The TWT values at the wells are understood to be pseudo TWTs. Interval velocities at wells have
been posted on interval velocity maps to observe how well the interval velocities used in the depth
conversion ties the interval velocity derived from the well data, Graphs of TWT at top and base of seismic
interval vs interval velocity were derived from E.On tops and time files and plotted on the velocity maps
as a further audit of the E.On model.

The Chalk interval velocity map exhibits the pogrest tie to the interval velocity at the wells, with the map
showing 300 m/s higher interval velocities at Tolmeunt. The Base Chalk to Corallian interval velocity map
has reasonable ties to the wells, although it does show lower interval velocities at Tolmount and may
compensate for the higher velocities of the Chalk. The interval velocity map of Top Corallian to Top Bunter
and Bunter interval velocity map match the well velocities and suggests that the E.On Madelling of this
layer is acceptable. E.On has elected to split the Zechstein into an Anhydrite layer of 120m with a velocity
of 6,000m/s and a Halite layer where they have depth converted by contouring the Halite interval
velocities. The derived Anhydrite interval velocity map shows the 6,000m/s velocity and slightly lower
Anhydrite well velocities at Tolmount. The derived Halite map is more uncertain, as it shows an increasing
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velocity trend to the north that is not readily visible in the derived well interval velocities. A single interval
velocity of 4,440 m/s (14,566 ft/s) for Halite may be more appropriate for the Tolmount area. The analysis
indicates that E.On have used a slightly higher Anhydrite velocity and slightly lower Halite velocity over
Tolmount that will compensate but will result in a larger error residual at Top Rotligendes reservoir.
Qverall, the E.On Depth conversion appears sound with the Chalk and Zechstein layers giving the largest
error residuals. The single interval velocities at the Silverpit of 4,481 m/s is reasonahle though slightly
higher than the 4,400 and 4,100m/s seen at the Tolmount wells.

The E.On interval velocities were validated by producing new interval velocity maps for each of the layers
an example is shown below.

Figure 4-4 Interval Velocity map Top Corallian-Bunter

The map shows all the wells in the area used to plot the TWT against the Interval velocity to give a
correlation of R?= 0.7554,
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Figure 4-5 Associated TWT vs Velocity plot

4,223, Gross Rock Volume estimation

The Top Leman depth map shows structural closure to the south and west of Tolmount at the GWC of
3,119 mTVYDSS. There is no structural closure to the North and West, The maps show that Tolmount ¢an
be closed by the faulting to the north and west hut it includes the area to the east named Mayar by E.On
and defined by the Cyan polygon on the map. There is no structural separation of Tolmount and Mayar
and it requires the Top Leman surface to be depressed by 75m locally to separate the areas. The Leman
isopach shows clear thinning between Tolmount and Mayar to 25-30m. The seismic in this area is below
seismic resolution and it is quite possible that the reserveoir is not deposited in this area at the northerm
limit of the Leman fairway. The separation of Mayar and Tolmount has been chosen on this basis.

1.

Figure 4-6 Leman Depth Map and Leman Isopach
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The two polygons Tolmount (red) and Mayar (blue) illustrated on Leman depth and isopach structure map
were used to calculate the P50.

The P50 GRV was calculated to the GWC of 3119m within each of the polygons for both Tolmount and
Mayar.

4.2.2.4. P10 and P90 GRV cases

RISC estimate Top Leman depth uncertainty across the Tolmount structure to be up to 3% or 75-105m at
any point away from well contral, with an average total structure uncertainty of +/-1%.

A residual error map has been derived by scaling the Top Lernan depth map by a factor of 0.01 giving an
isopach ranging between 25-35m. The residual error map has been added to the Top Leman depth map to
flex the surface deeper away from the wells. The error residual was also applied to the Top Carboniferous
and both surfaces were used to calculate the P90 GRV using a GWC at 3119m. The same process was used
to calculate the P10 surface, except the isopach was subtracted from both surfaces flexing them shallower
away from the wells,
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Figure 4-7 Tolmount Residual Error Map and resulting areas

On Mavar the area is predominantly above the GWC at 3,119 even on the P20 depth case. The main
variable that affects GRY on Mayar is Leman thickness. The P90 and P10 GRV cases on Mayar have been
derived by varying the Leman thickness by +/- 10%.

Table 4-2 Tolmount and Mayer GRY

GRV Tolmount Mayar
P90 527 x108m? 510 x108m}3
P50 809 x10° m* 560 x10%m?
P10 1,087 x10f m? 806 x10%m?
| I
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4.2.2.5, Reservoir
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The reservoir envelope has been defined by the Operator using seismic horizons at “Top Leman’ and ‘Base
Permian Unconformity’ {Top Carboniferous) across Tolmount and Mavar. Core and well log data from well
42/28d-12 indicate reservoir quality in the Leman Sandstone to be very good in sheet fload and aeolian
rock facies, with porosity typically in the 15-20% range, and permeability in the sheet flood facies of 10s
mD and in the aeolian facies in the 100s mD to 1000 mD. The well flowed at 51 MMscf/d and 525 bpd
condensate under test, with the majority of flow coming from the aeolian dune facies (hased on the
Production Logging Tool). The Operator has subdivided the reservoir into four main lithostratigraphic
packages: Lower Sand, Transitional Unit, Middle Shale and Upper Sand ({Figure 4-8). Further
characterisation by the Operator of the reservoir into facies, using core and logs has been undertaken,
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Regarvoir: Lowar Laman Sandstone Formation which is sub-divided
into four zones based on lithostratigraphic correlation and
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Figure 4-9 Tolmount Geological Summary

A Free Water Level has been interpreted at 3119 mTVDSS in -13z. No clear water leg has been identified
in any of the Tolmount wells in the reservoir. However, the Tolmount gas leg does intercept the regional
aquifer {wells 42/28a-4 and 42/29-5) at 3118 mTVD5S {Figure 4-10). To the N of the Field is the Mongour
discovery well {48/28-2). With very similar reservoir to Tolmount, it has a contact at 2994m, which may be
more representative of a Free Water Level in the Mavyar area than the observed contact in the Tolmount

well. Consequently, this has been used in modelling Mayar {a Rectangular distribution has been used:
29%4m to 3119m).

42128 Tolmount area: Formation pressure plot
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The Operator uses a Saturation Height function to model water saturation in the reservoir. Because only
limited core capillary pressure datz are available, which indicate an enhanced transition zone and
anomalously high irreducible water saturation {Swirr), considerable modelling efforts appear to have been
made to better understand water saturation, bhoth as a function of height above FWL and in relation to
facies {permeability}, A modified Lambda function has been used in the most recent work, height-
dependent Sw (water saturation} honouring Tolmount mercury injection data combined with log-derived
Swirr component, the Operator’'s Reference Case for reservoir modelling, as well as a variety of other
methods to test the sensitivity of the reservoir model to Sw. This Reference Case methodology seems to
provide a good match to the log-derived Sw (using the Archie equation),

4.2.2.6. Gas Initially In Place

The Operator has produced two Reference Case geological models for Tolmount/Mayar: one made
available to the Client in June 2015 and a second in August 2015, Upon request, E.On provided RISC with
outputs from a modified June 2015 model. RISC has reviewed this model and used it as a basis for
producing a probabhilistic range of GRVs for Tolmount and Mayar. These were output to REP {probabilistic
resource software) to estimate a probabilistic range of GIIP,

RISC’s probabilistic modelling of GIIP uses a simplistic approach to Sw/H modelling for water saturation,
by using the default Lambda function available in REP, providing a reasonable representation of Sw/H
without taking into account changes in facies/permeability.

Porosity has been derived using calibrations of well core data to well log data by the Operator which
appears to be robust.

Net-to-Gross is extremely high in the wells which have penetrated the reservoir. The Operator has used
VSH <0.40, Porosity »6% and Sw 0.70 as cut-offs. RISC have used representative average values from wells
-12 and -13 and used a log normal distribution.

Table 4-3 Tolmount and Mayar GIIP Estimates (RISC)

Raw Gas (Bcf, Gross)

Tolmount Field

P30 PS0 P10
In Place Volumes
RISC Estimate 285 500 769

Raw Gas (Bef, Gross)

Mavar Area

P90 P50 P10
In Place Volumes
RISC Estimate 30 152 382

RISC calculated In-place volumes for Telmount and Mayar independently.

Based on E.On’s updated interpretation of the depth conversion, their static reservoir model was updated.
No representation of this model was made available to RISC.
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4.2.3, Reservoir Performance and Production Forecasts

This gas field is under development planning and has not started production. RISC has evaluated the
Tolmount field reserves and production forecast at 1P/1C, 2P/2P and 3P/3C confidence levels.

4.2.3.1. Material Balance Methodology

RISC has created a material balance model with separate tanks representing the estimated volumes
drained by each well. The 1P/1C case is based on a high degree of compartmentalization and the 3P/3C
case is based on wells depleting the full field,

Deterministic cases were based on RISC's P90, P50 and P10 volumetrics. This provided RISC’s estimates of
the 1P/1C, 2P/2C and 3P/3C gas and condensate production profiles.

4.2.3.2. Production Forecast

Reservoir fluid properties are based on downhole fluid samplas that indicate consistent properties across
a range of samples. RISC used the reservoir fluid composition with standard industry correlations to
estimate the fluid properties of the gas. The condensate properties were based on PVYT reports conducted
on the downhole samples.

In generating the production forecasts, RISC has assumed that four wells are drilled in the period 2018-
2020. In the 3P/3C case a further well is added for Tolmount East {Mayar).

Production is curtailed at 2040, in line with the expiry of the current estimated economic limit of
approximately 3 MMscf/d in the 2C case.

RISC’s gas production forecast is shown below. We note that E.On has presented more optimistic forecasts,
due ta an increase in interpreted GIIP as a result of recent work.
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The recovery factors for the 1P/1C, 2P/2C and 3P/3C cases are 52%, 70% and 75% respectively, The
variation is due to the different drainage volumes far the wells in each of the cases. The 1P/1C case with
the lowest recovery factor is restrained by the wells’ limited drainage area, due to faulting and
compartmentalisation,

4.2.4. Future Development Plan

At the time of review, the project was at the Select Phase with ongoing subsurface activities, drilling
studies, offshore surveys and pre-development studies, The Final Investment Decision (FID} is expected in
Q1 2017, with First Gas 2019,

The development plan assumed in this evaluation comprises:

* 6 slot Minimum facilities, not normally manned platform {Topsides weight 1,456 tonnes}in 52m
water

= 3 platform wells and 1 subsea at Tolmount plus 1 further subsea well for Tolmount East {Mavar)
assumed only in the 3C case

= Subsea well tied back with 8" infield pipeline, 3" methanol line and control umbilical

*  Venrtical/low angle deviated wells completed in both major reservoir sands

= 51 completions with sand contral

" 49 km, 18" pipeline + 3" methanol line to an anshore terminal

=  Plant arrival pressure of 85 bar from 2019, with compression to 35 bar to maintain the plateau rate,
reducing further to 10 bar

= Plateau of 200 MMscf/d for 2P/2C and 3P/3C cases, 100 MMscf/d for 1P/1C case.

= Combined field and facility availability of 93%, plus 3 weeks of planned shutdown annually.

As part of the Concept Select studies E.On are also reviewing an option tc develop the field with a 127,
14km tieback to a separate third party facility.

*:n,.. ran
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Figure 4-12 Tolmount Development Schematic

4.2.5. Reserves

RISC has classified the Tolmount volumes as Reserves rather than Contingent Resources, as an economic
development has been found and the field is progressing towards development. SPE and PRMS guidelines
allow for Tolmount to be classified as Reserves under these circumstances even though the field has not
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reached a Financial Investment Decision. The Joint Venture group is currently investigating an alternative
develepment option, which may prove to be more economically attractive.

RISC's estimates of reserves are shown in Table 4-4, As the Proven (1P) volumes are not economic, there
are no reserves at the 1P level for Tolmount. These volumes are therefore placed in the Contingent 1C

category.

Table 4-4 RISC Estimate for Tolmount Field Reserves as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
3P {Proved +
ir 2P {Proved + Probable +
{Proved) Probable) Possible)
Telmount Field Conde Conde Conde
Reserves Gas Gas Gas
(Bef) nsate (Bef) nsate {Bcf} nsate
(MMBbI) {MMEDI] (MMBBI)
Reserves at 01

January 2015 0 0 169.4 1.549 416.7 3.698

4.2.6, Contingent Resources

Tolmount’s 1C volumes would be recategorised as reserves if an approved, economic development
scenario is achieved.

Table 4-5 RISC Estimate for Tolmount Field Contingent Resources as at 1 lanuary 2015

Net to E.On
Tolmount Field 1C 2C 3C
Contingent
Resources Gas Conde Gas Conde Gas Conde
(Bef) nsate (©cf) nsate (Beh nsate
[MMBbI) [(MMBbI) [(MMBDI)
Remaining
Technical
Recavery from 01 726 0.666 0 0 0 0
January 2015

4.3, Arran Gas-Condensate field, blocks 23/11, 23/16b, 23/16c¢ {Licences P359,
P1051, P1720)

Arran was formerly known as the Barbara-Phyllis field in the East Central Graben. Barbara is a Tertiary,
Forties sand discovery at 8,500 — 9,600 ft TVDSS on the northern flank of a salt diapir, and Phyllis is a
stratigraphic pinchout of Paleocene Forties reservoir draped across a southern low relief feature,
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The Fallow licence status expired in 2015 and an Environmeantal Survey would be required to extend this
licence. RISC has received no further update.

Dana Petroleum is the Operator (20.43207%) and E.On has 5.120% interest.

+ 2yt

Figure 4-13 Arran Field Structure Map

RISC has not reviewed the volumes of the Contingent Resources. The table below represent the volume

estimates of the Operator, based on simulations.

Table 4-6 Arvan Field, Operator’s Range of Simulated Cases

Contingent Resources {Gross} P30 P50 P10
GIIP (Bcf) 221.3 347.0 543.2
Gas Production (Bscf} 99.5 155.8 223.2
Condensate Production ([MMSTEB) 2.7 4.2 6.4

Since April 2013 the Arran group have been working toward a revised development scheme for the field.
Current studies focus on a three well subsea development tied back to the Shearwater Platform.
Engineering studies are in progress to confirm the technical and commercial viability of this option and

were expected to be complete mid-2015. RISC has received no further update,

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)
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The Arran group was working in parallel with other nearby undeveloped field owners to identify potential

develepment synergies, which could better secure an economically viable development with earliest
development sanction in late 2016.

4.3.1. Contingent Resources

These volumes could be expected to be recategorised as reserves if an approved, economic development
scenario s achieved.

Table 4-7 Estimate for Arran Field Contingent Resources as at 1 January 2015

Net to E.On
Arran Field 1C 2C ac
Contingent
Resources Gas Conde Gas Conde Gas Conde
nsate nsate nsate
(BeR) {MMBbI) Bef) (MMBbI) (B<) [MMBbI)
Remaining
T ical
echnica 5.1 (0.138 8.0 0.215 11.4 0.328
Recovery from 01
lanuary 2015

4.4, Austen Gas-Condensate Field, block 30/13b (Licence P1823)

The Austen field is located in hlock 30/13b {licence P079), east Central Graben, south of ConocoPhillips’ J-

Block area, and includes a gas condensate discovery and two oil discoveries with several unappraised
cempartments. The Operator is GDF Suez.
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Figure 4-14 Austen Field Location Map
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Austen was formerly known as the Josephine field and the initial licence term had an expiry of January
2015 with a second term ending in January 2019. RISC has received no further update. There is an
outstanding contingent well into the Triassic which is contingent on seismic and the Operator has
requested Qil and Gas Authority to waive this.
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Figure 4-15 Austen Field Depth Map

The joint venture group was seeking project sanction in 2016, with first gas in 2012. Although the field
qualifies for small fields tax allowance, Austen is not viable as a standalone development and requires a
jeint development with the nearby Talbot field (operated by Talisman} tied back over ConocoPhillips’ 1-
Block. Talhot requires a Field Development Plan to be submitted by the end of 2015, with first oil projected
in November 2017.

RISC has not reviewed the volumes of the Contingent Resources. The Operator holds a range of gross field
recoverable volumes from approximately 46 Bcf to 87 Bcf based on modelling estimates from different
models.

1 I
RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 80



@RISC

5. Processing Terminals and Pipelines

5.1. Caister Murdoch System (CMS)

The CMS facilities consist of a 267, 180 km pipeline te Theddlethorpe Gas Terminal {TGT). Although CMS
has capacity to take further gas, it is planned to be decommissionad in 2018, The Caister and Murdoch
fields each own a 50% share in CMS. E.On holds a 20% interest from its 40% interest in the Caister field.
All costs and revenues, including tariff income, are shared on the same equity basis. Caister and Murdoch
do not pay a tariff to CMS for transportation of their own gas and under the respective Transportation and
Processing Agreements {TPAs}. CMS is required to pay a part of the tariff to the TGT owners {ConocoPhillips
50% and BP 50%) to have gas processed and redelivered at the entry point to the National Transmission
System.
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Figure 5-1 Location Map of CMS

All the TGT User fields should now be in Cost Share negotiated with TGT Operator ConocoPhillips based
on Firm Capacity bookings. The exception is Hunter field, which has a zero Firm Capacity booked. The CMS
owners ConocoPhillips and BP have elected to put User Fields into cost share because of low tariff receipts
compared 1o the operating costs and also the imminent departure of ConocoPhillips as operator of TGT,
which is expected within the next three to four years.

2015 Opex was £25.9 million & 2015 Capex was £3.0 million, Forecast Opex and Capex from the 2016
Budget are £33.8 million and 2.7 million. Beyond 2015, virtually all gas passing through the CMS pipeline
will be from 3™ party fields operating on a cost share basis. RISC has therefore assumed no tariff revenue
and that all operating costs are paid by third parties until the pipeline ceases operation in 2018, with
decommissioning in 2019, As a result, there is no net income or costs until abandonment.

There are discussions related to life extensions beyond 2018, however these are considered upside
scenarios only and have not been valued due to the uncertainty.
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5.2. Esmond Transportation System (ETS)

The Trent and Tyne Fields and the Esmond Transmission System (ETS) pipeline (E.On 30%) are operated by
Perenco UK as a single system known as the East Anglia Gas and Liguids Evacuation System (“EAGLES”).
The system operates under the EAGLES Operating Agreement. Under the EAGLES Operating Agreement,
all ETS operating costs are allocated to the Trent and Tyne Field owners’ account. The ETS owners incur no
operating costs or capital costs. ETS Pipeline abandenment costs are to be shared 50:50 with the Trent
and Tyne Field owners.

ETS abandonment is likely to consist of flooding the pipeline, capping and leaving it in situ. E.On do not
appear to carry abandonment costs (based on data provided by E.On in the data room) and RISC has
assumed £20 million.

The Cygnus field, operated by GDF Suez, is a large gas develepment located in the southern North Sea with
reserves of approximately 600 Bcf, first gas anticipated in 2016 and with a field life of 20 years. The field is
contracted to use ETS and therefore ETS is unlikely to face abandonment in the near term. E.On advises
net revenue from Cygnus is forecast to be £4.2m pa when the field is on plateau. This will decrease when
the field drops off plateau, farecast to be around 2020.

Due to the age of the pipeline and the long forecast period, RISC's scenario is that after 10 years some
pipeline remediation werk is required of approx £10 million. According to the terms of the Transportation
agreement, this will result in 509% tariff being payable for an eight year period.

é iFLiura - GaF )

Figure 5-2 Location Map of ETS

5.3. Theddlethorpe Gas Terminal {TGT}

As operators of TGT, ConocoPhillips have established a new agreement with Shippers (terminal users) to
share £153 million of costs under a new agreement for the Freon replacement project at Theddlethorpe
Gas Terminal (TGT)}, which is required to stop usage of chlorofluorocarbons. The proposed new agreement
affects the CMS fields in which E.On have an interest {Caister, Rita, Hunter}.
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There are provisions under the existing Transport and Processing Agreements to allow TGT owners
ConccoPhillips and BP to recover costs. These fall into three categories:

1. Costshare

2. Madification cost

3. Tariff renegotiation

TGT shippers pay a share of TGT Freon Project costs in accordance with this supplemental agreement. This
is eguivalent to an increase in operating costs for the CMS fields.

The original 2013 installed total cost estimate has doubled to approximately £219 million gross. The new
agreement applied from 1% October 2014 and runs for the remainder of the TGT Freon Project. The Freon
replacement project is due to complete in 2016,
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RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 83



@RISC

6. Exploration Potential

6.1. OQOverview

E.On have identified a significant portfolic of discoveries and exploration opportunities in the form of
prospects and leads from three distinctly different geological regions of the UK North Sea and comprising
a wide range of subsurface risks. The portfolio comprises discoveries and mature exploration
opportunities, both near to existing producing fields and infrastructure and within exploration licences
away from their core areas.

RISC has reviewed the Operator’s interpretation for a selection of key discovery and prospect assessments
{Table 6-1}) and provides the following summary comments. The discoveries and prospects discussed here
are deemed to be either sufficiently advanced in their technical assessment and/or low risk and/or with
significant estimated recoverable resources. In addition, RISC has carried cut an independent assessment
of Geological Chance of Success {GCoS) for each but has not been supplied with enough data to
independently derive volume estimates. The Operator’s Chance of Success [where available) and best
estimate Prospective Resource are reported in this section of the report.

Table 6-1 Discoveries and Key Prospects

Operator’s Best
Region Prospect/Discovery Name Field Area Estimate Prospective
Resource (MMboe)
Central North Sea Corfe Discovery Elgin & Franklin 17
Central North Sea Ekland Prospect Huntington &7
Southern North Sea Cobra Discovery Babbage 33
Southern North Sea Hawking Discovery Babbage 14.3
Southern North Sea Ada Prospect Babbage 3
Southern North Sea Newton Prospect Babbage 32
Southern North Sea Python Prospect Babbage 10.7
southern North Sea Artemis Discovery Tolmount 27
Southern North Sea Artemis East Prospect Tolmount 7.9
Southern North Sea Mongour Discovery Tolmount 141
Southern North Sea Malin prospect Tolmount 27
| |
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6.2. Elgin/Franklin Field Area

E.On are non-operator partners in the Elgin-Franklin Field licences as well as the P1262 exploration licence
to the west. The 2015 Corfe Discovery is discussed in section 6.2.1, with additional prospectivity
summarised in Table 6-12. Elgin, Franklin and West Franklin are high pressure-high temperature (HPHT}
gas-condensate fields in the Central North Sea operated by Total.

-gr

Figure b-1 Location Map for Elgin and Franklin Fields and near field prospectivity

6.2.1. Corfe Discovery, block 29/3b (P1626 Licence)

The High Pressure, High Temperature (HPHT) Corfe Prospect in Block 29/3b was drilled in Q1-Q2 2015 with
the primary target being the Joanne and Judy sands of the Triassic Skagerrak Formation and a secondary
target of the Jurassic Fulmar Formation. The main Triassic objective was found to be water wet and the
secondary Fulmar objective found to be gas bearing (gas shows, logs and sample). VYolumes were initially
reported to be in the range of 8 — 17 — 32 MMboe gross recoverable. HP and HT conditions were reported
as 14,873 psia and 168°C raspectively.

The Fulmar Corfe discovery is defined as a tilted fault hlock with 3 way dip closure and fault closure to the
northeast. The lateral fault seal is against the Kimmeridge Clay Formation. The Fulmar appears to be thin
in this area (17m gross thickness in the well} and is interpreted as a wedge that thins towards the fault,
causing problems with imaging as the Fulmar is below tuning thickness across most of the defined area of
the discovery. This is highlighted by an absence of amplitude anomaly over the discovery coincident with

1 I
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the area within tuning. Reservoir thickness appears to be one of the main uncertainties for the discovery.
This has been addressed by sensitivity modelling where different wedge models and Fulmar thicknesses
were used to generate a set of post-well volumes for the Corfe Discovery.

Prospective resources are reported to range from P90 - 3.58 MMboe to P10 - 56 MMboe as dependant on
the sensitivity model as ocutlined in the table below.

Table 6-2 E.On's Post Corfe well analysis — sensitivity on gross prospactive resources (MMboe)

Gross Thin Fulmar Thick Fulmar Fulmar 30m Thin Fulmar Thick Fulmar
Prospective Modelled Modelled Constant Faulted Model Faulted model
Resources Pinch-out Pinch-out Thickness (thicker crest) (thicker crest)
{MMboe)
PS0 3.58 9.3 8.15 8.49 13.8
PSO 7.72 213 15.6 17.3 28.1
P10 15.7 43.3 29.1 33.3 q6

The same petrophysical parameters were used for all cases above with porosity ranging from 15-17.3-20%
{P80-P50-P10) and Net to Gross ranging from 40-55-70% {P90-P50-P10} (the saturation range was not
reported). The contacts used were 4,955m — MIN and 5,150m — MAX which are approximately based on
Gas Down Te (GDT) and the deepest structural contour with amplitude anomaly conformance respectively.

The latest TCM meetings available in the data room are from June 2014, pre-drill. It is assumed that the
post well evaluation work on the discovery is ongoing, In the absence of definitive volumes, the
recoverable resource range of 8-17-32 {gross) MMboe initially reported past drilling is deemed
appropriate. This range covers the majority of outcomes characterised by the sensitivity analysis reported
by the Operator in August (Table 6-2).

6.3.

E.On participate as operators and non-operators in two exploration licences south of the Huntington Field.
The main prospect, Ekland, targets the Fulmar Formation. The Skagerrak Formation provides a secandary
target.

Huntington Area

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092) Page 8G
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Figure 6-2 Location Map for Huntington Field and near field praospectivity

Ekland Prospect {P2184 Licence)

M E On E&P North Sea Infermation Memorandum Yalume 2 June 2015

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)

The Ekland Prospect is located in Blocks 22/18¢ and 22/19d which were awarded to E.On as operator in
December 2014 as part of the 28" offshore licencing round. The prospect is located approximately 20km
south of the Huntington Field on a fault terrace to the east of the Forties/Montrose high. The Operator
dentifies the key risk as reservoir presence,

Operator’s Ekland Best Estimate’ Prospective Resource (Gross Unrisked): 67 MMboe. Operator’s Ekland
GCoS: 30%.
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6.3.1.1.  RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Ekland

Table 6-3 RISC GCo5 for the Ekland Prospect

Ekland GLoS GCos Key Risks
Prospect {%) (%6}
Main structural trap is well defined fault bound
Trap 90 and dip closed fault terrace. The Fulmar play
requires stratigraphic trapping with a wedge of
Fulmar interpreted within the main structure.
Trap is well defined, despite regquiring
Containment 54 stratigraphic closure, but this risk is captured in
reservoir presence. Top seal is provided by
Cretaceaus chalk and marls. Base seal from
Seal 60 underlying Triassic is required to give separate
Jurassic accumulation, otherwise a fault seal is
required for a joint lurassic/Triassic
accumulation.
Reservoir presence is inferred between the BCU
Reservoir 50 and the top Triassic seismic reflectors. The two
presence closest wells, already drilled on the main
structure, did not contain Fulmar Formation.
. However, well 22/18-6 (Wood Field) approx.
Reservoir >0 10km to the southwest did contain oil bearing
Reservoir Fulmar Fm. Immediately beneath the BCU
affectiveness 100 proving the concept can work in this area. If
reservoir is present it is likely to be of good
guality, analogous to the Wood Field.
Source 100 Proven hydrocarbon generation from the
Kimmeridge Clay Formation within the East
Source 30 Central Graben. Migration is seen as low risk
Timing and given the Wood Field to the west and the Birgitta
Migration 80 discovery to the scuth. Gas condensate is the
expected HC phase.
RISC GCo5
(%) 22 22
The key risk identified on the Ekland prospect is reservoir presence. The Fulmar Fm is
Description inferred ?n seismic‘ and Ifulmar is abéent in the two closest wells to the prospgct. Seal is
of key risks also considered a risk, with the reguirement for a base seal to separate Jurassic sand
from underlying Triassic sands and if both are connected the requirement for a fault seal
to the east.
| |
RISC — Project Eva CPR {15.0092) Page 88

144




@RISC

6.4. Babbage Area

There are a number of Discoveries, Prospects and Leads in the immediate area around Babbage including
Ada, Hawking, Newton, Cobra and Python discussed here. These are all discoveries in, or targeted at, the
Lower Leman Sandstone reserveir, although in some cases there is either Carboniferous reservaoir
immediately underlying or Carboniferous potential.
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Figure 6-3 Location Map for Babbage Field and near field prospectivity

6.4.1. Ada Prospect, block 48/2

The ‘Ada’ prospect (formerly ‘Babbage South’} is an undeveloped area to the SE of Babbage, largely
beneath the ‘salt wall” which runs W-E across the structure. If successful it will likely require subsea tie-
backs to the platform. No decision yet to drill; scheduled ‘Drill/No drill’ was June 2015, but does not appear
to have been made (disagreement within JV).

Seismic attribute work by the Operator suggests that reservoir quality may be better than seen in Babbage
and may not need to be fracced, but it is recognised that further risk reduction is unlikely and the well
therefore needs to be drilled to properly assess the prospect.

The Cperator carries a mid-case GIIP of 127 bef with prospective resources of 18 bef (14% RF).

Operator’s Ada Best Estimate Prospective Resource {Gross Unrisked): 3 MMboe.

L E.On E&P North Sea Infermation Memorandum Yalume 2 June 2015
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Table 6-4 RISC GCoS for the Ada Prospect

Ada Prospect GCoS (%} GCoS Key Risks

The trapping mechanism is unclear due to
Trap a0 the ‘salt wall’: may be a structural dip
closure or fault combination. The lateral
Seal may be a combination of fault seal
Seal ag and overlying shales of the Silverpit, or
Zechstein evaporites/carbonates.

Containment 81

The reservoir is assumed to be the same as
Reservair presence 90 the adjacent Babbage field. Reservoir
effectiveness therefore is likely to he

R i 1
i eservolr 8 similar to Babbage wells, i.e. aeclian,
Reser\‘.fmr ap fluvial and some associated lacustrine
effectiveness (sabkha} facies.
Hydrocarbon generation is proven from

Source 100 the underlying Carboniferous coals, with

Source 100 negligible risk to Timing and Migration due
Timing and 100 to proximity of Babbage. Gas is the
Migration expected HC phase.
RISC GCoS {%) 66 66
Description of key This is a near-field step-out and, but for the presence of the ‘salt wall’ would likely be
risks considered a development well rather than appraisal.

6.4.2. Hawking Discovery, Block 48/2b

Hawking is a one-well gas discovery (48/2b-3) characterised as a high relief tilted fault block adjacent to
the southern extent of the Bahbage Field. The fluid contact is interpreted by the Operator as a GDT at
3280m that could be potentially deeper. The Operator mapped the structure using the 2011 GXT
reprocessed seismic data which has revealed a larger structure than originally mapped suggesting, in a
high case that the spill point may be aligned with Babbage FWL at 3370m. Potential upside exists if there
is a sealing De Keyser fault between Babbage and Hawking,

This structure is high relief with dip closure to the south and west. Structural spill point is mapped close to
the Babbage FWL and may therefore be in communication. Trapping is by fault seal and dip closure, with
the lateral Seal formed in part by fault seal and part by overlying shales and silts of the Silverpit Formation.
Situated along the margin of the Leman Fairway, the Leman Sandstone reservoir is present in the discovery
wall and surrounding fields. Reservoir facies are likely to be similar to offset wells in the area, i.e. aeolian,
fluvial and associated lacustrine {sabkha) facies. Reservoir effectiveness is expected to be poor, as in
Babbage, with low permeability (due to illitisation) observed in the discovery well. Interception of natural
fracture networks or hydraulic fracturing will likely be required for successful development wells.

Operator’s Hawking Best Estimate'” Prospective Resource {Gross Unrisked): 14.3 MMboe. Operator's
Hawking GCoS: 81%.

2 E On E&P North Sea Infermation Memorandum Yolume 2 June 2015
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6.4.3. Newton Prospect 48/3b

Lies in a tilted fault klock, similar to the producing Johnston Field, approximately 10 km east of the Babbage
Field. The reserveir appears not to have been as deeply buried as Babbage. The trap is defined as a large
3-way dip closure against a clearly defined fault to the southwest. Structural dip is considered critical in
the NW direction to maintain gas migration through the Leman from the south. The Operator considers
dip closure rather than up-dip fault closure to be the key control on gas emplacement and protection from
illitisation.

Operator's Newton Best Estimate!® Prospective Resource [(Gross Unrisked): 32 MMboe. Operator’s
Newton GCoS: 32%.

6.4.3.1. RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Newton

Tahle 6-5 RISC GCoS for the Mewton Prospect

Newton GCo% GCoS Key Risks
Prospect {9%) (%}
Trap 70 Formed of a tilted fault block, dip closed to the NW.
Containment 29 Trapping by fault seal and dip closure, with Iat?ral Seal
formed in part by fault seal and part by overlying
Seal 70 shales and silts of the Silverpit Fmn.

. Situated along the margin of the Leman Fairway, ‘tight’
Reservoir 90 reservoir is present in the 48/3-4 well, down dip and in
presence surrounding fields, Reservoir effectiveness is likely

Reservaoir 54 similar to nearby wells, i.e. aeolian, fluvial and some
Y— o assogated |Iacus,‘trme {sabkha) fa||:|fes, and would )
effectiveness require we I?f\ to mterce:pt natural fracture netwerks
and/or multi-fracced, like Babbage.
Source 100 Proven.hydrocarbon ge_nera.tionl from the underlving
Carboniferous coals. Migration into the Leman is well
y Source 70 established {residual gas in the 48/3-4 well). Gas is the
Timing and
. . 70 expected HC phase.
Migration
RISC GCoS
19 19
(%)
Key risks are Containment and Reservoir effectiveness. Size of the structure is a risk despite
Descrintion the extensive seismic processing work. Reservoir effectiveness appears to rely on sarly gas
of ke Fr'isks migration into the structure ta keep it ‘illite-free’, otherwise fracc’ing would be reguired in a
y success case. Despite Operator comment that ‘illite-free” unpredictable, E.On has chosen to
use un-illitised field analogues {28'"" Round Application, App.B).

13 £ On E&P North Sea Information Memarandum Volume 2 June 2015
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6.4.4, Cobra Discovery and Python Prospect 48/1h, 48/2b (Licence P.2212) and 48/1¢ (P2301)

Cobrais a two well discovery, with atight gas reservoir. The GDT implies a larger structure than the original
mapping could be shown to close, Re-mapping using 2011 GXT seismic data resulted in an interpretation
by the Cperataor of a suspected De Keyser fault sealing at the NW end of Babbage and continuing on past
the northwestern up-dip part of the greater Cobra structure. Fault seal analysis predicts a sealing capacity
to within seismic resolution {15m) of the GDT. Therefore the structure is broken into several segments,
with Python considered as a separate prospect.

The Cobra discovery trap relies on fault seal and dip closure with the lateral seal farmed in part by fault
seal and part by the overlying shales and silts of the Silverpit Formation. The Leman Formation sandstone
reservoir is present in the discovery wells and in surrounding fields with the reservoir characterised as
aeolian and fluvial facies with some associated lacustrine (sabkha) facies. Migration into the Leman is
proven in one segment of the discovery by the discovery wells. However, the timing of fault seal may he
important for the charging of further fault bound segments, including the Python Prospect, if pathways
rely on “fill-and-spill’ model.

Operator’s Cobra Best Estimate’ Prospective Resource (Gross Unrisked}: 33 MMboe. Operator’'s Cobra
GCoS: 80%.

Operator's Python Best Estimate!® Prospective Resource [Gross Unrisked): 10.6 MMboe. Operator’s
Python GCoS: 80%.

14 FE On E&P North Sea Information Memorandum Volume 2 June 2015
15 E On E&P North Sea Information Memarandum Volume 2 June 2015
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6.4.4.1, RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Python
Table 6-6 RISC GCoS for the Python Prospect
Python GCoS GCoS Key Risks
Prospect {94} (%6}
Dip closure against seismically defined fault/s. Trapping
Trap 70 relies on fault seal and dip closure, and lateral Seal is
Containment 49 farmed in part by fault seal and part by the overlying

| 5 shales and silts of the Silverpit Fm. {or Zechstein
Sea 0 evaporites/ carbonates).
Reservoir Situatec‘l eflong the margin of the Leman Fairway, the
presence 80 reservoir is present in offset wells and nearby fields.

. Reservoir effectiveness is likely similar to surrounding
Reservoir 81 ) , . .
" . area wells, i.e. aeolian, fluvial and some associated
cservoir 90 lacustrine {sabkha} facies,
effectiveness
Source 100 Proven_hvdrocarban ge_nera_tlon fram the underlyfng
Carboniferous coals. Migration dependent on timing of
. Source 63 fault seal. Gas is the expected HC phase.

Timing and 70
Migration
RISC GCoS {%) 28 28

Description of
key risks

Although proved in Cobra, the main risks to this Prospect within the play fairway remain on Trap

and Seal, and Migration.

6.5.

Tolmount Area

A number of Discoveries, Prospects and Leads can be found in the immediate area around the Tolmount
Field including Artemis, Artemis East, Mongour and Malin discussed here, These are all discoveries in, or

targeted at, the Lower Leman Sandstone reservoir.

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)
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Figure 6-4 Location Map for Talmount Field and near field prospectivity

6.5.1. Artemis Discovery and Artemis East Prospect (Licence P2136)

Artemis is a tight gas discovery, located in Block 47/3k between the Apollo and Minerva Fields,
approximately 10km south of the Tolmount Field. The discovery well 47/3-2, drilled in 1274 encountered
gas bearing Leman Sandstone reservoir which was appraised by well 47/3b-6A. Both wells were tested
with low flow rates due to tight reservair being encountered, (n 2002 BG drilled a horizontal well 47/3b-
12 in an attempt to develop the Field in a similar fashion to the Minerva and Apollo Fields. The well was
ultimately a failure, intersecting pocrer reservoir quality sands than expected with the well returning sub
cormmercial flow rates.

The trap is well defined and is described as a fault-bounded anticline trending northwest — southeast with
faults to the northeast and socuthwest and dip closure to the northwest and southeast. The FWL was not
penetrated in either of the two vertical wells and is interpretad to be 10850 ft TVDSS from regional
pressure data. The Artemis East prospect to the northeast has the same structural configuration as the
Artemis discovery.

The reservoir is the Leman Sandstone comprising a complex interfingering mix of Aeolian, sabkha and
fluvial facies with the fluvial facies dominant. Reserveir quality is moderate in terms of porasity and poor
in terms of permeability. Matrix permeability is occluded by secondary illite precipitation, which is at odds
to the adjacent Apollo and Minerva Fields, leading to the interpretation that the Artemis structure may
have hean more deeply buried hefore inversion during the Cretaceous. It is thought likely that the reservoir
within the Artemis East Prospect would be similar. The QOperator plans to develop the reservoir via long
horizontal / sub-horizontal fracced wells, Consequently, the high cost of developing Artemis East {if drilled
and successful) with its relatively small volume is anly thought economically viable if the Artemis Discovery
is developed first.
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Operator's Artemis Best Estimate!® Prospective Resource (Gross Unrisked): 27 MMboe. Operator’s
Artemis GCoS: 80%.

Operator’s Artemis East Best Estimate!’ Prospective Resource (Gross Unrisked): 7.9 MMboe. Operator’s

Artemis East GCoS: 80%.

6.5.1.1.  RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Artemis East Prospect

Table 6-7 RISC GCoS for the Artemis East Prospect

Artemis East GCoSs GCoS Key Risks
Prospect {96} (%}
Well defined northwest — southeast trending fault
Trap 90 bound anticline. Fault closure 1o the nartheast and
southwest with dip closure to the northwest and
. southeast. Top seal provided by the overlying Silverpit
Containment 72 . . .
claystones and Zechstein evaporites. Lateral fault seal is
juxtaposition of Lernan sands against Silverpit
Seal 80 claystones. In the high case Artemis East may be
connected to the Artemis Discovery.
Situated along the margin of the Lermnan Fairway, the
Reservoir 100 reservoir is present in the surrounding discoveries and
presence fields. However, ‘tight’ reservoir is present in the wells
. on Artemis and similar reservoir properties can be
Reservair a0 .
expected at Arternis East. Gas was successfully flowed to
Reservoir surface in the wells drilled on Artemis, but at sub-
effectiveness 20 economic rates. Successful development is likely to
require long horizontal / sub-horizontal fracced wells,
Source 100 Proven.hydrocarbon ge_nera.tionl from the underlying
Carboniferous coals, Migration into the Leman is well
. Source 100 established. Gas is the expected HC phase.
Timing and 100
Migration
RISC GCoS (%) 65 65
Description of | Key risks is resarvair effectiveness. As in the Artemis Discovery successful development of a
key risks potential discovery at Artemis East is likely to involve fraccing.

6.5.2. Mongour Discovery [Licence P1330)

The Mongour Discovery is located in Block 42/28C, between the Tolmount Field and the Wollaston Field.
The discovery well 42/28-2 was drilled in 1973 discovered gas-bearing sands within the Leman Sandstone
interval with a GDT of 9800 ft TVDSS. Another well, 42/28-4 drilled approximately 1.5km to the northwest,
penetrated a thicker section of Leman Sandstones but was found to be dry. This well is mapped within a
topographic low whilst the 42/28-2 well is mapped as a small 4-way dip closure.

RISC recognises value in a future development only if the discovery forms part of a larger structure,
extending to the north and south, bound by faults. The Operator proposes this as a high case scenario, for
which RISC provides a GCoS below.

16 E.On E&P North Sea Information Memorandum Yolume 2 June 2015
Y E.On E&P North Sea Infermation Memorandum Yalume 2 June 2015
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Operator’s Mongour Best Estimate!® Resource (Gross Unrisked): 14.1 MMboe.,

Operator's Mongour High Case Estimate'® Resource {Gross Unrisked}: 33.4 MMboe.

6.5.2.1.  RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Mongour Discovery {High Case}

Table 6-8 RISC GCoS for the Mongour Discovery {high case)

Mongour GCoS GCoS Key Risks
Discovery High {%) (%)
Case

Using the GDT in the 42/28-2 well gives two separate
small closures within the prospect area. The high case
Trap a0 trap is reliant on fault seals to the north separating the
prospect from the Wollaston Field and to the south. The
fault seal to the south is likely to be effective as
Containment 32 suggested by a deeper GWC in the Tolmount Field. Top
seal is provided by the overlying shales and silts of the
Silverpit Fm. Some mapping and depth cenversion

Seal 40 uncertainty exists relating to the faulted region in the
centre of the larger closure and the topographic low
associated with the dry 42/28-4 well.

Reservoir 100 The Leman Sandstone is proven in the twe wells drilled

presence within the main structure and reservoir is shown to be
) Reservoir 100 effective from caore data in these wells.

Reservoir 100

effectiveness

Proven hydrocarbon generation from the underlying

S 100
ouree Carboniferous coals. Migration into the Leman is
Timing and Source 100 | established by the discovery wells and surrounding
ning 100 discovered fields. Gas is the expected HC phase.
Migration
RISC GCo5 (%) 32 32

The key risk is identified as containment. A gas discovery in the 42/28-2 well proves the low case
volume, however in the high case sealing faults are required to the north and south with some
uncertainty on the exact size of the container.

Description of
key risks

6.5.3. Malin Prospect (P1330 Licence)

The Malin Prospect is located 2km east of the Tolmount Field in Block 42/28d. The trap is described as a
tilted fault block with fault closure to the west and north, but the closure to the south and east is unclear
due to poor imaging as a result of a salt wall. The reservoir target is the Permian Leman Sandstanes proven
in the adjacent fields and discoveries. Source and charge are also well proven in this area.

Operator's Malin Best Estimate?® Prospective Resource {Gross Unrisked): 27 MMboe. Operator's Malin
GCoS: 27%.

¥ £ On E&P North Sea Information Memorandum Yolume 2 June 2015
19 E.On E&P North Sea Information Memorandum Yolume 2 June 2015
20 E On E&P North Sea Infermation Memorandum Yolume 2 June 2015
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6.5.3.1, RISC estimation of Geological Chance of Success for Malin Prospect

Tahle 6-9 RISC GCoS for the Malin Prospect

Malin Prospect GCoS GCo%S Key Risks
{%) (%)

The trap is poorly defined on the southern and

Trap 30 western margins due to imaging problems associated
with a salt wall, Further work to improve the seismig

Containment 24 image guality could de-risk the prospect. Fault

Seal 80 closures to the north and west appear to offset
Leman against the overlying shales of the Silverpit
Fm. which also provides the top seal for the prospect.

Reservoir %0 The presence and reservoir gquality of the Leman

presence Sandstone is proven in the adjacent Tolmount and

) Reservoir 50 Whittle Fields and Mongour Discovery.
Reservoir 100

effactiveness

Proven hydrocarbon generation from the underlying

S5 e 100
oure Carboniferous coals. Migration into the Leman is
Timing and Source 100 established by the discovery wells and surrounding
. . 100 discovered fields. Gas is the expected HC phase.
Migration
RISC GCoS {%) 2?2 22

Description of The key risk is trap definition. A viable trap cannot be defined on the current dataset.
key risks

6.5.4. Prospective Resources Summary

RISC has not valued the Exploration potential. There are six prospects, which have reached a mature level
in order to be relatively confident of a calibrated Geological Chance of Success. However, six is not a
statistically significant population, and therefore a calculation of Estimated Monetary Value (EMV) of the
portfolio of exploration prospects will have wide error bars and will nct fully reflect the range of potential
outcomes.
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Table 6-10 Operator’s gross Prospective resources of key discoveries

Contingent Resources
Operator Best Estimate Gross
Discovery Prospective Resource
{MMboe)
Hawking 14.3
Cobra 33
Artemis 27
Mongour 14.1
Corfe 17
TOTAL 105.4

Table 6-11 Operator’s gross recoverahle resources with RISC's GCoeS and risked recoverable resources

Prospective Resources
Operator Best
Prospect Esl;t;?;\::rg;?: j RISC GCas Resﬁ:t:: ((:flr::l:oe}
Resource (MMboe}
Ada 3 66 2.0
Newton 32 13 6.1
Python 10.7 28 3.0
Artemis East 7.9 65 51
Malin 27 22 5.9
Ekland 67 22 14.7
TOTALS 147.5 - 36.8
_________________________________________________| |
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6.6.1.

Additional Prospectivity

Central and Southern North Sea Leads

@RISC

A number of leads that have been identified by E.On are summarised below. These volumes are considered
indicative and have not been evaluated by RISC. RISC do not consider these leads well enough calibrated

to be used for EMVY calculation.

Tahle 6-12 Summary of additional Central and Southern North Sea Prospectivity identified by E.On

Operatar
Best
Estimate
Lead Name . Licence Major Licence Operator
{HC Phase) Lead Name | Licence | Operator Partners Blocks Award Date Commitments Gross GCoS
Recoverable
Resource
(MMboe)
. Drill or Drop
E‘;’; Cluin P2105 E‘?” Dana {50%) :;ﬁﬁ;* 20122013 | decision by 17 30%
{50%) 20.12.2017
Newton Newton
Deep 5 6.8 35%
(Gas) =P E.On Bayerngas 1 Firm Well on
%oaclg}son Dodgsan P2230 {50%}) (50%) 48/3 01.0%.2015 the licence 7 A8%
E':s} Joly 7.2 36%
’;‘é‘:j' Adder 6.3 43%
Viper . E.O B 1 Firm well
Viper .On ayerngas irm Well on 32 0%
(Gas) P2212 (50%) (50%) ag/2b | 0112.2014 | o -
Boa
B a 40
[Gas) o8
Licence due
Morth Rita . F771 E.On GODF Syez 44/22¢, .
Nerth Rita ! 14.06.1391 expiry 1.3 nfa
tas) P766 {74%) [26%) 44421b 14.06.2025
Licence due
E;es Hunter | o on Hunter | pasz | E-ON g?;,?”ez 44/23e | 11051983 | expiry 417 n/a
2 {79%) i 10.05.2019
Bayerngas 4311, |
L Drillor D
(;:'S} Lyra p2271 | EOM [35%), Dyas | 43/2, | 01.09.2015 o?ogrzo;:p 51 17%
{35%) (30%) 43/6 w2
ENI
West (21.87%),
Franklin West BG P188 — Due
Terrace Franklin {14.11%), expiry 50** 48%
(Gas + Terrace E Orl P185 — 15.03.2013
Condensate} ¥ 16.03.1972 | P362 - Due
{5.2%) 22/30b, )
P188, o 33/30¢ P362 - expiry
P362, | Total ExxonMobil rojan | 17:12.1980 | 16122016
poss, | (46.17%) | 14-38%h yaree | P8G5~ P66G — Due
P2068 Chevron 29}4‘;‘ 20.07.1989 | expiry
(3.9%], P2068 — 19.07.2025
Elgin West Dyas 01.01.2013 | P2068 - Initial
[Gas + Elgin West [2‘19‘}?}’ term end date 37+ A0%
Condensate) Summit 01.01.2019
Petroleum
(2.19%}
Edison
Drill or Drop
TRY TR? pr1g1 | E-ON (3031, 15/27b | 01.12.2014 | decision by 2 18%
{Qil) {40%) Bayerngas 01.01.2018
(30%) o
| |
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Operator
Best
Lead Name Licence Major Licence Estimate Operator
Lead Name Licence | Operator Partners Blocks . Gross
{HC Phase) P Award Date Commitments GCo5
Recoverable
Resource
({MMbee)
Edison Crill or Orop
Tumbleweed |y bleweed | 2173 | E-ON | 130%) 275, | ) 132014 | decision by 22 6%
{0il) {440%]) Bayerngas 71/18h
01.01.2018
[30%)
Edi
Chimaera E.OnN [3;2;1 Awaiting Drill or Drop 4
(Gas + Chimaera F2303 ! ' 15/24a afficial years after 36 29%
{40%) Bayerngas . .
Condenzate} (30%) confirmation | award
o

**Numbers represent in-place estimates.

6.6.2. West of Shetlands

E.On hold three exploration licences in the Wast of Shetlands as Operator. E.On were recently participant
in three other licences as non-operator but these are due to be relinguished in Q1 2016, The table below
lists the licences with Blocks, identified leads, Operator best estimate recoverable volume and key licence
information. RISC do not consider these leads well enough calibrated to be used for EMV calculation.

Table 6-13 Summary of West of Shetland Prospectivity identified by E.On

Operator Best
Lead . .
. Qutstanding Estimate Gross
Name Lead . Licence . Operator
Licence Operator Parthers Blacks Licence Recoverahle
(HC Name Award . GCo5
Phase) Commitments Resgurce
[Mnabae)
Cill ar Drop
Col 2 14
(;;3 Colza pao23 | EON . 23315' 01.01.2013 | decision by 62 25%
{100%) 01.01.2017
orill ar Drop
Ezr?"ke Mardyke | pzovz | 0O . 209/4,209/5 | 01.01.2012 | decision by 100 17%
; {100%) 01.01.2017
Gurnisen EOn 219413, Crill or Drap
(Dil or Gunnison pP2012 . . - 219414, 01.01.2013 decision by 34 15%
Gas) {100%) 219/15 01.01.2017
| |
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7. Economics

7.1. Fiscal Terms

Upstream oil and gas activities in fields on the UK Continental Shelf (UKCS) are subject to several layers of
taxation which are summarized below:

Fiscal Term Description
License Term Block specific
Rovyalties No state royalties apply
Petroleum Revenue Tax PRT is a tax on “supra-normal” profits from individual fields with development

{PRT) consents prior to 16 March 2003. PRT is ring-fenced at a field level and deductible
against RFCT and SCT.

The anly Southern North Sea E.On field subject ta PRT is Ravenspurn North where
PRT is applied at a rate of 50% in 2015 and 35% thereafter,

PRT assessable profit is calculated as follows:
+ Sales Revenue
+  Tariff revenue
- Opex, exploration & appraisal costs and capex (35% uplift on qualifying
capex)
- Abandonment losses
- Field losses carried forward/back
- Oil allowance

Application of PRT is further subject to Payback and Safeguard limits under which
PRT only applies after payback is achieved {defined as cumulative revenues
exceeding cumulative costs), and Safeguard during which PRT is charged on 80%
of adjusted profit less 15% of the ending balance of cumulative capex for the
chargeable period. The Safeguard period is defined as 1.5 times the chargeabla
periods up to the achievement of Payback,

Ring Fence Corporation RFCT is levied on the Upstream profits from oil & gas activities at a rate of 30%.
Tax (RFCT) Allowable deductions include:

= PRT

- Opex

= Capital allowances of which

o Capex other than long life assets {>25 years) is written down
100% as it is incurred

o Capex on long life assets is written down by 24% in the 1! year
and 6% pa declining balance thereafter

o Abandonment expenses expensed as it is incurred
- Interest expenses
. Ring Fence Expenditure Supplement

- RFCT losses carried forward indefinitely or backward for up 1o 3 years.

Supplementary Charge SCT is levied on Upstream profits from oil & gas activities at a rate of 20% on a
{5CT) similar base to RFCT with the exceptions of interest being excluded from
deductions and additional field allowances allowabhle as deductions.
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7.2. Economic Analysis

Economic assessmant of E.On’s Southern North Sea producing fields have been based on discounted cash
flow analyses incorporating production and cost profiles and the fiscal terms described above.

A total of four price scenarios have been run with Price Scenario ‘A’ representing RISC's view of future
prices. The three other scenarios (Price Scenario ‘B, Prica Scenario ‘C’ & Price Scenario ‘D’) represent prices
forecast by Premier. E.On sells its gas to other E.On subsidiaries at National Balancing Point {NBP) prices
with hedging at a corporate level. RISC has not valued the hedges.

A summary description of the assumptions used in the models follows.

7.2.1. Key Assumptions

7.2.1.1, Valuation Date

The valuation has been carried out in US Dollars with an Effective Date of 1% January 2015 to align with
the Sale and Purchase agreement between Premier Qil and E.On (Table 7-4 & Table 7-5). The reserves and
net present values have also been calculated with an effective date of 31 December 2015 (Table 7-6 &
Table 7-7) to meet the requirements of the UK Listing Authority.

7.2.1.2. Field allowances

Ravenspurn North is subject to PRT and eligible for oil allowance to reduce potential PRT payable,
Infermation supplied by Premier indicates Ravenspurn North has a remaining oil allowance balance of
109,382 tonnes out of a total of 2.5 million tonnes and a maximum of 125,000 tonnes per chargeable
periad. Analysis shows Ravenspurn North generates insufficient revenue to incur any PRT charges or make
use of the oil allowance hence the oil allowance is immaterial,

7.2.1.3, Tax loss pools

Premier has provided the following information on apportioned tax losses/pool deductible agzinst
Southern North Sea fields.

Table 7-1 Southern North Sea Fields Share of tax losses {Opening Position 1.1.2015 - Net £MM)

EPUK EV Aggregate

RFCT Loss 9,248 60.203 69.451

S5CT Loss 9.276 37.492 46.768

Plant and machinery Pool 21.759 7.223 28.982

Mineral extraction allowance 0.899 9.644 10.543

RISC has utilised EU allowances from Table 7-1.

| |
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7.2.1.4, Commodity Prices

A total of four price scenarios have been considered. The 2015 gas production is assumed to have been
sold at monthly average of day-ahead contract prices as reported by Ofgem and liquids sold at the average
of the dated Brent monthly price. Price Scenario ‘A’ represents RISC's view of future prices. Price scenarios
B, C & D represent mid, low and high prices forecast by Premier. The prices are exclusive of any hedge
contracts in place at the time of the transaction.

Tahle 7-2 Commodity Prices

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019+
Qil Price {US5/bbl)
Price Scenario ‘A’ 52.40 35.00 40.00 45.00 60 {2016 real +2.5% pa) i.e. 65
Price Scenario ‘B’ 52.40 55.00 £%0.00 65.00 80 {2016 real +2.5% pa) i.e. 86
Price Scenario 'C’ 52.40 45.00 50.00 55.00 65 (2016 real +2.5% pa)i.e. 70
Price Scenario ‘D’ 52.40 55.00 70.00 75.00 95 {2016 real +2,5% pa) i.e. 102

Gas Prices - UK NBP spot {GBp/th})

Price Scenario ‘4’ 44,2 33.0 34.0 35.0 +2.5% pa

Price Scenario ‘B 44.2 40.0 41.0 42.0 +2.5% pa

Price Scenario 'C’ 44.2 37.5 38.0 39.0 +2.5% pa

Price Scenario DY 44.2 42.5 44.0 45.0 +2.5% pa
7.2.1.5. Economic parameters

Table 7-3 Economic Parameters

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019+

Cost Inflation 0% 0% 0% 0% +2.5% pa

Exchange $/£ 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

7.2.1.6, Discount Rate

Project NPVs are reported at a discount rate of 10% nominal. Discount rates of 8% and 12% nominal are
considered as valuation sensitivities.

7217, Cases

RISC has evaluated 1P, 2P and 3P cases for producing fields and fields under development under the fiscal
terms and economic parameters described above.

7.2.1.8. Economic limit

RISC estimates field economic limits using a look-back value methodology whereby a field is abandoned at
a time beyond which operations would erode economic value.
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7.3. Economic Results as of 1*! January 2015

Economics have been run using the discounted cash flow method for the four price scenarios based on
estimates of future production of assessed reservesfresources and forecasts of future capital and
operating costs with an effective date of 1** January 2015.

The following Net Present Values have not been adjusted for cther factors (eg analogous transactions,
strategic, political and security risks) that a buyer or seller may consider in any transaction concerning
these assets and therefore may not be representative of the fair market valua.

The economic results for the pipelines are independent of the oil and gas price scenarios. A single scenario
was evaluated for each of the ETS and CMS working interests at the effective date of 1% January 2015.

1 I
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Table 7-4 Pre-Tax Valuation Summary (NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 1%t lanuary 2015)
E.On Price Price Price Price
Field Status Wi Case Scenario Scenario Scenario Scenario
Yy ‘8’ i D"
1P 0 0 0 0
Rita Currently Shut-in 7% 2P 0 0 0 0
3P 1] 0 0 Q
1P -60 -60 -60 -60
Ravenspurn North Producing 29% 2P -59 -59 -59 -59
3P -59 -59 -59 -39
1P 5 9 7 10
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 10 14 12 15
3P 14 15 16 21
1P -37 -37 -37 -37
Caister Ceased Production 40% 2F -37 -37 -37 -37
3P 37 -37 -37 =37
1F 4 16 10 21
Babbage Producing 47% 2p 20 39 30 a7
3P 51 78 66 90
1P =20 -20 -20 -20
Orca Producing 23% 2P -20 -20 -20 -20
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -11 -10 -10 -10
Hunter Producing 7% 2P -11 -10 -10 -10
3P -11 -10 -10 -10
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Minke Ceased Production 43% 2P -12 -12 -12 -12
3P -12 -12 -12 -12
1P -33 -33 -33 -33
Tolmount Eg:g::gr;‘;nt 50% 2P 111 214 160 267
3P 534 739 682 897
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 29 29 29 29
1P -139 -122 -130 -116
;?.:::..{1'::}' 2p 27 154 39 216
3P 535 773 651 895
| |
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Table 7-5 Post Tax Valuation Summary {NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 1% January 20:15)

E.
. o Cas Price Price Price_ Price
Field Status n s . Scenario I
e Scenario ‘A’ Scenario ‘B P Scenarig ‘D!
W c
1P 0 u] 0 0
Rita Currently Shut-in 4% 2P b s} 0 0
3P 0 a 0 a
1P -6l -60 -60 -60
Ravenspurn North Producing 29% 2P -59 -59 -59 -59
3P -59 -59 -58 -58
1P 5 9 7 10
Johnston Praducing 50% 2P 10 14 12 15
3P 14 17 16 17
1P -37 -37 -37 -37
: Ceased
Caister . 40% 2P -37 -37 -37 -37
Praduction
3P -37 =37 =37 =37
1P 4 16 10 20
Babbage Producing 47% 2p 20 31 27 36
3P 42 54 49 58
1P -20 20 20 20
Creca Producing 23% P -20 -20 -20 -0
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -11 -10 -1 -10
79%
Hunter Producing 2P -11 -10 -13 -18
3P -11 -10 -10 -10
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Minke Ceased a3% | 2p 12 12 12 12
Production
3P -12 -12 -12 -12
1P -33 .33 .33 .33
Tolmount Development 50% | 2P 28 81 53 108
pending FID
3P 256 363 307 418
{MS Pipeling Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 17 17 17 17
1P -151 -134 -142 -129
Total {incl. 2P -68 1 33 34
Pipelines}
3P 186 309 247 368
{Consolidated Tax benefit 2P 76 71 75 66
| |
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7.3.1, Field Valuation Sensitivities

@RISC

The sensitivity of valuations considered include discount rates, sales prices and costs and are summarized
for each fields 2P reserves case below. The sensitivities are applied to Price Scenario 'A’.

Sensitivity Analysis - Ravenspurn North 2P

Capexi+205 / -200]
Cpeal+30%; 209
Caslrrel- A )

arn At rata 10 s

V2 57 2 57 52

B LIS AN

2

Figure 7-1 Ravenspurn Narth Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity Analysis - Johnston 2P

CasProle[-20% S £20%)
Lapori 200 F 208
CpERl A -

Discol atrate 120 5%

Z a ] 10 1z 15
M1 S,
Figure 7-2 Johnston Sensitivity Analysis
% Consolidated tax benefit calculated for arithmetic total of field 2P cash flows only
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Sensitivity Analysis - Caister 2P
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Figure 7-3 Caister Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity Analysis - Babhbage 2P
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Figure 7-4 Babbage Sensitivity Analysis
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Sensitivity Analysis - Orca 2P
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Figure 7-5 Qrca Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity Analysis - Hunter 2P
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Caslrrel-2o e
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Figure 7-6 Hunter Sensitivity Analysis
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Sensitivity Analysis - Tolmount 2F
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Figure 7-7 Tolmount Sensitivity Analysis

7.4. Economic Results as of 31% December 2015

Economics have also been run using the discounted cash flow methed for the four price scenarios based
on estimates of future production of assessed reserves/resources and forecasts of future capital and
operating costs with an effective date of 31° December 2015,

The following Net Present Values have not been adjusted for other factors {(eg analogous transactions,
strategic, political and security risks) that a buyer or seller may consider in any transaction concerning
these assets and therefore may not be representative of the fair market value.

The economic results for the pipelines are independent of the oil and gas price scenarios. A single scenario
was evaluated for each of the ETS and CMS working interests at the effective date of 1* January 2015.
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Table 7-6 Pre-Tax Valuation Summary [NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 31*t December 2015)

@RISC

£.ONn Price Price Price Price
Field Status Wi LCase Scenario Scenario Scenario Scenarig
A ‘B’ T ‘D"
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Rita Currently Shut-in FA% 2p -12 -12 -12 -12
3F -12 -12 -12 -12
1P -62 -62 -62 -62
Ravenspurn North Producing 29% 2P -62 -62 -62 -62
3P -62 -62 -62 -62
1P -1 3 1 4
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 3 8 6 10
3P 8 13 10 15
1P -43 -43 -43 -43
Caister Ceased Production 40% 2F -43 -43 -43 -43
3P 43 -43 -43 43
1P -24 -10 -18 5
Babbage Producing 47% 2p -7 13 4 23
3P 25 35 41 bZ
1P =20 -20 -20 -20
Orca Producing 23% 2P -20 -20 -20 -20
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -12 -11 -11 -11
Hunter Producing 9% 2P -12 -11 -11 -11
3P -12 -11 -11 -11
1P -13 -13 -13 -13
Minke Ceased Production 43% 2P -13 -13 -13 -13
3P -13 -13 -13 -13
1P -36 -36 -36 -36
Tolmount SE:Z:;’:EBM 50% 2P 122 235 176 294
3P 656 882 763 1,000
€IS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeline Facility 30% 32 32 3z 32
1p -195 -176 -186 -170
:?;:::.ﬂ::}' ' 2P -16 123 53 194
3p 555 817 681 950
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Table 7-7 Post Tax Valuation Summary {NPV at 10% discount rate in USSMM at 31st Decernber 2015)

Fietd Status E.On Case Price Price Price Price
Wi Scenatria ‘A’ Scenario ‘B Scenario ‘'C’ Scenario ‘D'
1P -12 -12 -12 -12
Rita f_'”"em'v Shut- 74% 2p 12 12 12 12
i
3 -12 -12 -12 -12
1F -b2 -52 -62 -G&2
Ravenspurn North Praducing 29% 2P -b2 -62 -b2 -be
3P -62 -62 -62 -62
1P -1 3 1 4
Johnston Producing 50% 2P 3 8 6 10
3P 8 13 10 15
1p -42 -43 -43 -43
) Ceased
Caister . 40% 2P -43 -43 -43 -43
Praduction
3p -43 -43 -43 -43
1F =24 =10 -18 -5
Babbage Producing A7% 2P -7 13 4 23
3P 25 44 38 49
1F -20 =20 -20 -20
Orea Producing 23%% 2P -20 -20 -20 -20
3P -20 -20 -20 -20
1P -12 -11 -11 -11
. 79%
Hunter Praducing 2P -12 -11 -11 -11
3P -12 -11 -11 -11
1P -13 -13 -13 -13
Minke Ceased 43% 2P 13 13 13 13
Praduction
3p -13 -13 -13 -13
1F -36 -36 -36 -36
Tolmount Deve!oljment 50% 2P 31 29 58 1149
pending FID
3P 295 413 352 A73
CMS Pipeline Facility 20% -4 -4 -4 -4
ETS Pipeling Facility 30% 13 18 18 18
ip -209 -190 -200 -184
Tf:'ta'.“"d' 2p -121 -37 79 5
Pipelines}
3p 130 323 253 390
Canselidated Tax benefit 2pz B4 78 82 73
22 consolidated tax benefit calculated for arithmetic total of field 2P cash flows only
| |
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8. UK Blocks licensed by E.On

Table 8-1 Blocks licensed by E.On E & P UK Limited

@RISC

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)
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E.QM E&F LUK LIMITED 1527h 4% E ON E&P UK LIMITED F2161
21517d A0, E.OM E&P UK LIMITED P217R
21/18b 404% E.OM E&F UK LIMITED F2178
2EM3h 22N NEXEM PETR{OLEUM LK. LIMITED P14z
22i14h 258%; E.OM E3P UK LIMITED F1114
2EMAU REST £2.50% NEXEN PETROLELIM LK, LIMTED P1B1
2218h 22.50% MEXEN PETROLEUM UK. LIMITED P1a01
22:18c 4% PARESDURCES NORTH SEALIMITED p2184
22/19h 22 50%, NEXEN PETROLEUM UK. LIMITED P1B1
22M18d 40%: PARESDOURCES NORTH SEALIMITED P2154
220265 MERG 656.95% BRITOIL LIMITED P111
2212Ta A 20% CMR INTERNATIOMAL (U K. LIMITED F114
281290 5.20% TOTAL E4P UK LIMTEDR Pl
22/30h ELGN 5.20%, TOTAL EAP UK LIMTED P185
22830 5.40% TIATAL E&F UK LIMTED PEGE
2026d A 0% E.OM EAP UK LIMITED P264
28115 NORTH 15% STATDIL (U K.} LIMITED F2057
2B20 NORTH 15% STATOIL (U K3 LINITED P20&T
23720 5w 15% MEXEN PETROLEUM UK. LIMITED P208T
2024 A 20%: CMR INTERMATIONAL (L K 3 LIMITED P22d
29130 25%, TOTAL ESP UK, LIMTED P1G26
2944 1557 TOTAL ESF UK, LIMITELD P72
2050 5.20% TOTAL ESP UK LIMTED P3E2
295¢ 5.20% TCTAL E&F UK LIMTED FE66
2616 SE 150, STATOIL {U K.} LINITED P20ET
30i12e 0% TALISKAN SINDPEC ENERGY UK. LIMITED F1830
30133 WEST 15% TALISMAN SINOPEC ENERGY UK LIMTEC PTY
30/ 3b 25%;, GDF SUEZ ESF UK LTD P1az3
4%2128d 501%. E (N E&P UK LIMITED 1330
42/28a S0 E.OM E&P UK LIMITED P21a5
42{28d 50% E.DM E&P UK LIMITED F2105
44/21h £8.31% E.OM E&P UK LIMITED P78G
4422c ThY E.OM E3F UK LIMITED F771
44123 AREAS af) %, CONQCOPHILLIPG (U K LIMITED Pas2
442300 Ta%, E.OM E3F UK LIMITED P452
44/243 42 BT% (GDF SUEZ E&F UK LTDH FE11
44120k A a5 GDF SUEZE&F UK LTD P454
44/25b B 42 6T% GOF SUEZ E&F UK LTD: F454
44708 A2 6E7% GOF SUEZ E&F UK LTD P11
473k 100% E.OM ESP UK LIMITED P2136
Ak B01%, E.QOM E&P UK LIMITED PaE1z
4320 50%, E.OM E3F UK LIMITED: p2212
B 501%: E N E&P UK LIMITED P210%
205/16d Sam FAROCE PETROLEULM (UK. LIMITED P2011
205176 5% FAROE PETROLEUM (LK) LIMITED Fao11
205216 60%, FAROE PETROLEUM (UK. LIMITED P2011
2051220 504 FAROE PETROLEUM [UK.) LIMITED F2011
20814 W% E.QM E&AP UK LIMITED Pan2l
20815 100% E.OM E3F UK LIMITED p2023
208i4 W% E N E&P UK LIMITED P20734
2095 100% E.OM EAP UK LIMITED P2073
2135 30% OMW (UK } LIMITED 1837
2141 % QR (LK LIMITED P1G97
214Mc 0% OMY (UK } LIMITED Fa2osn
21530 301%, OR(LLK FLIMITED P1oa7
216/26 0% OV (LK} LIMITED P15a7
2167 E2%: ORI LL K FLIMITEDR P1%g7T
21913 100%, E.CM E&F UK LIMITED p2o12
21814 100% E O E&P UK LIMITED F2012
21915 0% E.OM E&P UK LIMITED P20z

| |
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Table 8-2 Blocks licenced by E.On E & P UK EU Limited

Enyuily Holder Block / Subaraa Inlerast Uperator Licanca
E.OM E&F LIK ELJ LIMITED 231160 30%: CAMA PETROLEUMESPI LIMITED F1720
43268 RAVE [CA) 16 4% BP EXPLORATIOTJ_IEH::;—I;%ATING COPANY P80
43260 RAVEA 35.94% EON E&F UK EU LIMITED F380
43264 RAVER 5.04% EONEAF LK EL LIMTED P3an
43265 RESID T222% EOM EZF UK EU LIMITED F3B0
45274 A2 28% E.{JN E&F LIK ELI LIMITED Pog
48720 470 E oM E&F UK EU LIMITED P45E

1 I
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9. List of terms

The following lists, along with a brief definition, abbreviated terms that are commonly used in the oil and
gas industry and which may be used in this report.

Term Definition

1P Equivalent to Proved reserves or Proved in-place quantities, depending on the context.

10 1st Quarter

2P The sum of Praved and Probable reserves or in-place guantities, depending on the context.

20 2nd Quarter

2D Two Dimensional

3D Three Dimensional

4D Four Dimensional = time lapsed 30 in relation to seismic

3P The sum of Froved, Probable and Possible Reserves or in-place quantities, depending on the context.

3Q 3rd Quarter

40 dth Quarter

AFE Authority for Expenditure

Bhl S Barrel

BsL/D Us Barrels per day

BCF Billion {10°) cubic feet

BCM Billion {107) cubic meters

BFPL Barrels of fluid per day

BOPD Barrels of oil per day

BTU British Thermal Units

BOEPD US barrels of oil equivalent per day

BWPD Barrels of water per day

C Degrees Celsius

Capex Capital expenditure

CAPM Capital asset pricing model

CGR Condensate Gas Ratio — usually expressed as bbl/MMscf

Contingent Those guantities of petroleum estimated, as of a given date, to be potentially recoverable from known

Resources accumulations by application of development projects but which are not currently considered to be
commercially recaverable due to one or more contingencies. Contingent Resources are a class of
discovered recoverable resaurces as defined in the SPE-PRMS.

co2 Carbon dioxide

CcP Centipoise {measure of viscosity)

Crl Consumer Price Index

DEG Degrees

DHI Direct hydrocarbon indicator

Discount Rate

The interest rate used to discount future cash flows into a dollars of a reference date

DsT

Drill stem test

E&F

Exploration and Praduction

EG

Gas expansion factor. Gas volume at standard {surface) conditions / gas volume at reservoir conditions
{pressure & temperature}

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)
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Term Definition

Elf US Energy Information Administration
EMV Expected Maonetary Value

EOR Enhanced Oil Recavery

ESP Electric submersible pump

EUR Economic ultimate recovery

Expectation

The mean of a probability distribution

F

Degrees Fahrenheit

FDP Field Development Plan

FEED Front End Engineering and design
FID Final investment decision

FI Formation

FPSO Floating Production Storage and offtake unit
FivL Free Water Level

FWF Farmation volume factor

GIIP Gas Initially In Place

Gl Giga (10%) joules

GOC Gas-nil contact

GOR Gas oil ratio

GRY Gross rock volume

GSA Gas sales agreement

GTL Gas To Liquid(s)

GWC Gas water contact

H25 Hydrogen sulphide

HHW Higher heating value

1D Internal diameter

IRR Internal Rate of Return is the discount rate that results in the NPV heing equal to zero,
WP} Joint venture {Partrers)

Kh Horizontal permeability

km2 Square kilometres

Krwe Relative permeability to water

K Vertical permeahility

kPa Kilo (thousand) Pascals {measurement of pressure)
Msth/d Thousand Stock tank barrels per day
LIBCR Londan inter-bank offered rate

LNG Liguefied Natural Gas

LTBR Leng-Term Bond Rate

m Metres

MDT Modular dynamic {formation) tester
mD Millidarcies {permeability)

Ml Mega {10°) Joules

MiAbbl Million US barrels

MM scf{d) Million standard cubic feet {per day)

RISC — Project Eva CPR (15.0092)
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Term Definition

MMsth Million US stock tank barrels

MOD Money of the Day {(nominal dollars) as opposed to maney in réal terms
MOU Memaorandum of Understanding

Mscf Thousand standard cubic feet

Msth Thousand US stack tank barrels

MPa Mega {10°) pascal {measurement of pressure)

mss Metres subsea

MSW Mean Success Volume

mTVDss Metres true vertical depth subsea

MW Megawatt

NPY Net Present Value {of a series of cash flows])

NTG Net to Gross {ratio)

aDT Oil down to

oGP Original Gas In Place

alel] Original Gil in Place

Opex Operating expenditure

oW Oil-water contact

P90, P50, P10 90%, 50% & 10% probahilities respectively that the stated quantities will be equalled ar exceeded. The

Pa0, P50 and P10 quantities correspond to the Proved {1P), Proved + Probable {2P) and Proved + Probable
+ Possible {3P) confidence levels respectively.

PBU Pressure build-up

PJ Peta (1015) Joules

POS Probability of Success

Possible As defined in the SPE-PRMS, an incremental category of estimated recoverable volumes associated with
Reserves a defined degree of uncertainty. Possible Reserves are those additional reserves which analysis of

geoscience and engineering data supgest are less likely to be recoverable than Probable Reserves. The
total quantities ultimately recovered from the project have a low probability to exceed the sum of Proved
plus Probable plus Possible {3P} which is equivalent to the high estimate scenario. When probabilistic
methods are used, there should be at least a 10% probability that the actual quantities recovered will
equal or exceed the 3P estimate.

Probable As defined in the SPE-PRMS, an incremental category of estimated recoverable volumes associated with
Reserves a defined degree of uncertainty. Probable Reserves are those additional Reserves that are less likely to be
recovered than Proved Reserves but more certain to be recovered than Possible Reserves. It is equally
likely that actual remaining quantities recovered will be greater than or less than the sum of the estimated
Froved plus Probable Reserves {2P). In this context, when probabilistic methods are used, there should
be at least a 50% probahility that the actual quantities recovered will equal or exceed the 2P estimate.

Praspective Those quantities of petroleum which are estimated, as of a given date, to be potentially recoverable from
Resources undiscoverad accumulations as defined in the SPE-PRMS.

Proved As defined in the SPE-PRMS, an incremental categary of estimated recoverable volurmes associated with
Reserves a defined degree of uncertainty Proved Reserves are those quantities of petroleum, which by analysis of

geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be commercially
recoverable, from a given date forward, from known reservoirs and under defined economic conditions,
operating methods, and government regulations. If deterministic methods are used, the term reasonable
certainty is intended to express a high degree of confidence that the quantities will be recovered. If
probabilistic methods are used, there should be at least a 90% probability that the quantities actually
recovered will equal or exceed the estimate. Often referred to as 1P, also as “Proven®.

PsC Production Sharing Contract
PSDM Pre-stack depth migration

| ]
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Term Definition

PSTM Pre-stack time migration

psia Pounds per square inch pressure absolute

p.u. Porosity unit e.g. porasity of 20% +/- 2 p.u. equals a parosity range of 18% to 22%

PVT Fressure, volume & temperature

QAa/Qc Quality Assurancef Control

rbfsth Reservoir barrels per stock tank barrel under standard conditions

RFT Repeat Formation Test

Real Terms (RT) Real Terms {in the reference date dollars) as opposed to Nominal Terms of Money of the Day

Reserves RESERVES are those quantities of petroleum anticipated to be commercially recoverable by application of
development projects to known accumulations from a given date forward under defined conditions.
Reserves must further satisfy four criteria: they must be discovered, recoverable, commercial, and
remaining {as of the evaluation date) based on the development project(s) applied. Reserves are further
categorised in accordance with the level of certainty associated with the estimates and may be sub-
classified based on project maturity and/or characterized by developmant and preduction status.

RT Measured from Rotary Table or Real Terms, depending on cantext

5C Service Contract

scf Standard cubic feet {measured at 60 degrees F and 14.7 psia)

Se (3as saturation

Sgr Residual gas saturation

SRD Seismic reference datum lake level

SPE Society of Petroleum Engineers

SPE-PRMS Petroleum Resources Management System, approved by the Board of the SPE March 2007 and endorsed
by the Boards of Society of Petroleum Engineers, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, World
Petroleum Council and Society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers.

.. Fluid saturation unit. e.g. saturation of 80% +/- 10 s.u. equals a saturation range of 70% to 90%

stb Stock tank barrels

STOIP Stock Tank Qil Initially In Place

Sw Water saturation

TCM Technical committes meeting

Tcf Trillion {1012} cubic feet

TI Tera (102} Joules

TLR Tension Leg Platform

TRSSY Tubing retrievable subsurface safety valve

VD True vertical depth

uss United States dollar

UsS million Millign United States dollars

WACC Weighted average cost of capital

WHFP Well Head Flowing Pressure

Warking A company’s equity interest in a project before reduction for rayalties or production share owed to others

intergst under the applicable fiscal terms.

WPC World Petroleum Council

WTI Woest Texas Intermediate Crude Qil

| |
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PART V—HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE EPUK GROUTP

Section A: Draft Report on the Historical Financial Information Relating to the EPUK Group

.
pwc

The Drrectors
Premicr Qil ple

4th Floor

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh, EHI 2EN

RBC Burope Limited (1he “Sponsor™)
Riverbank House

2 Swan Lance

London, EC4R 313F

7 April 2016
Dear Sirs
The EPUK Group

We report on the financial information relating to the LPUK Group set out in scetion B of Purt V below
{the “Financial Information Table™). The Financial Information Table has been prepared for inclusion in
the Class | Circular dated 7 April 2010 (the “Cirenlar™) of Premicr Oil ple (the “Company™) on the basis
of the accounting policies set out in note 2 to the Financial Information Table. This report is required by
ilem 13.5.21R ol the Listing Rules and is given for the purpose of complying with that item and for no
other purpose.

Responsibilities
The Direclors of the Company are responsible for preparing the Tinancial Information Table in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Tt is our responsibility to form an opinion as to whether the Financial Information Table gives a (rue and
fair view, for the purposcs of the Circular and to report our opinion to you.

Save tor any responsibility which we may have to those persons to whom this report is expressly addressed
and which we may have 1o shareholders of the Company as 4 result of the inclusion of this report in the
Cireular, to the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any respansibility and will not accept any
liability to any other person for any loss sulfered by any such person as ¢ result ol arising out of, or in
accordance with this report or our statement. required by and given solely for the purposes of complying
with item 13.4.1R(6) ol the Listing Rules, consenting (o its inclusion in the Circular.

Basis of opinion

We condueted our work in accordancee with the Standards for [nvestment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board in the United Kingdom, Qur work included an assessment of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial information. 1t also included an assessment of significant
estimates and judgments made by those responsible for the preparation of the financial information and
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Target’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain all the inlormation and explanations which we
considered necessury in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
ErTor.

PricewaterhouseCoupers LLP, 1 Embankment Place, London, WC2KN 6RH T: +44 {0) 2075 835 ooo, Fr +44 (0) 2072 124 652,
\‘\"\’\-’\r‘\".[“’\'l'.i'.‘_l.Hk

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited lability partnership registersd in England with registered number OCsogn25. The
registered office of PricewaterbouseCoopers LLE is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricowaterbouseCoopers LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonrity for designated investment business.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Information Table gives, for the purposes of this Circular dared 7 April 2016,
atrue and (air view of the state of affairs of the EPUIC Group as at the dates stated and of its profits and
losses, cash flows and changes in cquity for the periods then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopean Union,

Emphasis of Matter—(oing concern

In forming our opinion on the Financial Information “Table, which is not modificd, we have considered the
adequacy of the disclosure made in note 2 to the Financial Information Table concerning the EPUK
Group's ability to continue as & going concern.

As disclosed in note 2, following completion of the Acquisition, the EPUK Group will be part of the
Premier Group and will become a guarantor company under the Premier Group’s banking tacilitics. There
is a forecast breach of certain financial covenants in the Premier Group’s principal financing arrangements
based on ceridin assumplions in respect of the testing periods ending on 30 Junc 2016 and 31 December
2006, A breach of one or more financial covenant(s) would cause an event of default under the financing
arrangements which contain such covenant(s}, which could in turn trigger cross-defaults into the other
linancing arrangements of the Premicr Group. This could result in the Premicr Group™s [inancing
arrangements becoming repayuble.

Premier has issued a qualified working capital statement in paragraph 9 of Part VII of this Circular. [n
order to address the risk of a covenant breach, the Premier Group will seek to modify or temporarily waive
the existing covenants andi/or implement certain potential mitigating actions as sl out in paragraph 9 of
Part VII of this Circular prior to the time at which the financial covenants for the testing period ending
30 June 2016 are required to be tested (when the financial statements and compliance certiticate in respect
of this period are delivered).

This condition indicaies the existence of a4 material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
LPUK CGroup's ability to continue a8 a going concern. The Financial [nformation Table does not include
the adjustments that would result it the FPUK Group was unable to continue as a going concern,

Yours taithfully

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP
Chartered Acconntants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1 Embankment Place, London, WE2N 6RH T: 144 {0) 2075 B35 000, B v44 (0] 2072 124 652,
www pwe.co.uk

PricewaterhomseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnevship registered in England with registered number OC305525. The
registered office of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE is 1 Einbankment Place, London WaiN GRH. PricowaterhonseCoopers LLI s
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority for designated investment business.
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Section B:; Historical Financial Information of the EPUK Group

Group Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Note 2013 2014 2015
£000 2000 £000

Sales revenues oL oL 5 251810 320522 237057
COST OT SAIES L 1 4 v vt s et e ettt e e 6 (191,068) (261.545) (231.519)
TImpairment cliarge on property, planl and equipment ... ... .. 12 (27,357 (122,707 {180.024)
Lxploration ¢xpense .. ... .. o 11 (4.6007  (13.563)  (32.534)
Pre-licencing exploration costs . . ... i i e (11,774) (9,139) (1,931)
General and administration costs . ... ... . {13.612) (9.124)y  (16,703)
Operating profiv{loss) ... oo o 3400 (95.556) {205.634)
Interest revenue, finance and other gains ... ... .o oo 8 572 312 U7
Finance costs. other finance expenses and losses ... ... ... ... 3 (8.544) (9.662) (8,127)
Guain on commodity derivative linancial instruments ... ... .. 19 1,508 74.323 2.861
Loss belore tax . . .o e e e e e (3.064)  (30.383) {209.963)
T . e 9 L0635 (158207 94565
Profitf(loss) after tax .. . .t i e 75371 (46,403) {115,398)
Earnings/(loss) per share {ponce):
Basic and diluted {pence): ... ... . o 10 359 (2,199) (5,469
Other comprehensive income, after tax:
Tiems that cannot be reclassified to profitorloss ..o 000 — — —
Trems that may be reclassilied subsequently o profit or loss . .. — — —
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tux . ... .. .. — — —
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the vear . ..o L. L. 1371 {46, 403) (115,398)

The results relate entirely o continuing operations.

All comprehensive income is atlributable 1o the equity holders of the parent.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

1 Janwary
Note 2013 2013 2014 11 H
£000 £000 £000 £000¢

Non-currenl asscls:
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets ... ..., 11 38,035 04617 65.919 72.404
Property, plant and equipment. ... ............. 12 495067 540512 354378 216,793
Derivative finuncial instruments ... ... ... ... ... 1Y 8,667 6,651 28,274 11947

SMIT6Y 611780 448570 301,144
Current assets:
Inventories ... ... Ce 13 463 0.156 4,122 794
Trade and other Iecmmhles 14 75,51 67,467 45,627 33,368
Tax recoverable - . 17,417 — 20,371 3,680
Derivative Tllmnudl instruments ... ... 19 2885 3534 42332 40574
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ............. I3 13,404 2 85,151 148,853

109,670 77,159 197603 236279
Tolal assels .o o0 o e 631,439 688,939 646,179 537423
Currcnt liabilitics:
Trade and other payables L6 (60.231)  (57.971)  (40.933)  (37.320)
Provisions | . 18 (650)  (11.813)  (13,099) (12.749)
Derivative f'manual m'-,llumt,nh . (3,930) (4,829 — {381)
Other financial liability ... ... ... ..o .o oo I3 — {16109 — —

(72,8317 (90.724)  (54.052)  (50.450)
Net current assets/(liabilities), . , 36,839 (13.565) 143,551 185,820
Non-current liabilities:
Derivative Tnanctal instruments ... .. . ... .. 1y (23,1707 (21,396) (12.32%) —
Deferred tax liabilities . ... ... ... o .o o oL 20 (U7.938)  (85.680) (116472) (20.324)
Tong-term provisions . ......... ... ... .. 18 {1539862) (185.950) (204.541) {323.261)

(280,990) (293,026) (333.341) (343.583)
Total Labilities ... ... o oL (333.821) (383.730) (387.393) {394.035)
N aSSCIE . o e e e e e e e e 207.618 305,189 238786 143,388

Equily and reserves:
Share capital ..
Retained edrmngm(dchut)

21 211000
36,618

211000
94,189

211,000
47,786

211,000
(67.612)

207,618

305,189

258,786

143 338
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AT Junuany 2013 00 oL L
Total comprehensive income
At 31 December 20H3 ... .
Total comprehensive expense
At 31 December 2014 ... ..
Tlotal comprehensive expense

At 3] December 2005, . ...

179

Attrilrutable 10 the equity holders of the

parent
Share Retained
Note capital carnings Total
£000 £00¢ £000
211,000 Ho,618 297618
— 1571 7.571
2L 94,189 345189
— (46403)  (46.403)
211,000 47,786 238780
—  (115.398) {115.39%)
21100 {(67.612) 143,388




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net cash from operating activities, |
Tnvesting activilies:

Capital expenditure o ... oL

Interest income received |,

Net cash used in investing activities . ... ... .. o ..

Financing activities:

Inlerest paid . .o e
Net cash from financing activities . ... .. L. L oL L.
Net {(deercaselinerease in cash and cash equivalents ... .. ... ..
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivaleats at the end of the year. . ... ... ...

180

Nute 2013

2014 2015

£000
22 108.252

€00 E(HH)
(34,524 120,606

(137.900) (33.290) (57.727)
572 312 957
(137.328) (32.978) (56,770
(435)  (288) (134
(435)  (288) (134
(29.511) 101,258 63,702
13404 (16,107} 85,151

L5 (16.107)

53,1531 148833




Nales to the historical linancial information

1. General informalion

E.ON E&TP UK Limited (“"EPUK™) is a company incorparated and domiciled in the UK, EPUK and irs
subsidiaries {collectively, the “EPUK Group™) arc focused on oil and gas exploration, development and
production, and the sale of oil and natural gas produced by third partics. The entitics which comprise the
EPUK Group are incorporated and domiciled in the UK, The principal trading and holding subsidiaries of
the EPUK Group [or the three years ended 31 December 2015 are disclosed in note 27.

The historical finuncial information of the EPUK Group for the three years ended 31 December 2015 have
been prepared in accordance with the basis of preparation as sct out helow.

This historical financial information is presented in pounds sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand pounds sterling (£000) except when otherwise indicaied. The lfunctional currency of
LPUK is pounds sterling.

2. Basis of preparation

The historical {inancial information consolidates the financial information of EPUK and its subsidiaries
using the accounting policies adopted by Premier in its latest audited tinancial statements. EPUK has not
previously prepared consolidated financiul information as FEPUK took advantage of the exemption
availuble under Companies Act 2006 [rom the preparation of consolidaled (inancial statements, as Lhe
results of EPUK and its subsidiaries were being consolidated in the tinancial statements of L.ON.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated historical financial
information are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented,
unless otherwise stated. The linancial information presented is at and for the vears ended 31 December
2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 205,

The historieal financial information has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Prospectus Tdrective Regulation, the Listing Rules and in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the Europcan Union (the “EUT) IFRS Interpretation
Committce (“IFRS8 IC™) interpretations as adopted by the BEuropean Union. The historical financial
information has been prepared on the going coneern basts and under the historical cost convention, as
modificd by the revaluation of linancial assets and financial labilities (including derivative instruments) al
fair value through profit or loss and inventories that are held at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Following completion of the Acquisition. the EPUK Group will be part of the Premicr Group and will
become a guarantor company under the Premier Group’s banking lucilities. Premier has included a
qualificd working capital statement in paragraph 9 of Part VI of this document as a result of 2 [orecast
breach of eertain of the Premier Group's financial covenants contained in certain of its principal financing
arrangements based on cerlain assumptions in respect of the testing periods ending on 30 June 2016 and
31 December 2010.

A breach of one or more financial covenant(s) would cause an event of default under the [inancing
arrangements which contain such covenant(s), which could in turn trigger cross-defaults into the other
linancing arrangements of the Premier Group. This could result in the Premicr Group’s linancing
arrangements becoming repayable.

In the absence of the successful implementation of the mitigating actions deseribed in puragraph 9 of
Part VII of this document, the Premier Group’s management reasonahly expect that the covenant
renegoliation with its debt holders can be completed by the time the huancial covenants for the lesting
period ending 30 June 2016 are required to be tested (when the financial statements and compliance
certifiate in respect of this period are delivered) or that a temporary waiver or amendment of the financial
covenants would be agreed until the current renegotintion is finalised. Agreement of the terms of the
renegotiation and/or possibly & combination of some of the other mitigating actions will need to oceur to
siiecesstully avoid a breach of financial covenant in respect of the testing periods ending 30 June 2016 and
31 December 2016, However, all of these actions involve agreement from third parties and are therefore
outside of the control of management.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Premier Group can sceure any necessary financial
covenant moditication or waiver andior implement some of the mitigating actions described in paragraph 9
of Part VII of this document so as 10 avoid a financial covenant breach during the Working Capital Period.
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2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

If the Premier Group can achieve that, it will have sufficient workiny capital for its present purposes, thal
is. for at least the next 12 months from the date of this document.

The uncertainty regarding the availability of Premicer’s banking tacilitics ereates & material uncertainty that
the EPUK Group would be able to access funding from Premier and therefore may cast signiticant doubt
on the EPUK Group’s ability (o continue (0 apply the going concern basis of accounting. The Premier
Dircetors have a reasonable expectation that the Premicr Group will avoid a covenant breach and
accordingly have adopted the going concern basis of accounting in preparing this historical financial
information on the EPUK Group.

Under 1FRS1, “First Time Adoption of Intermational Financial Reporting Standards™, a number of
exemptions are permitted to he taken in preparing the consolidated balance sheet at the date of transition
to TFRS. The FPUK Group has assumed a transition date to TFRS of 1 Tanuary 2003 and bas therefore
presenied a eonsolidated balance sheet as a that date.

3. Accountling pulicies
Adoption of new and revised stundardy

In the current year the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted, none
of which have a material impact on the EPUK Group’s annual results:

+ 1AS 1Y (amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions;
+ Annual [mprovements to IFRSs: 2010-2012 Amendments to: 1IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, TFRS 3

Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Scgments, TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, TAS 16
Property, Plant und Equipment, IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures and TAS 38 Intangible Assets; and

= Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2001-2013 Amendments (o IFRS 1 Fisst-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Stundards, [FRS 3 Business Combinations, [FRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement and TAS 40 Tnvestment Property,

At the date of approval of the histoerical financtal information, the following standards and interpretations

which have not been applied in these (inancial statements were in issue bul not yet effective (and in some

cases had not vet been adopted by the Luropean Union):

+ TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cffective tor annual periods commeneing on or after | January 2018):

+ IFRS 13 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for annual periods commeneing on or
after | January 2018);

= JFRS 16 Leases (effective Tor annual periods commencing on or aller | January 2019):

« [FRS 1 (amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations {e(fective lor
annual periods commenceing on or after 1 January 2010);

+ 1AS 16 and 1AS 38(amcndments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation {(effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 Janoary 2016); and

« Annual Improvements to TFRSs: 20122014 Cyele Amendments o IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Tinancial Instruments: Disclosures, ITAS 19 Employee
Benetits and 1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting {cffective tor annual periods commencing on or
after 1 January 20H6),

Beyond the inloermation above, {t is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
IFRS 9, [I'FRS 15 and 1IFRS 16 until & detailed review has been completed. The Directors do not expect
that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the historical financial
informution of the EPUK Group in (uture periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the meusurement
and disclosures of financial instruments, 1FRS 15 may huve an impact on revenuoe recognition and related
disclosures and IFRS 16 may impact the recognition and measurement of leases.

The principal accounting policics adopted are sct out helow.
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3. Accounting pulicies {Continued}

Basis of consolidation

The histerical financial information incorporates the linancial statements of EPUK and entities controlled
by LPUK (its subsidiarics) made up to 31 December cach year. Control is achicved when a company is
exposcd, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entily.

Where necessary, adjustiments are made to the linancial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring (he accounting
policies used into line with those used by other members of the EPUK Group.

All signiticant inter-company transactions and balances between LPUK Group entitics are climinated on
consolidation,

Interest i Joint arrangemenis

A joint arrangement is one in which two or more partics have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing ol control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Most of the EPUK Group's activitics are conducted through joint operations, whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have the rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating 1o the arrangement. The EPUK Group reports its interests in joint operalions by reporting the
LPUK Group’s share of the assets, liabilitics, income and cxpenses of the joint operation are combined
with the equivalent items in the historical financial information on a line-hy-ling basis,

Where the EPUK Group transacts with its joint operations, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the EPUK Group’s interest in the joint operation.

Strfes revenue and other income

Sales revenue reflects sales of oil and gas from production activities, and includes the sale of gas purchased
[or resale, exclusive ol value added tax. Sales revenue is recognised when goods are delivered or the title
has passed to the customer.

Interest income is acerucd on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the cffeetive
interest rate applicable.

Qi and gus assets

The EPUK Group applies the successful etforts method of accounting for exploration and evaluation
{“E&LE™) costs, having regard 10 the requirements of IFRS 6 "Exploration for and Evaluution of Mineral
Resources'.

{) Exploration and evaluation assels

Under the successlul elforts method of accounting, all licence acquisition, exploration and appraisal costs
arc initially capitalised in well, ficld or specific cxploration cost centres as appropriate, pending
determination, Expenditure incurred during the various exploration and appraisal phases is then written
off unless commercial reserves have been established or the delermination process has not been
campleted.

Pre-licence costs

Costs incurred prior 1o having obtained the legal righls 1o explore an arca are expensed diveetly o the
income statcment as they arc incurred.

Lixploration and cvaluation costs

Costs of L&E are initially capitalised as E&LE assets. Pavments 1o acquire the legal right 1o explore, costs of
technienl services and studics, scismic acquisition, exploratory drilling and testing are capitalised as
intangible E&E assels.
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3. Accounting pulicies {Continued}

Tangible assels used in E&E aclivities (such as the EPUK Group’s velucles, drilling rigs, seismic equipment
and other property, plant and equipment used by the exploration function) are classiticd as property., plant
and equipment, However, to the extent that such a tangihle asset is consumed in developing an intangible
E&E assel. the amount refllecting that consumption is recorded as part of the cost of the intangible assel.
Such intangible eosts include directly attributable overhead, including the depreciation of property. plant
and equipment utilised in E&E acrivities, together with the cost of other materials consumed during the
exploration and evaluation phases.

E&E costs are not amertised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activilies.

Treatment of F&F assels wf conclision of uppruisal activities

Intangible F&E assets related to cach exploration licence/prospect are carried forward, until the existence
{or olherwise) of commercial reserves has been delenmined subject to certain limitations including review
for indications of impairment. 1f commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value, after any
impairment loss, of the relevant E&E assets, is then reclassified as development and production assets, Tf,
however, commercial reserves have nol been found, the capitalised cosls are charged 0 expense alier
canclusion of appraisal activitics.

{by Dcvelopment and production assets

Development and production assets are accumulated generally on a field-by-field busis and represent the
cast of developing the commerceial reserves discovered and bringing them into production, together with
the E&E expenditures incurred in finding commercial reserves transterred from intangible E&E assels, as
oullined in accounting policy (2) above.

The cost of development and production assets also includes the cost of acquisitions and purchases of such
assets, dircetly attributable overheads. finance ecosts capitalised. and the cost of recognising provisions for
(uture testoralion and decommissioning.

Depreciation of producing assers

The net book values of producing assets are depreciated generally on a field-by-field basis using the
unit-ol-production method by reference to the ratio of production in the vear and the related commercial
{proved and probable) reserves of the field, taking into account future development expenditures
necessary o bring those reserves into production,

Producing assets are generally grouped with other assets that are dedicated to serving the same reserves
[or depreciation purposes, but are depreciated separately from producing assels that serve other reserves.

Pipelines are depreciated on a straight line basis over their uselul lives.

{¢) Tmpairment of development and production assets

An impairment test is performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development or
production phase indicate thal the carrying value of a development or production assel may exceed its
recoverable amount.

The carrving value is compared against the oxpected recoverable amount of the asset. generally by
relerence 1o the present value of the Tuture net cash llows expected to be derived from production of
commercinl reserves. The cash generating unit applied for impairment test purposes is generally the field,
cxcept that a number of ficld interests may be grouped as o single cash gencrating unit where the cash
inllows of cach ficld are interdependent.

Any impairment identified s charged to the income statement. Where conditions giving rise to impairment
subscquently reverse, the cffect of the impairment charge is also reversed as a credit to the income
statement, net of any depreciation that would have been charged since the impairment,
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3. Accounting pulicies {Continued}
{d) Acquisitions, assel purchases and disposals

Acquisitions of il and gus properties are accounled for under the acquisition method when the assets
acqguired and liabilitics assumed constitute a business.

Transactions involving the purchase of an individual field interest, or a group of tield interests, that do not
constitute a husiness, are treated as asset purchases irrespective of whether the specific transactions
involve the transfer of the field interests directly or the (ransfer of an incorporaied entity. Accordingly, no
poodwill and no deferred tax gross up arises, and the consideration is alloeated to the assets und liabilities
purchased on an appropriate basis.

Proceeds on disposal are applied to the carrying amount of the specific infangible asser or development
and production assels disposed of and anv surplus s recorded as @ gain on disposal in the income
statement.

{¢} Dccommissioning

Provision for decommissioning is recognised in [ull when the related [acilities are installed. 'The amount
reeognised Is the present value of the estimated future expenditure. A corresponding amount cquivalent to
the provision is also recognised as part of the cost of the related oil and gas property. This is subsequently
depreciated as part of the capital costs of the production facilities. Any change in the present value of the
cstimated expenditure is dealt with prospectively as an adjustment to the provision and the oil and gas
properly. The unwinding ol the discount is included as a finance cost.

Inventories

Inventories, except for petroleum products, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Petroleum products and vader aud over lifts of crude oil are recorded al net realisable value, voder
imventories and other debtors or creditors respectively.

Tin

The tax expenselferedit represents the sum of the tax currently payable/recoverable and delerred tax
movements during the year.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or cxpense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it furlher excludes ilems that are never taxable or deductible. The EPUK
Group's liahility for current tax is caleulated using tax rates that have been cnacted or substantively
enaeted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrving amounts
of agsels und liabilities in the linancial statements and the corresponding tax buses used in the computation
of taxahle profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deterred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tux assets are recognised to the
exlent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utiliscd. Such assets and liabilitics are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
(rom goodwill/excess of [air value over cost or lrom the initial recoguiiion (other than in a business
combinalion) of other assels and liabilitics in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
aceounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for taxahle temporary difterenees arising on Investments In
subsidiaries and associates, and inlerests in joint ventures, excepl where the EPUK Group is able 1o
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse n the foresceable tuture.
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3. Accounling policies {Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that itis no longer probable that sulficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered. The LPUK Group reassesses its unrecognised deferred tux asset cach yvear taking
into account changes in oil and gas prices, the FPUK Group’s proven and probable reserve profile and
lorceust capital and operating expendilures.

Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax vates that are expected 1o apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates w items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the delerred tax is also
dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tux assets und liabilitics are offset when there is a legally enforeeable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
and the EPUK Group intends to settle its current tax asscts and liabilitics on a net basis.

Translution of Joreign correncies

In the accounts of individual companies, transactions denominated in foreign currencies, being currencies
other than the functional curreaey, are recorded in the local currency al actual exchange rates ay of the
dates of the transactions. Moncetary asscts and labilitics denominated in forcign currencies at the balance
sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, Non-monetary assets
and liabilities carricd at fair value that are denominated in [oreign currencies are translated al the raies
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
exchange rate subsequent to the dates of the transactions is included as an exchange gain or loss in the
income statement. Non-monetary assels held at historic cost are translated at the date of purchase and are
not retranslated.

Grougr retivement henefies

Pavments (0 delined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Leusing

Rentals payable for assets under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
hasis over the lease term.

Financial insirumenty

Financial assets and financial liahilities are recognised in the FPUK Group’s balance sheet when the
EPUK Group becomes a pariy (0 the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrccoverable amouats.

Tracle pavables

Trade pavahles are stated at their nominal value.

Derivative financial instruments

The EPUK Group uses derivative financial instruments {derivatives) to manage its exposure to changes in
vil and gas price fluctuations,

All derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs, Derivatives
are subsequently carried at fair value. All changes in fair value are recorded as income or expense in the
vear in which they arise.
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3. Accounling policies {Continued)

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non-derivative host contracts are treated as
scparale derivalives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts
and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in the income
statement, Fmbedded derivatives which are closely related to host contracts are not separated and are not
carried at [air value.

Tair value is defined as the price that would be reccived (o sell an asset or paid (o transfer a Hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is determined by reference to
quoted market prices adjusted for estimated transaction costs that would bhe incurred in an actual
transaction, or by the use of established estimation techniques such as estimated discounted values of cash
flomws.

Critical acconting judgements and keyv sorrces of esthmation wnceriaingy

Details of the EPUK Group's significant accounting judgements and critical accounting estimales are sel
out in these financial statements and include:

+  carrying value of intangible exploration and cvaluation asscts (notc 1)
+  carrying value of property, plant and cquipment (note 12);
+  provision for decommissioning costs (note 18): and

+  tax and recognition of deferred tax assets (note 9 and 20}

4. Operating segments

The EPUK Group is involved in offshore oil and gas exploration, development and production in the
United Kingdom. This is considered to be a single group of producets provided by an interdependent asset
infrastructure in one geographical area. Due to these factors there are not considered to be separable
identifiuble operating segments [or which {inancial information can be presented.

5. Revenue

Nite 203 2014 2015

T T 000 £000 £000
Gias Suley L e, 177,750 207312 148,810
Crnde il 88185 L L0 0t s e e e e e 63.220  HNLGYS GOs16
Tarilf Income ... ... e 10,835 12512 8,425

251,811 324,522 257,057

6. Cost of sales

MNute 2013 2014 2015
o £000 £000 £000
Gas purchascs. . ... (54.234)  (52.558) (32.210)
Operaling CoSIS . . . .ot e e (68,6021 (109.738) (112.718)
Invenlory MOovemenl . ... .. e e e e e 2,661 1,735 Quy
Amortisation and depreelation of property, plant and
equipment:
Ol and gas asstls o . o e e e e e e (33,956) (82813 (61.134)
Decommissioning assets. . ... ... L L L (13.429)  (15407) (23.755)
Furniture. IT and offlice equipment .. ... ... . .. ... ... {3,448) (2.782) (2.700)

{191.068) (261,545} (231,51Y)
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7. Staff costs

Notg 013 2014 20HE
£000 £000 £000
Staff costs, including directors:
Wages and Salaries . .o e e e e e s 14,732 16,529 17.820
Social seCurily COsIS L . L e e e e 1.743 1,963 2159
Pension costs ... .. 1.399 L8876 2275

8. Interest revenue and tinance costs

Interest revenue, finance and other gains:
.............................. 56 163 493

On cash and cash equivalents

17,874 20368 22,254

Nute 213 2014 2015
EMH) o EDIHI

Other interest receivable oL L L L. 316 144 464

Tinance costs:
On cash and cash equivalents

572 312 937

.............................. EXT DI F i) R—

Other interest pavable . .. . .. ... ... {104y (115} (134)
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning provision

............. 18 (8.109) {9.374) (7.993)
(8.544) (9,662) (8,127)

9. Tax
Note 2013 2014 2015
e £000 £000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits. . . ... oo oo o oL 1.729 5,210 5,120
Adjustments in respect of prior years ... ..o oo (80y (20,182) (3537
Total CUTIENT taX ot e s e e e e 1643  (14,972) 1,583
Deferred tux:
UK Corporation taxX . ... oo e e (12,278 30,792 (90.148)
Total deferred tax . L. 0. i e e e 200 {12,278 30,792 (96,148)
Tax {credit}charge on (loss)/profit on ovdinary activitics .. ... . ... (10,635) 15820 (94,565)

The 2014 and 2015 current corporation tax credits in respect of prior vears relate mainly to refunds arising
from the overpayment of eorporation tax in prior years.
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9, Tax (Contlinued)

The tax charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit/{loss) per the consolidated income
statement as follows:

2013 2014 2015
EOWH) EODU £000
Group (loss) on ordinary activities before tax ., , |, . (3064) (30,583) (200.963)
Group {loss) on ordinary activities before tax at ring tence mlc 0[ q()‘“
(2015) and 029 (2014 and 2013y, ... .o Lo (LS0DY (18.9062) (104,982)
Tax effects of:
Tncomedexpenses that are not taxable/deductible in delermining taxuble
profit .. ..., ... . 6,440 19300 2,991
Tax rate d|ﬂe|ences in uaspecr nt Income not suhject ln ring Tence laxes . (5.264)  (2,203) (8,133)
Tax and tax credits not related to profit belore tax. . ... ... ... . ... (7.658) (3.0l (3.304)
Deferred tax assets arising in year not recognised .. ..o L — FARY 49,200
Effects of tax rate changes on deferred tax .. ..o 0 oo oo 2183 (239)  (31.819)
Adjustments in respect of prior years . ... .. P, {100y 5200 1.478
Write down of deferred tax assct previously ]LL(JLI‘IIHLLI e — 8,617 —

Tax charge/(credit) for the vear., . ... ... . oo (10,635) 15820 {94,563)

The EPUK Group’s activities mainly comprise exploration and production activities in the UK sector of
1he North Sea which are subject (o corporation tax al 3% (2013 and 2014: 30%) and a supplementary
charge of 20%: (2013 and 2014: 329:). The combined rate of 50% (2013 and 2014: 029%) is described in
these notes as the ring fence rate,

Tax not related 1o profit before tax includes the impact of ring fence expenditure supplement of £nil (2014;
£3.4 mallion: 2013 £7.7 million) and investment allowances of £3.3 million (2014 £nil: 2013 £nil).

The activities ol the EPUK Group include activities that are not subject o the ving lence (ax regime. Tax
rate differences in respect of income not subject to ring fenee taxes include the rate differential effects
arising as a result, Qutside ring fence activities are subject to tax at 20,.25% (2014; 21,5%; 2013; 23,3%),

The tax rate changes indieated above during each of the reporting periods give rise to re-evaluation of the
opening deflerred tax balance in each perniod. These effects are separately disclosed in the above
reconciliation.

10. Earnings/(Loss) per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculuted by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
cquity holders of LPUK by the weighted average number of ordinuary shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted carnings per share amounts are caleulated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary cquity
holders of EPUK by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear plus the
welghled average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of any dilutive
patential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of ordinury shares at cach of the vear ends was 21,100 shares. There are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in FPUK and hence the basic and diluted earnings per share are the
SAMES.

2013 2014 2015
2013 Per share 2014 I'er share 2015 I'er share
Profiti{ Loss) amunt Profilf{Lusst amuouni Profit/{Luss) arnounl
ufter tax pence after tax penee atter tax pence
£000 £000 £000)
Basic and diluted Larnings per
sharc/(loss per share} ... .. L. 7571 Kl {46,4003) {2,199y (115,398}  (5.469)
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1L, Intangible exploration and evalualion (E&E) assets

Total
£000

Cost:

AL January 2013 L e e e e 38,035
Additions during the yeur ... . e e e 31.182
Transfer to property, plant and cquipment ... ..o L L —
L0 (430)
E Xl oraion B e« o o i i e e e e e e e e (4.15M

At 31 December 2003 .. . .. L e 64,617
Additions durfng 1The ¥ear ... i e e e e e 14,865
Transler 1o properiy, plant and equipment . ... . o o L e e —
Disposals L L (3.917)
EXplorafion eXpense ..o u i e e e e (9.646)

At 31 December 2004 . . o L e 65,919
Additions during the year ... ... 39019
Transfer to property, plant and eqQUIDMENT L .., o it e i e —
DSty L e e e e e (2.186)
Lxploration CXPCIIsSe .. ..o Lo e e e e e e (30,344)

A3 December 2008 L L L. e e s 72,404

The amounts for intangible E&E assers represent costs incurred on active exploration projects, These
amounts are wrillen off to the wcome statemenl as exploration expense unless commercial reserves are
established or the determination process is not completed and there are no indications of impairment. ‘The
outcome of on-going exploration, and theretore whether the carrying value of E&E assers will ultimately
be recovered, is inherently uncertain.
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12, Property, plant and equipment

Furniture, TT

(il and Decommissioning amd office
Gas assets assets equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost:

AL Janouary 2003 .. ..o oL TAB652 130,979 6,811 886,442
Additions during the year. ... .o oo oo, 99724 37.061 6.994 143,779
Disposals. ... o o o — — (2062} (262)
Transfer from / (to) intangible F&FE assets .. .. — — — —

At 31 December 2013 .. ... ... ... ... ..... 848376 168,040 13.543 1,029,959
Additions during the year. ... ... ... .. ... 17,800 19,152 025 37.577
Disposals. ... ... o o i — — — —
Transler from { (to) intangible E&E assets . ... — — — —

At 31 December 2004 . ... ... ... . ....... 866,176 187,192 14,168 1.067.536
Additions during the year. ... ... ..o L 13,865 111,320 2,843 130,028
Disposals. . .. .o o o o — — — —
Transter from / (to) intangible E&L assets ... — — — —

Al 3l December 215 .. ... ... .. ... ... ... 882,041 298,512 17,011 1,197,564
Depreciation and impairment:

At D January 2013 0. o L o o o oo 300,043 27927 2,605 391.375
Charge forthe year .. ... .. oo oo e 53,956 13,429 3,448 70,833
Impairment charge . .. o o o oL 22.500 4,857 — 27,357
Disposals. ... o o o — — (118} (118)

Al 31 December 2013 .. ... ... ... L. 437,099 46,213 6,135 489,447
Charge for the year .. ... ... o o o, 82815 15,407 2782 101,004
[mpairment charge. .. ... .. o oL 93,229 29.478 — 122,707
Disposals. ... ... o o i — — — —

At 31 December 2014 .. ... ... ... ... ... 613,143 91,098 8917 713,158
Charge forthe vear .. ... ... o o L. 1,134 23755 2,700 87.589
Impairment charge. .. ... .. .0 oL SLOIR 49,406 — 180,024
Disposals. . .. .o o o o — — — —

At 31 December 2005 . ... ... .. ... ... TA4,895 214,259 11,617 980.771
Net book value:

AUl January 2013 00 o Lo oo o 3BRI09 103,052 4.006 495,067

At 3] December 20103 ..o o Lo o ALL2TT 121.827 7408 540512

At 31 December 2004 ... . L . . 253033 96,044 3,251 354,378

At 31 December 2015 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... 127140 §4.253 5394 216,793

Impairment

The impairment charge in 2015 relates to Huntington (£46m}, Rita (£13m), Orea (£12m), Hunter (£10m),
Caister (£13m), Ruvenspurn North (£16m), Babbage (£49m) and Johnston (£19m). The (otal impairment
charge of £180m was calculated by comparing the future discounted post-tux cash flows expected to be
derived tfrom production of commercial reserves against the post-tax carrying value of the asset, The future
cash flows were estimated using management best estimaltes of Dated Brent oil prices for 2016 10 2021 and
NBP gus prices for 2016 to 2019, both inflated at approximately 5% thereafter. The future cash flows were
discounted using a post-tax discount rate of 7.7%. Assumptions involved in impairment measurement
include estimates of commercial reserves and production volumes, future oil and gas prices and the level
and timing of expenditures, all of which arc inherently uncertain, The principal cause of the impairment
charge heing recognised in the year is a reduction in the short to medium term oil and gas price
assumptions being used when determining the future discounted cash [ows for cach field. In addition to
the impact of the reduced oil and gas price assumptions, reviews of the expected decommissioning costs tor
the Johnston, Babbage, Caister, Hunter, Rita and Orca fields have also driven part of the impairment
charge.
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12, Property, plant and equipmenl (Conlinued)

The impairment charge in 2014 relates to Huntington (£30m), Orca (£32m), Minke {(£7m), Hunter (£1m},
Jahnston (£35m), Babbage (£17m}, Ravenspurn North (£1m), The otal impaivment charge of £123m was
caleulated using management's best estimates of Dated Brent oil prices and NBP gas prices for 20105 to
2020 inflated at approximately 2% to 3.5% thereafter. The future cash flows were discounted using a
post-tax discount rate of 7.1%.. The principal cavse of the impairment charge being recognised in the year
is u reduction in the short to medium term oil price assumptions being used when determining the future
discounted cash flows for each field and also increased costs on Huntington, Babbage and Ravenspurn
North ficlds have also driven part of the impairmeni churge.

The impairment charge in 2013 relates 10 Babbage (£14m). Johnsion (£2m), Caister (£3m). Hunter (£2m),
Orea (£5m) and Minke (£1m). The total impairment charge of £27m was caleulated using management’s
best estimates of Dated Brent oil prices and NBP gas prices for 2014 1o 2019 inflated at approximately 3%
o 6% thercalicr. The future cash [lows were discounted using a post-tax discount rate of 7.4%. The
principal cause of the impairment charge being recognised in the year is a reduction in the reserves profiles
used to only include commercial reserves and exclude possible reserves,

13, Inventorics

L January
2013 2013 2014 2015
000 £000 2001} E{L11}
Consumables .o e e 463 3,447 3412 580
Petroleum products . . . .o e e e e — 2704 710 214

463 6,156 4,122 T4

No inventories have been pledged as collateral.

14, Trade and other receivables

I January

2013 2013 2014 2HS

£000 £000 £000 £
Trade receivables . ... L L Lo 23072 18330 6,935 9474
Amounts owed by LLON Group companies . ... ... ... ... ... 3482 16283 19604 13,109
Other receivables . |, L o it e 6,652 22732 13,703 7.253
Prepayments . .. 6,906 7259 4465 2325
Accrucd INCOMIC .. L. 1786 2843 L1200 1,207

75,501 67,467 45,627 33,368

The earrying values of the trade and other receivables are not materially different to their fair value as at
e balance sheet dale.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

L Januwary
2013 2013 2014 2015
EODD 00 R EDH)
Cash and cash equivalents. ... ... o oo ool 13,404 2 B5I151 148833
Other financial liability ... o0 oo oo o oL — (16,109 —

13404 {16,107) 85,151 148853

The EPUK Group participates in an arrangement whereby any surplus in the EPUK Group’s current
accounts are transferred to E.ON UK Haolding Limited, a related party, at the end of each waorking day,
Additionally amounts are also drawn down by the EPUK Group under this arrangement for short (erm
funding purposes. Amounts in relation to cash pooling arrangement included in cash and cash cquivalent
as at 31 December 2015 is £148.0 million (2014: £585.2 million, 2013: £nil, 1 January 2013: £nil). As at
31 December 2013, the Group had drawn down short term funding from E.ON UK Iolding of
£16.1 million which has heen elassified as ~Other financial liability™.
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15. Cash and cash equivalents (Conlinued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash

cquivalents staled in the table above, net of outstanding overdrawn amounlts.

Amounts in relation (0 cash pooling arrangements are considered 1o be cash and cash equivalent as
amounts are; held to meeting short-term commitments, readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, The cash is easily accessible as there are no restrictions in

place preventing the EPUK Group accessing [unds.

16. Trade and other payables

I Januwary
2013 2013 2014 2015
£0UH) £0410 £01H) £00)
Trade payables. . .. ... ... .. o o oL (1.670) —  (5,805) {797)
Amounts owed o KON Group companics . ... ... ... ... (1L074) {4210y  (6,052) (5.32%)
Accrued eXPONSCS . ..ol e (40309 (43,200 (23.313) (20.080)
Crude Oil overlift . ... ... . o (7.198) {4,338y (2,782)  (L.66Y)
Other pavables oL o o e — {6,023y (LO0Dy (3.446)
(66.251) (57,971) (40,953) (37.320)

The carrying values of the trade and other payables approximate to their thir value as at the balance sheet

date.

17. Obligations under leases

At 1 Janoary

2013 2013 2014 201%
EOHH) £000 EOUH) £000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as
an expense I e year .. ... ... . — 7222 13,916 13.825
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as
follows:
Within one year ... ... L L 12.633 140091 14455 21470
T two TO FIVE VEATS L L .t e e e e 24,7600 41,517 32610 27713
Over five yeurs ... ... . 3447 3.206 0 —
70.840 58,814 47065 49,189

The EPUK Group holds contracts for the fourth and sixth to cighth floors of 129 Wilton Road in London
which will continue until August 2008, In addition, the EPUK Group holds the lease to the fifth floor of

129 Wilton Road in Londown, which will continue vntil June 2019,

The EPUK Group also holds o contract for the first floor of South Union Plaza 1 Aberdeen whicl will

continue until Iebruary 2017,

LPUK is a lessee under the Huntington project for a floating, production, storage and offloading (1'PS0)
vessel, The lease term commenced in 2013 and will continue for five yvears until 2018,
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18. Provisions

Note 20013 2014 015
£000 £000 £000
Current provision:
Total provisions a2t T JAMUATY . . .. .0 e v e e e ne e e (630% (11,815) (13,099)
Revision arising [rom:
New provisions and changes in estimates . ... ... ..o L. (15,082)  (9,933) {593)
L U= 7017 86351 943
Disposals . . e — — —
Lxchange differences o ..o L oL L — — —
Current provisions at 31 December., . ... ... ... .. v u. (1LEI15Yy (13,009) (12,749)
Note 2013 2014 2005
£000 £000 £000
Long term provision:
Total provisions at [ Janvary . ... ... oL o oL (159.862) (185.930) (204.541)
Revision arising [rom:
New provisions and changes inoestinmates . ..o oL {17,979} (9.217) (110.727)
Pavments ... ... — — —
Disposals . ... . . — — —
Exchunge dilferences o . ..o i e i e e e — — —
Unwinding ot discount on decommissioning provision .. .. ... . 3 (8.109)  (9374) (7993
Total provisions at 31 December . ... ... ... .. ... (185,930) (204,541} (323,261)

The above current and long term provisions relate wholly 1o decommissioning.

The decommissioning provision represents the present value of decommissioning costs relating 1o oil and
gay interests in the UK North Sea which are expected (o be incurred up to 2039, ‘Lhese provisions huave
been ercated based on the EPUK Group’s internal estimates and, where available. operators cstimates.
Based on the current economic enviconment, ussumptions have heen made which ure believed to be a
reasonable basis upon which Lo estimate (the [uture lability. These estimates are reviewed regularly to take
inte account any material changes to the assumptions. However, actual deeommissioning costs will
ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required, which will
reflect market conditions at the relevant time. Lurthermore, the timing of decommissioning is likely to
depend on when the ficlds cease to produec at cconomically viable rates. This in turn will depend upon
future oil and gas prices, which are inherently uncertuin.

Changes in estimaies mainly relate to an increase in the estimated luture cosis of decommissioning for
Hunter, Caister. untington, Qrea, Johnston and Bubbage ficlds.

19. Financial instruments
Financial visk management objectives and policies

The EPUK Group’s principal linancial liabilities, other than derivative linuncial instruments {derivatives),
comprise accounts und other payables. The main purpose of the derivatives is to manage commendily price
tlucruations. The EPUK Group has various financial assets such as accounts receivable and other financial
assets, which arise directly from its operations.

It is the EPUK Group's policy that all transactions involving derivatives must be directly related to the
underlying business of the EPUK Group. The EPUK Group does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative exposures.

The main risks that could adverscly affeet the EPUK Group’s financial asscts, liabilitics or future cash
flows are commadity price risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The EPUK Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge some of these risk exposures. The use of linancial derivaiives is governed by E.ON
Group policies. which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives.
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19, Financial insirumenis (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The FPUK Group uses derivatives to manage its exposure to oil and gas price fluctuations. il and gas
hedging is undertaken with swaps and forward sales contracts. Oil is hedged using Brent oil price swaps.
Fuir value hicrarchy

In line with TAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement), the FPUK Group uses the
[ollowing hicrarchy for determining the Tair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1z quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

Level 20 other techniques for which all inputs which have a sivnificant effect on the recorded fair value are
obscrvable, either direetly or indireetly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant cffect on the recorded value that are not
based on observable market data.

Assets and liahilities measured at fair vaiue

The EPUK Group held the following financial instruments measured at fuir valuc.

The currying value of financial assets and liabilitics arc equal to the fair value and have heen designated as
level 2 as at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, 31 December 2013 and 1 Tanuary 2013,

I January

2015 2014 2013 2013

Asscets measared at fair value
OIl price sWap COMMACIS o v v v ittt tre v oo 29,726 42856 — —
Gas forward sale conlracts . .. ..o o L o 28,990 26362 43 3
Lmbedded derivative COntracts . . ... ... n oo e et 2.809 1,393 10,142 11,544
L 61,525 70,611 10,185 11,552
Current / Nou-current split of hoancial assets measured at Lar

value
L T 49,378 42,332 3,534 2885
NOD-CUITEHL . o o e e et e e e e e et e e e 11,947 28279 6,651 8.667
Total ... .. 61,525 70,611 10,185 11,552
I iabilities measured at fair value
Oll price swap CONMTUcs . ... . i e e e e — — (2722 (5484
Gas forward sale contracts ... ... .. L L — — — —
Embedded derivative cONTrcis. . ... u oo v ire v n e (381 (12,328y (23,303) (23.6016)
Total ... {381 {(12,328) (26,225) (29.100)
Current { Non-current split of financial liabilitics measured at

Tl vl s
CUITENL . . (381} — (4829  ({5.930)
NON-CUITENL . L o e e e e e — 12,328y (21,396) (23,170)
5 52 (381) (12,328) (26,225) (29,100)
Financial asset £ Habilities at Lair vadue (net} . ..o oo oL L. 61,144 58283 (16,0400 {17.548)

Commodity prive risk
Ol
At 31 December 2015 the EPUK Group had 0.8 million barrels of Dated Brent oil hedged through

financiul swaps for 2016 al an average price of US§97bbl. During the vear, oll swaps sales contracts for
LI million barrels matured generating an income of £34.2m. This income is included within sales revenues.
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19. Financial insirumenis {(Continped)

At 31 December 2014 the EPUK Group had 1.9 million barrels of Dated Brent oil hedged through
linancial swaps for 2015 and 2016 at an average price of USS99%bhl During the year, oil swaps sales
contracts tor 1.1 million barrels matured generating an income of £3.9m. This income is included within
sales revenues,

At 31 Ddecember 2013 the EPUK Group had 0.4 million barrels of Dated Brent oil hedged through
financial swaps for 2014 al an average price of US$97bbl. During the year, oil swaps sales contracts for
0.6 million barrcls marured. gencrating a loss of £5.3m. This loss is included within sales revenucs.

At 3 December 2012, the EPUK Group had 1.0 million barrels of Dated Brent oil hedged through
financial swaps for 2013 and 2014 at an average floor price of US595/bhl.

Cras

At 31 December 2015, 105.1m therms of gas was subjeet to monthly torward sales contracts tor 2016-2018
at an average price of £{L34/therm, During the vear, forward contracts for 109.4m therms matured
generating an income of £69.4m. This income is included within sales revenues.

At 31 December 2014, 214.53m therms of gas was subject to monthly forward sales contracts for 2015-2018
at an average price of £0.536/therm. During the vear, forward contracts for 105.1m were put in place and
matured generating an income of £66,1m, Tn addition, gas price swaps for 52,3 therms matured generating
an income of £4.9m. This income is included within sules revenues.

Al 31 December 2013, 52.3m therms of gas was hedged through financial swaps for 2014 it an average
price of £0.67/therm. During the year, gas swap contracts for 95.6m therms matured generating a loss of
£3.3m, This loss is included within sales revenues,

At 31 December 2012, 137m therms of gas was hedged through financial swaps for 2013-2014 at an
average price of L0.65/(herm.

Impact on income statement

Maovement in the fair value of financial assets and liahilities is recorded through the income statement as
scl out in the table below:

2015 2014 2013
Tair valuc
Asat 1 Janmary . . ... .. 58,283 (16,040) (17.548)
Movement recorded through the income statement. ... ... ... ... . ... 2861 74323 [.508
31 December ... ... e 61,144 58,283  (16,040)

Other financial instrements

Credit risk

The FPUK Group's credit risk is attributable to its trade receivables and other financial assets. The
amount of reccivables presented in the balance sheet is net of allowances for doubtlul receivables, The

LPUK Group docs not require collateral or other seeurity to support reccivables from customers or
related parties, The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instraments is considered limited.
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19. Financial insirumenis {(Continped)

The ageing profile of the FPUK Group’s trade and other receivables and trade and other payables at the
end of cach period, including the related undiscounted interest amounts, s sel out in the table below:

t]_rf;;; 2 to 3 months I to Over

1 mwonth 3 months (o 1 year 5 vears 5 vears Total

£000s EOM)S EHs 0005 EDOs £000s
31 December 2015:
Trade and other receivables - 0oL ... 31,043 — — — — 31,043
Trade and other payables . ... .. .. . ... (34,823 — (2.497) — — (37320
1 {1,780) — (2,497) — — {6,277)
31 December 2014:
Trade and other receivables ... L ... 41,162 — — — — 41.162
Trade and other payables . ... ... ... .. ... (38.076) — (2.877) — —  (40,933)
Total . ... ..o 3,086 — 2,877 — — 209
31 December 2013
Trade and other receivables ... .. ... ... 60,208 — — — — 60,208
Trade and other payables . o000 00000 (56,798) — (1.173) — — (37,971)
Total . .. ... 3410 — (1,173} — — {2.257)
I January 2013
Trade and other receivables - 0oL ... 08,502 — — — — 68,592
Trade and other payables . ... .. .. . ... (064,578) — (1.673) — —  (66,251)
1 4,014 — (1,673) — — 2,341
Liquidity risk
In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds arc availuble for ongoing operations and

tuture developments, the EPUK Group uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance provided
by the E.ON group of companics.

The EPUK Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequale reserves, banking and borrowing
facilitics and by continuously monitering foreeust and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities and future capital and operating commitments,

20. Deferred tax

1 Junuary
2013 2013 2004 2015
£Q00 2000 000 £000
Deferred tax asscts . .. . o e e 159,077 203,203 36,554 70,360
Deferred tax Labilities . ... ... ... oo o o o000 (3257.035) (288.883) (153.026) (96.693)

(97,958) (85,6800 (116,472) (20,324)

Consolidated balance sheet

At Cunsu.lidult'{l incume
1 Junuary statement

2013 2013 2014 2015 213 2014 215

£0010) £000 E000 00 £0040 £ £004
Fixed asscts and allowances ... ... (241884 (274,379 (115,369) {70,747) (32,495} 159.010 44.622
Decommissioning . . ... ... ........ 28731 37,971 32,830 70519 9,24{) (3.141) 37,689
Tax losses and allowances .. ... 96633 128368 3,723 5849 31,715 (124645 2120
Other allowance .. ... ... ... .. .0 (0,689) (5,821)  (5,704) (5,473) 368 57 239
Decivative financial insteuments ... .. 25,231 28,181 (31,892 (20470) 2950 (60.073) 11.422
Net deferred tax Liability ... ... 0 (97.958) (85,6800 (116,472) (20.324)
Deferred tax income ¢ {expense) ... .. 12,278  (30,792) 94,148

197



Noles to the historical financial information {Continued}

20. Deferred tax (Conlinued)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liahility

2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
Balunce as at | January ... ... oL (97.958)  (85.680) (110.472)
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in the income
STMEIIEML L . oo e 12,278 (30.792)  96.148
Tax incomef{expense) during the period recognised in other
comprehensive INCOME ... ot v i s — — —
Bulance as at 31 December. .. . ... ... ... ... ... {85,680y (116472} (20,324

The EPUK Group’s unultilised tux losses and allowances are recognised at the ead of each accounting
period to the extent that taxable profits are expected to arise in the future against which those losses and
allowanges can be utilised, Based on management’s evaluation of the expeeted future profits, deterred tax
assetls wotalling £65 million (2014 £15.8 million: 2013: £nil) have not been recognised.

21. Share capital

1 January
2013 1 January 2013 2014 2018
LALIRUL] 2013 £10,000 2013 L1000 214 £10.000 2H =
shares £ shares £ shures E4 shares £
EPUK Ordinary Shares:
Authorised, ealled-up. issucd
and Tully-paid .. ... L 20100 0 2010000000 21100 211000000 21,1060 210600000 21,1000 211,000,000

FPUK Ordinury Shares

The vights and restrictions attached to the Ordinary Shares are as follows:

Dividend rights: The rights of the holders of Ordinary Shares shall rank parf passu in all respects with
cach other in relation (o dividends.

Winding up or reduction of capitaf:

On a return of capital on a winding up or otherwise (other than on conversion, redemption or purchase of
shares) the rights ol the holders of Qrdinary Shares to participale in the distribution of the assets of EPUK
available for distribution shall rank pari passu in all respects with cach other.

Voring rights:

The holders of Ordinary Shares shall be entitled (o receive notice of, altend, vote and speak al any General
Meeting of LPUK.
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22. Notes (o the cash Mow statement

Loss betorc tax for the vear. o000 o o oo Lo

Adjustments for;

Depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairment ... ... ... ... ..

Lxploration cxpense ... .. e
Interest revenue and ‘rm.mce ofum e,
Finance costs and other fitance expenxes e

Ciain on commodity derivative financial instruments ... .o L L

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment .,

Operating cash flows hefore movements in working capital ... ... ... .
{Increase)idecrease in inventorics . .. ..o oL o
Decrcase in receivables ..o o e e e e
Decrease inpayables . ... .. .. o o e
Decrease in provision . ... ... e

Cush generated by operations .. ... ... . o e
Income taxes paid .. ...
Income taxes received . . . oL oL L

Net cash from operating activities .. ... ... ... ... . . o L.

23, Related party transactions

2013 2014 s
£000 £000 £000
(3,064) (30.583) (209.963)
98190 223.711 267613
4000 13563 32,534
(572} (312) (957)
8544 9662 8127
(1,508) (74.322)  (2.861)
144 _ —
06,334 141,719 94493
(5693} 2034 3,328
11,414 34018 24,588
(11,155} (30,915) (15,580
(7917} (8.651) (943)
92,983 138.205 105,886
(2,151} (5.636)  (5.650)
(17420 1955 20,370
108252 134,524 120,606

Transactions between LPUK and its subsidiarics, which are related partics, have been climinated on

consolidation and are not disclosed in this note,

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
partics [or the relevant financial year and wmounts outstanding al year end.

1 Janvary 31 December 31 December 3 December
2013 2013 2014 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sales o related partics
Ultimate controlling party .. ... ... ... ... ..... — — —
Associated companies ... ... Lo oL 105,131 139,743 145,981
Other related parties ... ..o oo o i i — — —
Purchases from related parties
Ultimate controlling party .. ... ... ... ... .. ... — — —
Associated companies .. ..o o i (43.610) {37.193) (26,545)
Other related parties ... ..o o o oL — — —
Amounts due (rom relaied parties
Ullimate controlling party .. ... oo oot — — — 71
Associated companics L. ... oL L L 30,489 16318 88,823 71,527
Other related parties ... ... .. .. . o . — — —
Anmounts due (o related partics
Ultimate controlling party .. ... ... ... ... ..... — — — —
Associated companies ... ... Lo oL (16,558} (6,651) (6,052) {5.372)

Other related parties

Ulimate controlfing party

The ultimate controlling party of EPUK {3 E.ON,
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23X, Related party transactions (Continued)
Assoctated compunics

All companies that are directly or indirectly controlled by FLON, other than EPUK and its subsidiaries
huve been classified as associaled companics.

Income and expenses from transactions with related companies is generated mainly through the purchase
and sale of gas and crude oil. Receivables from related companics consist of trade receivables, reeeivables
in relation to derivative financial instruments. and balances owed to or from associated companies.

Terns and conditions of transactions with related partics

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at terms cquivalent to those that prevail in arm's
length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest tree. There have been
no guarantecs provided or received for any related party receivables or pavables. For the year ended
31 December 20105, the EPUK Group has not reeorded any impairment of reeeivables reluting to amounts
owed by related parties (2014 £nil; 2013 £nil; | January 2013; £nil). This assessment is undertaken each
linancial year by examining the linancial position of the related party and the market in which the related
party operates.

Directors and executive remunerafion

The remuncration of Dircetors and other key members of management during the year is highlighted
below.

2013 2014 2015
£000 £A00 £ 000
Short-lernm emplovee benelils ... ... . . . e 1.948 1,558 1499
Post-cmployment benefits ..o o — — —
Orther long-term benefits; share-based pavments. . ... ... . e v i ns — — —
1.948  1.558  [.499

The EPUK Group participates i a delined contribution retirement benehit plan.

24, Capital commitments and guaraniees

At 31 December 20135, the EPUK Group had commitments for funre capital expenditure totalling
approximalely £0.6 million (2014: £24.3 million: 2013: £24.9 million: | Jatwary 20030 £52.5 million) in
relation to ongoing projects.

The LPUK Group did not have any other contingent liabilitics as at 31 December 2015 (2014 £nil, 2013:
£nil; 1 January 2013 £nil),

25, Dividends

A dividend of £60 million was proposed and paid for the year ended 31 December 2005 on 24 February
2016,

No dividend was pa[d in 20105, 2014 and 2013 for the vears ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012,

26. Ultimate parent undertaking

The ultimate parent company and confrolling party as at 31 December 2015 was E,ON, a company
corporated in Germaty.

The imntediate parent company and controlling  parly as at 31 December 2015 was E.ON
Beteiligungen Gmbll, 4 company incorporated in Germany.
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26. Cltimate parenl underiaking {Continued}

The smallest and largest group in which the results of FPUK are consolidated is that headed by E.ON,
whose principal place of business is Germany. The consolidated (inancial statemenis of E.ON are availuble
to the public and may he obtained trom L.ON-Platz 1. D-40479 Dusscldort, Germany.,

27. Principal subsidiaries

Al 31 December 2015, EPUK had investments in the following 100 per cent owned subsidiarics which

principally afteeted the profits or net assets of the EPUK Group.

Country of incorporation and

Name of company Principal activity uperation
E.ON E&P UK Energy Trading Limited .. ..  Natural gas trading England
L.ON L&P UK LU Limited .. ... ... L. Natural gas cxploration. Lngland

development and production
The registered address of EPUK and its subsidiaries is 129 Wilton Read, London, SWIV 1JZ,

Shares in all subsidiaries are held directly by EPUK,

28. Transition to IFRS

No consolidated financial statements have previously been prepared for the EPUK Group as EPUK took
advantage of the exemption available under Companies Act 2006 from the preparation of consolidated
Mnancial statements, as the resulls of EPUK und its subsidianies were being consolidated in the Tnadcial
stutements of EON SL. The statutory entitics within the LPUK Group prepared cntity financial
statements under UK GAAP for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013, 20014 and 2013,

The EPUK Group has adopted TERS for the first time in this historical financial information for the three
years ended 31 December 2015, In preparnyg the historical [nadcial information, the EPUK Group's
opening statement of financial position was prepared as at 1 January 2013, the EPUK Group’s date of
transition to IFRS,

Since EPUK did not prepare consolidated financial statements, reconciliations of previously reported
amounts 1o those included in these fnancial stulemtents have not been provided.
Exemptions applied

TFRS | allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under [FRS. The EPUK Group hus applied the [ollowing exemplons in preparing the
opening balance sheet under [FRS:

+  1I'RS 3 (Business Combinations) has not been applicd to acquisitions of subsidiaries or of interests in
associates and joint ventures that vecurred before 1 January 2013,

Lstimuics

The estimates at 1 January 2013 are consistent with those made as at the saume date in the UK GAAP

statutory entity financial statements (after adjustments to retlect any differences in accounting policies),

29. Events afier the balance sheet date

On 13 January 2016, Premicr announced that it had agreed to acquire the whole of EPUK and its
sibsidiaries for a net consideration of $120 million plus working eapital adjustments,

On 19 February 2016, EPUK reduced its share capital from £21 1,000,000 o £30,007,000, On 24 February
2016, 4 divideud of £60 million wus proposed and paid for the yvear ended 31 December 2015,
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PART VI—UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE
ENLARGED GROLUP

Diraft Report on Pro forma financial information

Deloitte.

Deloirte LILP

2 New Streel Sguare
London

LC4A IBZ

The Board of Dircctors

on behalf of Premier Ol ple
4th Floor

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Lidinburgh, E111 2N

RBC Burope Limiled
Riverbank House

2 Swan Lane
London, EC4R 3BF

7 April 2016

Dear Sirs,
Premier OQil ple (“Premier™)

Woe report on the pro forma linancial information (the “Pro forma financial information™) set out in
Part VI of the Circular, which has been preparced on the basis deseribed in the noles for illusirative
purposes only, to provide information about how the Acquisition might have aftected the financial
inforniation presented on the basis of the accounting policies adopted by Premier in preparing the
linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003, This report s required by the Commission
Regulation (EC) No 809,2004 (the “Prospectus Directive Regulation™) as applicd by Listing Rule 13.3.3R
and is given [or the purpose of complying with that requirement and [or no other purpose.

Responsibilities

It is the respensibility of the Dircetors to prepare the Pro forma financial information in accordance with
Aunnex 1 items 1 to 6 of the Prospectus Directive Regulation as applied by Listing Rule 13.3.3RK.

It s our responsibility (o [orm an opinion, as o the proper compilation of the Pro forma financial
mformation and Lo report that opinion W you in accordance with Annex [l item 7 of the Prospectlus
Direetive Regulation as applied by Listing Rule 13.3.3R.

Save tor any responsibility which we may have to those persons to whom this report is expressly addressed
and which we may have (o holders of Ordinary Shares as 4 result of the inclusion ol this report in this
Circular, (o the fullest extenl permiticd by law we do nol assume any responsibility and will not accept any
liability to any other person for any loss suffered by any such other person as a result of, arising out of, or
in connection with this report or our statement, required by and given solely [or the purposes of complying
with Listing Rule 13.4.1R {6}, consenting to its nclusion in this Circular.

In providing this opinion we are notl updating or relreshing any reporls or opinions previously made by us
on any financial information used in the compilation of the Pro forma financial information, nor do we
accept responsibility for such reports or opinions beyond that owed 1o those o whom those reports or
opinions were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board in the United Kingdom. The work that we performed lor the purpose of making this
report, which involved no independent examination of any of the underlyving financial information,
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consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source documents,
considering the cvidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the Pro forma financial information
with the Dircctors.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain the information and explanations we considered
necessary in order fo provide us with reasonable assurance that the Pro forma financial information has
been properly compiled on the basis stated and that such basis is consisient with the accounting policies of
Premicr.

Our work has not been earried out in accordance with auditing or other standards and practices generally
accepted in jurisdictions outside the United Kingdom, including the United States, and accordingly should
not be relicd upon as if it had been carried out in accordance with (hose standards or practices.

Opinion
In our apinion:
{a) the Pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the basis stated; and

{b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of Premier,
Yours taithfully

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Aceoanianits

Deloitte LILFP is o fimited  lihifity parinership  registered  in Lnglond  and Wales  with regisicred
auniher OQCINIO75 und ity registered office wt 2 New Street Square, London FC4A 3BZ. United Kingdom,
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of Deloitte Tonche Tofimasu Limded (“DTTL”), o UK
private eonnpany limdted by guarantee, whose member firms are legaifly separate and independent entities. Please
ser wwwdeloitte.co.ukiubowt for a detaifed dexcripion of the legud structure of DTTI. and {y meniber firns,



Unaudited pro forma statement of nel assets of the Enlarged Group atl
31 December 2015

The unaudited pro forma statement of net assets of the Enlarged Group in this Part V1 has been prepared
based on the consolidated balance sheet of Premier as at 31 December 2015 und the consolidated balance
sheet of LPUK as at 31 December 2013,

The wnaudited pro forma statemenl of net assels has been preparcd (o illustrate the elfect of the
Acquisition on the consolidated net assets of Premier as if it had been completed on 31 December 2015,
The unuudited pro forma statement ol net assets has been prepared for illusirative purposes only and, by
its nature. addresses a hypothetical situation and. theretore, does not represent the Enlarged Group's
actual financial position. This unaudited pro forma statement does not take into account trading ot
Premier or EPUK subsequent to 31 December 2015,

The unaudited pro forma f(inancidl information has been prepared on a consistent basis with the
accounting policics and presentation adopied by Premicr in relation o its conselideted  financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, on the basis of the notes set out below and in accordance
with Listing Rule 13.3.3R.

Furthermore, the unaudited pro forma [linuncial informution set out in this Purt does not constitute
statulory geeounts within the meaning of scction 434 of the Companies Act 2006,

The pro [orma statement of net assets set oul below s based on information which has been extracted
without material adjustment from the audited consolidated balance sheetr of Premier as at 31 December
2015 as incorporated by reference in Part VIII of this document and the audited consolidated bulance
sheet of EPUK as at 31 December 2015 as sel out in Part 'V oof this document. The EPUK consolidaied
balance sheet has heen prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies of Premier for the year
ended 31 December 2015, Further adjustments have heen made in accordance with Listing Rule 13.3.3R.
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Non-current assets:

Unaudited pro forma statement of nel assets of the Enlarged Group atl
31 December 2015 (continued)

Adjustments
'remier net EPUK net assets
assels as al as ul EPLK Avyuisilion
JI December JI December  intercompany  KPUK cash aeenunting
Nute 2015 2015 adjustment dividend adjustment

Pro forma

US$ million  US$ million'®  US$ million'®'  USS million™ 188 million®®

Intangible explorition and

US% millinn

cvaluition assets .. L. T49T Lth — — — H3n. 1
Property, plant sand
cyuaipent ... L. ol IR 1UE04
Goodwill ..o 00000 2408 — — — 1376 RELR"
[nvestment in associate . . . 53 R
[ong-term emploves benelit
plan surplus .. ... L. 0.3 — — — — 1.5
Long-term reewivables oL 1.5 17.6 — — — 2901
Deferred rax assets . ., L L. 4714 — — — — 86
4.491.1 42,7 1376 ST
Current assets:
Inventories _, L oL . ., ., 20,4 1.2 — — — 2200
Trade amd wther reccivables . 2408 19,1 [(19.3) 2L
Tax recoverable © oL 336 s34 — — — 390
Derivative financial
instruments ... L. 11%.3 — — — 191.2
Cash and cash equivalents . 4M.3 1.4 (2134} (1399 7R3
LSER (7.8%) (2134} (139.9) AL
Totul assets ... L L. LR (7.8} i213.4) (2.2) 58724
Current liabilities:
Trade and wther payables . {H¥74) [54.9} 7.8 {434.4)
Current Lax puyable . ... X — — — — {hd.0)
Provisions ... ... ... ... {21.5) {187} — — — {43.5)
Derivalive financiul
instruments ... L. {76.5) {1} — — — (77N
Shert-term detd L0 — — — — — —
Ideterred income L ., L, {200 — — — — {204
[594.2) {74.2} R — — {66{.3)
Nel current assets ... ... 2206 2732 — 12130 (139.9) 140.5
Non-current liabilities:
Corvertible honds . . oL L. (232 — — — — {232.0)
Other long-lerny debt L. {2.382.5) — — — — (2.382.5)
Ideterred tox Halvilivies |, ., (1933 {204 — — {2237
Deterred meome L. L {R7.0) {R7.0)
Long-term pravisions . .. . . (L0637 (4752} — — — (L3314
Long-term cmployee benefit
plam delicit. . ..o L. {150 — — — — {15.2)
(3.976.9) (551} — — — {4,482
Total liabilities . . . . .. ... L5711} (579.2) 7.8 — — {5.0142.5)
MNet assets . .. ... ... .. TiA 2108 — 2130 2.2 7299
Notes:
{17 The oot assets of Premier us out 31 December 2005 have Dbeen extracted without material adjosument from the audited
comsolidaied Timmeinl informetion incorporated by reference in Part W1 of this document.
{2} The net assets of BERUK as al 31 Degember 2015 have been extragted withow medeeinl sdjustment froam 1he audited finangial
informeatoen of EPUK included in Part W of this docwoent and using an exchange rate of USSLATE
{3} This adjustrment refleces thwe Cornpletion process, which will result o the settlernent ol i r-company balaocees botween EPUK
and The Seller Group,
{4y By Completion a cash dividend of L1452 million (US$213.4 millian at an exchange rae of USS1LAT:CY will be paid by HPUK

s parcnl company, The Diest #6000 nullwn of tis dividend was paad on 24 Febouwary 2006, This adjosument shows the effvet of
this gash payment,



Unaudited pro forma statement of nel assets of the Enlarged Group atl
31 December 2015 (continued)

{3} The unaucdited pro forma statement of net assets has heen prepared on the basis that the Acguisition will be teated as a
business combinalion in aceordance with IFRS 3. However it does not rellect any Fair value adjustments o the acquired assets
ancl lahilities as the fair value measarement of these Ttems will anly be performed as at the date of Completion, For the
purpascs of the pro lonnu staterment o oel assels, the eacess purchase consideration over Lhe careviong umount of the net assers
of EPLK T been anributed e gocdwill and no pro forma impairment charge has been applivd to the goodwill balinee in the
puriad, The Fair valoe adjustments, when finalised following Completion of the Acyuisition. may e material. The preliminary
guodwill nrising s been ealeulited s follonws:

LSY millinn

Purghasy consideration (see (500) hulowd © oo e e e e e 13500
Mot assets of EPURK ws ot 310 December 205, 00 0 0 e e (218}
Cash dividend paid (note Ay 0000 L 2134
Purchasie comsideration in exeess of net assels (shown as goodwill) 0000000 oo oo oo o oL 137.4

{3300y This reflects the payment of eash consideration of S135.0 million For the acquisition of EPURC e addition, it fs estimited
that transaction expenses af approaimately 4.9 million will be incurred, such that the wtal cash outtlow relating o the
Acquisition will be $139.49 nullion. These trinsaction expenses will be cxpenscd.

it While Premivr and EPUK had certiin Balances payable to and receivahle trom each ather a 31 December 20030 no ikdjustment
has been made to eliminate such balances as s impact 15 not considered matertal.
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PART ¥IT—ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
1.  Dhrector’s Responsibility Slatement

Premier and the Divectors, whose names appear in paragraph 3 below, accept responsibility for the
information contained in this document. To the best of the knowledge and beliel of Premicr and the
Dircetors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in
this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to atfect the import of such
information.

2.  Incorporation and Registered Office

Premier was incorporated and registered with the name of Tralglen (No, 836) Limited in Scotland on
31 July 2002 with registration number SC234751. The Company name was changed from Dalglen (No. 836)
Limited to Premicr Oil Group Limited pursuant to a written resolution passed on 13 September 2002,
Premier was re-registered as a public limited company on 10 March 2003, and its name was changed from
Premicr Oil Group Limited to Premicr Oil ple pursuant (o 4 special resolution passed on 3 March 2003
and which became effective on 15 July 2003,

The principal legislation under which Premicr operates is the Companics Act 20006 and regulations made
thereunder,

Premier is domiciled in the United Kingdom and its registered office is 4th Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle
Terrace, Edinburgh E111 2EN. Premier’s head office is 23 Lower Belgrave Strect, London SWIW ONR.
3. Dhrectors and Service Contracts and Letlers of Appointment

3.1 Directors

The names and principal functions of the Directors of Premier Oil ple are as follows:

Mamg Pasition

Mike Welton « .. e Non-Executive Chairman

Tony Durrant . .. ..o oL L Chiel Executive Offlicer

Richard ROSC. .. .o o i e e it i e e e e Finance Dircetor

Robin Allan, .. .. e e e e Director, North Sea and Exploration

Neil THawkings - . oo oo oo L Dhrector, South East Asia and Falkland Islands
David Bamford . ... . .. .. ... .. ... Non-Lxecutive Dircctor

Anne Marie Cannon ..o o e e e Non-Executive Director

Joe Darby ... o Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
David Lindscll .. ... .0 o o o e e Non-Lxecutive Dircctor

Michel Romieuw . ... oo i i Non-Executive Director

Jane Hinkley .. ..o oo oo o oo Non-Exceutive Director

32 Dhireclors’ service contracts and letters of appointment

Details of executive Directors’ service contracts and non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment
providing for benefits upon (ermination of employment are set out in the section headed “Directors”
Remuneration Report” of the Premier 2015 Annual Report, which is incorporated into this document by
reference.
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4, Direclors’ interests
4.1 Directors” interests in the Ordinary Shares

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of cach Dircctor and their immediate families in the
Ordinary Shares, including interests arising pursuant to any transaction notified o Premier pursuant to
rule 3.1.2 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, are as follows:

Percentage of issued

Number of nunher of Oredinary

Name Ordinary Shares Shares

Mike Welton . . .. . e e e 22,531 (0.0044%%
Tomy DUrrant . ... e 1,196,181 (.2342¢%%
Richard ROSC . ... e e e e e e e e 37,378 0.0073%
Robin Allan .. e e 484,784 0,0949%.
Nefl Hawkings . . oo o i e i i e 384,600 0.1144%
David Bamford . ... .. o 1.514 0.0003%
Annce Maric Cannon L . 0 O
Joe Darby . . e e 23,108 0.0045%
David Lindsell . ... .o o L 17.332 (0.0034%
Michel Romicu .. .. . 20,000 (0.0039%
Jane Hinkley . . ..o 13,234 0.0026%

4,2 Share Incentive Schemes

The Divectors’ interests in equity pool points and share awards under the 2009 Long Term Incentive Plan,
share awards under the Deferred Bonus Shure Plan, share optious under the SAYE Plan 2009 and share
allocations under the Share Incentive Plan for the linancial year ended 31 December 2015 (being the last
[ull financial year for Premier (or which an anouyl report has been published) are set oul in the section
headed “Dhrcetors’ Remuneration Report™ of the Premier 2015 Annual Reporl, which is incorporated into
this document by reference.

During the period of 1 January 2016 and the Laiest Practicable Date, Dircctors acquired the [ollowing
additional interests in Qrdinary Shares by virtue of their participation in the Share lncentive Plan:

Partnership Shares ¥Matching Shares
purchased by Directors  awarded 10 Directors
at prives hetween at prices between
Director £03%06 and £0.4740 £0.3800 and £0.4740
Robin Allan .. ... e e 1, L84 (Wb
Tony Durrant . ... ... L 1,88 [.188
Neil Hawkings 1,427 1,427
Richard Rose |, 1,427 1.427

5. Substantial Sharcholders

5.1 As at the Latest Practicable Date. Premier had reccived notification in accordance with Chapter 5 of
the Disclosure and Transpareney Rules of the following notifiable interests in the voting rights of
Premier’s Ordinary Shares;

Dale notified Nutified Notified

to the stock number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder exchange voling rights  »uling righis
AXA Investiment Managers SA™T o o oo o oo oo 24102011 40,173,814 85807
Schroders ple © ..o oo o o oo 3012018 38338530 1.51%
Artemis Investment Management LLP © ..o o L0 13052015 25,451,951 4.08%
Aviva ple & subsidiaries (dircet interests) ... ... .. o ... 27042008 3YU33529 4056
Ameriprise Financial. Tne ... oo o oo oo 200012012 24,666,340 4.66%
Novges Bank ..o o oo e UB042006 0 17,706,338 3.47%

{1y Interests shisen for Axa Investment Managers SA pre-date the EnCore transaction and related shace tssae o 20025 interests
shown fur Aviva ple and its subsidiarics pre-dute the Share Splicin 201

:._h
[

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 5, Premicr is not aware of (i) any person who as @l the Latest
Practicable Dale was interested directly or indirectly (within (he meaning of Rule 3 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules) in 3% or more ol the Ordinary Shares.
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6. Relaied party iransaclions

A description of the material provisions of agreements and other documents between the Premier Group
and various individuals and entities that may be deemed o be related parties is given in note 25 in the
scetion titled “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements™ in the Premier 2015 Annual Report and
note 24 in each of the Premier 2014 Annual Report and the Premier 2013 Annual Report, which are
incorporated into this document by reflerence. No such related party (ransactions have been entered into
by uny member of the Premicr Group during the period between | January 2016 and the Latest Practicable
Date.

7.  Material Contracts
7.1 The Premicer Group

In addition to the Acquisition Agreements which have been summarised in Part [ of this document, a
summary of all other contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) that
huve been entered into by any member of the Premicr Group either () within (he two years immediately
preceding the date of this document which are, or may be, material or (i) which have been entered into by
any member of the Premier Group and which contain provisions under which any member of the Premier
Group has an obligation or entitlement that s material as at the date of this document, is set out below:

Comunercial Agreements

Acquiisition of 60% of the petrofeunt inferests in the Falkland Istandy of Rockhopper Faxploration ple
{"“Rockhopper"')

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 July 2012 beiween Rockhopper, Premicer Oil lrag
{Exploration & Production) Limited (subseguently renamed as Premier Oil Exploration and Production
Limited) and Premier, Premier acquired certain petroleum licence interests in the Falkland Islands of
Rockhopper. including a 60%: partlicipating interest in the Sea Lion discovery situated in Falkland Islands
Petroleum Licence PLO3Z. [n consideration for the acquisition of the licence interests. Premier agreed to
pay Rockhopper $231 million in cash on completion of the transfer and certain contributions to
Rockhopper’s Tuture expenditure. The acquisition completed on 18 October 2012 and by an amendment
and restatement of the sale and purchase agreement dated 12 Junuary 2016 it was agreed to amend
Premier’s contributions to Rockhopper’s future expenditure as follows:

{A) Premier to pay 548 million of exploration costs incurred hy Rockhopper in the Falkland Tslands;
[orceast 1o be fully paid during the current exploration programme;

{B) Premicr (o pay 348 million of Sca Lion pre-development costs incurred by Rockhopper in the
Falkland [slands; this has now been fully paid:

{C} Premier to pay Rockhopper $337 million of Sea Lion Phase | development costs incurred by
Rockhopper after Sea Lion Phase 1 project sanction;

{D} Premier to pay Rockhopper 5337 million of Sea lion Phase 2 development costs incurred by
Rockhopper after Sca Lion Phase 2 project sanction:

{E) Rockhopper to pay Premicr 5159 million per calendar quarter (subject (o review prior (o Phase 1
project sanction) from the date of first oil production from Sca Lion Phase 1 for 20 calendur quarters:
and

{F) Premier to lend Rockhopper up to 5750 million for Rockhopper’s share of Sea Lion Phase |
development costs following Sea Lion Phase 1 project sanction.

Acquiisition of 40% interest in the Solun field from Clivsaor Limited (*Chrysaor”)

On 29 May 2015, Premier Qil UK Limited ("POUK™) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Chrysaor under the terms of which POUK acquired Chrysaor’s entire 40% interest in the Solan field (the
“Selan Interest™. The consideration for this transuction was the settlement of an existing loan of
5572,347,700 plus accrued interest on such sum (and future interest on such sum at a rate of 10% per
annum} between Premier and Chrysaor (the “Outstanding Loan™), and the creation of a new ‘royalty
revenue stream to he paid to Chrysaor under the terms of a Royalty and Net Production Interest Deed
entered into between POUK and Chrysaor on 29 May 2015,

208



The royalties will he paid from a notional 40% interest in the field’s net operating cash flow under three
royally streams as follows:

{A) Royalty Stream 1—an initial monthly payment based on the net produciion revenues from the Solan
Interest cach month, cupped at $3 million per vear from POUK to Chrysaor which will be offset
against any subsequent royalty payments and net production interest;

{B) Royalty Stream 2—further monthly payments, up to $100 million in aggregate, based on the net
production revenues [rom the Solan Interest cach month, provided that such further payments will
only be made (i) following repayment by Chrysaor to POUK of the Qutstanding Loan, and (ii) once
the cap in relation to Royalty Stream 1 has been reached in a given vear; and

{C) Rovalty Stream 3—calculated and operates as per Royalty Stream 1 with additional reductions for
certain development capital costs, provided that payments under Royalty Stream 3 will only
commence once the aggregate amount which would otherwise have been payable under Royalty
Stream 3 exceeds the estimated Solan decommissioning costs.

Agrecrent with FowStream Magni Lid. (FlawStream ™) in relation 1o the vansfor of « 13%: produciion
interest in the Solun field’s production

On 29 May 2015, POUK entered into an agreement with FlowStream whereby Flowstream agreed to make
a payment of $100 million to Premicr in consideration for the iransler of 153% of Solan (ield production o
FlowStream (the “Streaming Deed™). Premier guarantces the obligations of POUK under the Streaming
Deed,

The key terms of the Sireaming Dleed provide as follows:

{A) following each lifting of Solan hydrocarhons, POUK shall deliver the relevant share (153%) to
TFlowStream;

{B) FlowStrcam shall pay transportation costs and marketing fees (o be dedueted for cach delivery; and
{C} the Streaming Deed shall terminate on the carlier of:

(i) the date on which the agreed return is achicved; or

(il the date the Solan Licence expires (currently 15 March 2018, subject (o lurther extensions),

the result of which being that the length of the term of the Streaming Deed is dependent on the Solan
field's production levels and the tuture oil price.

Acguisition by POUK of interests in the Huntington field from Noveco Oif (UK) Limited ("Noveco™) andd
fonag UK Hhontington Limited (“fona ™} wnder e Huntington Joine Operating Agreement

On 8 Junuary 2016 and 29 January 2016 respectively, POUK cleeted to acquire trom Noreeo and Iona a
percentage of their respective equity interest shares in the Huntington field (together, the “POUK Election
Interests™) for no consideration pursuant 1o the default and forfeiture provisions within a joint operating
agreement in relation to the Huntington field (the Huntington JOA™). POUK already held a 409 cquity
interest in the Huntington fieldl.

The transters to POUK of the POUK Election Interests are being facilitated by a deed of novation and a
deed of licence (ransfer which will provide for the simultancous transfer of the POUK Election Interests to
POUK (the “Transfer Documents™). lona is currently in administration and lona’s administrator, FTI
Consulting, Tne., is currently reviewing these documents.

As at the Latest Practicable Trate, the completion of the transter of the POUK Election Tnterests to POUK
hus not yet oceurred. The transfers will be completed upon the (Inalisation and exccution of the
aforementioned documents, which are in near tinal form. However, pursuant to the terms of the default
provisions of the Huntington JOA and following Noreco and Tona’s defaults thereunder, POUK is
currently entitled (o 61.5% of the revenue from. and has a corresponding obligation (or 61.5% of (he costs
assoeinted with, the Huntington ficld. This represents POUK's cxisting 404 cquity interest in the
Huntington field and POUK's pro-rata beneficial interest in the POUK Flection Interests (21.5%),
pending completon of the transler process.



It is expected that the transfer process will be completed in the near future, Following the completion of
the transfer of the POUI Election Interests (o POUK, POUK will hold a 61.5%: legal and beneficial
interest in the Huntington ticld.

7.2 The EPUK Group

Suve as sct out below, no contracts have been entered into (other than in the ordinary course of business}
by any member of the LPUK Group, cither (1) within the two vears immediately preceding the date ot this
document which are, or may be, material; or {i7) which contain any provision under which any member of
the EPUK Group has any obligations or entitlements which are or may be malterial as al the date of this
document.

Acguisition by EPUK of interests in the Huntington field from Noveco and lona under the Humndngton JOA

On 8 Januvary 2016 and 29 Jaguary 2016 respectively, EPUK clecied to acquire from Noreco and lona a
pereentage of their respective equity interest shares in the Huntington ficld (together, the “EPUK Election
Interests™) tor no consideration pursuant to the default and forfeiture provisions within the Huntington
JOA. EPUK already held a 25%: cquily inlerest in the Hunlington field.

The transfers (o EPUK of the EPUK Election Interests are being lacilitated pursuant w the Transfer
Documents. lona is currently in administration and [ona’s administrator, FT1 Consulting, [ne., is currently
reviewing these documents,

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the completion of the transter of the EPUK FElection Interests to EPUK
hus not yet oceurred. The transfers will be completed upon the (Inalisation and exccution of the
aforementioned documents, which are in near tinal form. However, pursuant to the terms of the default
provisions of the Huntington JOA and following Noreco and Tona’s defaults thereunder, FPUK is
currently entitled (o 33.5% of the revenue from. and has a corresponding obligation (or 38.5% of (he costs
associuted with, the Huntington ficld. This represents LPUK's existing 25% cquity interest in the
Huntington field and FEPUK's pro-rata beneficial interest in the FPUK Election Interests (13.5%),
pending completon of the transler process.

It is expected that the transfer process will be completed in the near future. Following the completion of
the transfer of the EPUK Llection Interests to EPUK, LPUK will hold a 38.3% legal and beneficial
interest in the Huntington fieldl.

8. Litigation and other proccedings
8.1 The Premicr Group

Other than as set out below, there are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any
such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which Premier is aware} during the 12 months
preceding the date of this document which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant eflfects on
the tinancial position or profitubility of the Premier Group.

Indonesian branch profits tax repayment claim

Trom 2011 the Indonesian Tax Authority has imposed a 206 branch profil tax rate 1o the Premicr Group's
operations in [ndonesia. The Premier CGroup contests this imposition on the grounds that, under the
Netherlands—Indonesia Tax Treaty, the Premier Group is entitled to a 10% branch profit tax rate, In
accordance with due process in Indonesia, Premier has paid (he additional tax of $127 million and is
processing a claim tor repayment using [ndonesian tax dispute resolution and international tax treaty
dispute procedures.

Provision of Mobile Drilling Rig Services—Eirik Roude Drilling Unir

The Premicr CGroup and Noble Lnergy Balklands Limited entered into a contract dated 3 June 2014 with
Ocean Rig Global Chartering Inc, (which contract was subsequently novated to OCR  Falklands
Drilling Inc.) for the drilling of wells offshore the Falkland Islands. The contract was terminated on
L1 February 2010 and QCR Falklunds Drilling Inc. has claimed a total of $62,895.562.59 from the Premier
Group and Noble Energy Falklands Limited. The Premier Group and Noble Energy Falklands TLimited
contest this claim and intend (o scek compensation from OCR Falklands Drilling Inc. for their associated
losses.



8.2 The EPUK Group

There are no governmental, legal or arhitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened, of which Premicr is aware) during the 12 months preceding the date of this
document which may have, or have had in the recent past. significant effects on the financial position or
profitability of the EPUK Group.

9.  Working capital statement

The Premier Group is of the opinion that it does not have sutficient working capital for its present
requirements, which 1s, for at least the next 12 months from the date of this document (“Working Capilal
Period’™).

This is expected (o be the case regardless of whether or not the Acquisition completes and is a result of a
forceast breach of eertain financial covenants in the Premier Group's principal financing arrangements
based on the oil price scenarios detailed helow {heing the net debt to FBITDAX financial covenant in
respect of the 12 month testing periods ending on 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2016 and the EBITDAX
to net interest payable financial covenant in respect of the 12 month testing period ending 31 December
2016), But for such forecast covenant breach, the Premier Group would expect to have sutficient
availability of liguidity throughout the Working Capital Period.

Timing

A breach of one or more financial covenant(s) would cause an event of default under the financing
arrangements which contain such covenant(s), which could in turn trigger cross-defaules inte the other
financing arrangements of the Premicr Group. This could result in the Premier Group's tinancing
arrangements becoming repayable in October 2016 (following a covenant breach in respect of the testing
period ending on 30 June 2016} or May 2017 {following a covenant breach in respect of the testing period
ending on 31 December 2006) (or, in cach case, on an carlier date if the relevant financial statements are
available earlier).

Covenant Shortfall

As at 31 December 2015, the amount outstanding under the Premicr Group's financing arrangements,
which could be required to be repaid following a hreach of financial covenant(s), was USS2.644 million.

In respect of the testing periods ending 300 June 2016 and 31 Drecember 2016 respectively, the Premier
Group's net debi to EBITDAX financial covenant requires that consolidated net debt must be lower than
4.75 times EBITDAX for the previous 12 months and the Premicr Group's LBITDAX to net interest
payable financial covenant requires that ERITDAX must be greater than 3.0 times net interest pavable for
the previous 12 months. Utilising an oil price of US$35 per barrel for 2016 and USS40 per barrel for 2017,
adjusted tor hedged il prices where relevant {approximately 34%: of 2010 liquids production and 32% of
2016 UK gas production is hedged at USS67.5 per barrel and 63p per therm respectively), and based upon
the completion of the Acquisition by 30 June 2016, the Premier Group is currently forecasting a net debt to
LBITDAX cover ratio of 5.4x times in respect of the financial covenant testing period ending 30 June 2010
{representing a shortfall of USE366 million) and 7.0x% times in respect of the financial covenant testing
period ending 31 December 2016 {representing a shortfall of US$1.074 million). In addition, the Premicr
Crroup is currently forecasting an EBITDAX to net interest payable cover ratio of 2.64x times in respect of
the financial covenant testing period ending 31 December 2016 (representing a shortfall of US$67 million},

It the Acquisition does not complete the shortfall would be worse,

Action plan

The Premicr Group continues to explore mitigating actions that can improve its forceast financial covenant
position. The Acquisition itself, if completed. is expected to have a significant positive effect on the
Premicr Group's near term (inancial covenant caleulation. Flowever, at current oil prices, the completion
of the Acquisition is unlikely, in itself, to fully mitigate any potential shortfall for the finaneial covenants in
respect of the testing periads ending 3) June 2016 and 31 December 2016, As a result, the Premier
Group's management has begun 1o actively explore certain mitigating actions and has entered into
discussions with certain of its debt holders with a view to agrecing amendments to its financial covenants in
order to give the Premier Group headroom for a further period, and financial advisers are assisting with
this process. Although it is possible that the successful implementation of such mitigating actions could
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negate the need for a renegotiation of the financial covenants, the Premier Group’s management believe
that it is prudent o procecd on the basis that a combination of certain mitigaling actions and a covenant
renegotiation will be required and the Premicer Group is therefore exploring the possible covenant
renegofiation and mitigating actions in parallel.

The key mitigating actions include:

= phasing of expected capital expenditure and further savings in operating expenditure, without adverse
effects (o the Premicr Group's ability to muintaiin production over the next 12 months {which may be
achicvable, subject to existing contractual obligations and commitments);

+ cntering into pre-paid oil sales agreements with third partics:

+  portfolio management of non-core assets, monetising discovered resources us part of the Premier
Group’s existing strategy; and.

= sale and leasehack of existing facilities,
A number of these actions would need to be agreed with various debt holder groups.

The Premier Group’s management reasanably expect that the covenant renggotiation with its debt holders
andfor some of the other key mitigaling actions above can be completed by the time the {inancial
covenants for the testing period ending 30 June 2016 are required to be tested (when the financial
statements and compliance certificate in respect of this period are delivered) or that a temporary waiver or
amendment of the financial covenants would be agreed until the curvent renegotiation is finalised.
Agreement of the terms of the renegotiation and/or a combination of some of the other mitigating actions
listed above will need to occur to successfully avoid a hreach of financial covenant in respect of the testing
periods ending 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2016. However, all of (hese actions involve agreement from
third parties and arc therefore outside of the control of manugement.

Implications

If the re-negotiation with the debt holders and other key mitigation actions described above are not
successful in avoiding a covenant breach in respect of cither of the relevant testing periods then the
Premier Group’s financing arrangements could become repayable (as described ahove). which would be
likely o result in administration oc other inselvency procecdings. These could occur as carly as October
2006 (following a covenant breach in respeet of the testing period ending on 30 June 2016) or Muay 2017
{following a covenant breach in respect of the testing period ending on 31 December 2016) {or. in each
casc, on an carlier date if the relevant financial statements are available carlier}.

As al the date of this document, approval [or the Acquisition [rom the Premicr Group™s lending banks and
US private placement notcholders huas been received. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Premier Group can secure any necessary financial covenant modification or waiver andfor implement some
of the mitigating actions described above so as 0 avoid a financial covenant breach during the Working
Capital Peried. It the Premier Grroup can achicve that, it will have sufficient working capital for its present
purposes, that is, for at least the next 12 months from the date of this document,

H). Significant change

L1 The Premier Group

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Premicr Group sinee
31 December 20135, the date to which the last full year results of the Premier Group were prepared.
1.2 The EPUK Group

On 24 February 2016, a dividend of £60 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 was paid by LPUK
to the Seller, Save tor such dividend, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading
position of the EPUK Group since 31 December 2015, the date (o which the historical financial
infermation sct out in Part V was prepared.

[ ]
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1l. Consenls

1.1 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this
document of its report on the historical linancial information relating o the EPUK Group in the form
and context in which it appears.

[1.2 Deloitte LLP has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this document of its
report on the unaudited pro forma financial information relating to the Enlarged Group in the form
and context in which it appears,

[1.3 DeGolyer and MacNaughton has given and not withdrawn its written consent 1o the inclusion in this
document of its Competent Persons’ Report in Part [V of this document and/or extracts therefrom
and references thereto and to the inclusion of its name and references in the form and context in
which they are included.

11.4 RISC (UK) Limited has given and not withdrawn its wrilten consent (o the inclusion in this document
of its Competent Persons” Report in Part IV of this document andior extracts theretrom and
references thereto and to the inclusion of its name and references in the form and context in which
they are included.

11.5 RBC Europe Limited has given and not withdrawn its written consent (0 the issue of this document
and the references herein to its name in the form and context in which they appesar.
12. Documents available for inspection

Copics of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and publie holidays exeeptred) at the offices of Premicr, 23 Lower Belgrave
Street, London SW1 ONR up to and including the date of the General Meeting and for the duration of the
General Meciing:

{A) the Articles of Association;

{B) the audited consolidated accounts of the Premier Group for cach of the periods ended 31 December
2015, 31 December 20014 and 31 December 2013,

{C} the reports from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and Deloitte LLP set outs in Parts ¥V oand V1 of this
document;

{D} the Competent Persons’ Reports, as set out in Part TV of this document;
{F} the written cansents referred to in paragraph 11 above;
{F) the Sale and Purchase Agreement; and

{G) a copy of this document and the Form of Proxy.



PART VIII—DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The table below sels oul the various information incorporated by reference inlo this document, so as lo
provide the information required pursuant to the Listing Rules. These documents are also available at
www.premier-oil.com,

PPage number in

Document Infurmatinn incorpovated by reference this ducument
Premier 2015
Annual Report ... Details of exceutive Dircetors’ service contracts and non-cxccutive 207

Directors™ leftters of appointment providing for benetits upon
lermination of emploviment (puges 96-98)

Details of the Directors’ interests in equily poeol points and share 208
awards under the LUIP Schemie, share awards under the Deferred

Bonus Share Plan, sharve oprions under the SAYE Plan 2009 and

share ullocations under the Share Incentive Plan for the linancial

year ended 31 December 2015 (pages 86-114)

Details of related party transactions that Premicr has entered into 204
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (page 162)

Details of the net assets of Premier for the financial year ended 203
31 December 2015 (page 134)

Premier 2014
Annual Report ... Details of related party transactions that Premier has entered into 204
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (page 16&)

Premier 203
Amual Report ... Details ol related party transactions that Premier has entered into 209
tor the financial year ended 31 December 2013 (page 148)

The documents incorporated by reference in this document have been incorporated in compliance with
Listing Rules 13,1,1 and 13,1.6, The information set owr above is incorporated by reference in this
document and forms part of this document, and is available as ndicaled. Information that is itsell
meorporated by reference or cross-referred to in these documents is not incorporated by reference into
this document, Except as set our above, no other portions of these documents are incorporated by
reference into this document.
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PART IX—DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY
2009 Long Term Incentive Plan . mecuns the 2009 Long lerm [necentive Plan approved by Sharcholders
on 29 May 2009;

Acquisilion . ... .. ... ... ... means the proposed acquisition of the EPUK Group, details of which
dare set oul in Part I of this document;

Acquisition Agreements . . . .. .. mcans all agreements relating (o the acquisition of the EPUK Group,
including the agreements summarised in Part [11 of this document;

Additional Restrocturing
Indemnity Deed . . ... ... ... has the meaning given to it in section 2 of Part TIT of this document;

Arean . oL Lo means the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the Arran
unitised arca, which underlies Blocks 237/16b, 23/11a F and 23/16¢ of
the UKCS pursuant to Licences P339, PLOS] and P72,

Articles or Articles of

Associalion ., ... ......... means the articles of association of Premier in force from time (o
lime:
Assets ... L, mcans the assets of the EPUK Group, as described in section 3 of

Part [ of this document;

Asset Title Warranty Claims . .. has the meaning given to it in scetion | of Part 11 of this document;

Ansten ... ... L L meuns the hydrocurbon accumulation commaonly known as the Austen
field which underlies Block 30/13b of the UKCS pursuant to licence
P1823;

Babbage . . .. ... ... ... ... .. mcans the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the

Babbage ticld which underlics Block 482a of the UKCS pursuant to
licence P436;

bbl. ... ... ... ... ... ... L means the unit of measurement for crude oil and petroleum products
known as a barrel;

Bel. ... .. mcans billion cubic feet;

Bilateral Decommissioning

Scenrity Agreement ... ... L. has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;
boe . ... ... ... .. meuns harrels of oil cquivalent:
bopd .................... meuns barrels of oil per day:
Board or Board of Dircetors . .. meuns the Directors;
Caister . .. ................ meuns the hydroearbon accumulation commonly known as the Caister

field which underlies Block 44/23a AREAA of the UKCS pursuant to
licence P452;

CMS ... .. means the CMS [acilities comprising two offshore platforms, a 16 inch
nominal diameter pipeline for the transportation of natural gas
between the platforms, a 26 inch nominal diameter pipeline for the
transportation  of natural gas off the platforms, other offshore
facilitics associated therewith and other property acguired or held for
use in cunnection with the operations;

CNS ... means the UK Central North Sea;

Companies Act 2006 ... ... ... means the Companies Act of FEngland and Wales 2006, as amended
from tme o me;

Competent Persons .. ... ... .. mcans DeGolyer and MacNaughton and RISC {UK) Limited:

Competent Persons’ Reports . . . mcans the reports by DeGolver and MacNaughton and RISC (UK}

Limited eentained in Part I'V of this document;



Completion., . .............

Consideration . . ... ... ... ..

CREST Manual ...........

CREST Proxy Imstruction . . . .

DEMCPR ...............

Decommissioning Costs . ... ..

Decommissioning Liability

Agreement. . ... ... ... ...

Deferred Bonus Share Plan . . . .

Deposit . ... ... .. .. ...,

Diirectors . ...............

Disclosure Rules and

Transparency Rules . .. .. ..

EPUK Company ...........
EPUK Group .............

EPUK Ordinary Shares., ... ..

means completion of the Acquisition:
has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part TIT of this document;

means the paperless settlement procedure operated by Furoclear
cnabling  system  sccuritics to be cvidenced otherwise  than by
certificates and transferred otherwise than by written instrument:

meuns the rules governing the operation of CREST as published by
Furoclear;

means a proxy appointment ar instructions made via CREST,
duthenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s specifications and
containing the information set out in the CRLEST Manual;

meuns the Competent Persons Report prepared by DeGolyer and
MacNaughton contained in Part [V of this document;

has the meaning given to it in section 3 of Part TIT of this document;

has the meaning given to it in section 3 of Part 11T of this document;

mcans the Deferred Bonus Plan 2006 approved by the Remuneration
Committee of the Board on 19 Qctober 2006;

has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;

meuns the direetors of Premicr whose names arc set out on page 3 of
this document;

mcans the disclosure rules and transpareney rules made under Part VI
of FSMA {as sct out in the FCA Handbook), as amended from time
to time;

has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part TIT of this document;
has the meaning given to it in Part V of this document;

means  consolidated  earnings  before  interest,  depreciation,
amortisation, tax and exploration cxpenditure adjusted by certain
items as defined in the Premicr Group’s financing agreements;

meuns the hydrocurbon accumulation commonly known as the Llgin-
Franklin unitised area, which underlies Blocks 22/30b FELGN, 29/5h,
22/30¢, 29/5¢ and 22/28b of the UKCS pursuant to licences P135,
P62, Po6O and P2068;

meuns the Premier Group, tollowing Completion:
meuns LON SL:

mcans LLON L&P UK Limited;

meuns any member of the LPUK Group:

meuns Neweo, EPUK, E.ON E&P Lnergy Trading Limited and E.ON
F&P UK EL Limited;

means ordinary shares with a nominal value of £2370 each in the
capital of EPUK;

mcans the “Esmond Transportation Pipeline™ comprising the section
of the 24 inch diameter pipeline extending from the “lrent and Tyne
fields to a gas processing terminal at Bacton in the County of Norfolk;

means Furoclear UK & Treland Limited, the operator of CREST:

means the Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom:



Financial Information Table ... has the meaning given to it in Part V of this document;

Form of Proxy .......... ... means the form of proxy for use at the CGeneral Meeting which
decompanics this document;

EPS ... mcans the “Fortics Pipeline System™ connecting the GAEL Northern
pipeline to the shore;

FPSG .o meuns floating production, storage and offloading vessel;

FSMA ... .. ... ... L meuns the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended from

time to time;

Fundamental Claims . .. ... ... has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part TIT of this document;

GAFL Northern . .. ... ... ... means the “Narthern Spurline”™ comprising a 24 inch nominal
diameter liquids pipeline connecting GAEL Southern to the TPS
pipcline;

GAEL Southern . ... ..., .. .. meuans the “Southern Spurline”™ comprising a4 24 inch nominal

diameter liquids pipeline connecting Flgin-Franklin to the GAEIL
Northern pipeline:

General Meeting or GM . . .. . mcans the general meeting of the Company (o be convened pursuant
te the notice set out at the end of this document {including any
adjournment thereof);

General Claims, . .. ... ... ... has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part TIT of this document;

Glenelg . ................. means the hydrocarban accumulation commonly known as the
Glenclg field which underlies Block 29/4d of the UKCS pursuant to
licence P72

Guarantee Warranty Claims ... has the meuaning given to it in section 1 of Part 11 of this document;

Hunter .. ................. meuns the hydroearbon accumulation commaonly known as the Hunter
field which underlies Block 44/23¢ T) of the UKCS pursuant to licence
P452;

Huntington . . ... ........... mcans the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the

Huntington ficld which underlies Block 22/14b of the UKCS pursuant
to licence P11

Huntington Joint Operaling
Agreement. . .. ... ... ... .. mcans the Joint Gperating Agreement for Huntington dated 3 April
2006, the current partics being Premier Oil UK Limited, LPUK, [ona
UK Huntington Limited and Noreco Gil (UK) Limited:

IFRS .. ... ........... ... means International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the
European Union;

Johnston ... ... ... .. ... .. mcans the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the
Johnston unitised urca which underlies Blocks 43/26a RLESID and
43/27a of the UKCS pursuant to licences P380 and PoS6;

kboepd . ............ ..., .. means thousand harrels of oil equivalent per day:

Lalest Praclicable Date . ... ... means 6 April 2016, being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document;

Lender Condition . .. ... ... .. has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part 11T of this document;

Licence Interest(s) .......... has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part 11T of this document;

Listing Rules ... . .......... mcans the Listing Rules of the UKLA,;

Locked Box Claim. .. ... ... .. has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part 11T of this document;

London Stock Exchange . ... .. mcans London Stock Exchange ple or its successor(sh



mmboe . ... ...

mmsefd ... L.

OGA Condition, . .. ... ......

QilExco Acquisition ., . ... ...

Orea ... ...

Premier Group . . . ... ... ..

Premicr 2003 Annual Report . . .

Premier 2004 Annual Report . . .

Premier 2015 Annual Report . . .

Pro forma financial information
Prospectus Directive Regulation .

Prospectus Rules . ..........

Purchaser. . ... ... ..........

Ravenspurn North ... .. ... ..

RBC or RBC Capital Markets . .

Registrar . . ... ............

means the hydrocarban accumulation commonly known as the
Merganser unitised arca which underlics Blocks 22/23a (Merg) and
22{30a F of the UKCS pursuant to licenees P and POI2;

meuns the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the Minke

field which underlies Block 44/24a of the UKCS pursuant to licence
Poll;

mcans million barrels of oil cquivalent;

mcans million standard cubic [eet per day;

mcans a holding company to be incorporaicd by the Seller, which
may, by way of a share swap, be inserted between the Seller and
FPUK;

has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part TIT of this document;

means Premier’s acquisition of Oileco North Sea Limited that
completed on 21 May 2009;

mcans the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the Orca
field of which 35% underlics Block 44/24a, 44/29b, 447304 of the
UKCS pursuant to licence P454 {the remaining 45% underlies the
Dutch block D135b);

ordinary shares with 2 nominal value of 12.3 pence cuch in the capital
of Premier;

meuns the lawful currency of the United Kingdom;

meuns the Prudential Regulation Authority of the United Kingdom:

meuns Premicr Oil ple, a company incorporated in Scotland with
registerad number 5C234781, whose registered office is at 4th Floor,
Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh EFHI1 2EN;

mecans  Premicr  together with ity subsidiaries and  subsidiary
undertakings trom time to time;

meuns the Premicr Oil ple annual report and finanelal statement tor
the year ended 31 December 20 3;

means the Premier Oil ple annual report and financial statement for
the year ended 31 December 204,

mcans the Premier Oil ple annual report and financial statement for
the year ended 31 December 20105:

has the meaning given to it in Part V1 of this document:

has the meaning given to it in Part V1 of this document:

meuns the prospectus rules made under Part VI of the FSMA (as set
out in the FCA handbook), as amended from time to time;

means Premier il Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Scolland (registered number SCO17829) and whose registered oflice is
at 4th Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Ldinburgh, EHI 2EN;
meuns the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the
Ravenspurn North unitised area which underlies Blocks 42/3{a,

13260 RAVEA and 43726a RAVER of the UKCS pursuant to licences
POOL and P38

meuns RBC Europe Limited, of Riverbank House, 2 Swan Lance.
I.ondon, EC4R 3IBF;

means Capita Asset Services, of The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU;
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Relevanl Decommissioning

Relief ... ...............
Resolution .. ..............
Reverse Condition. ... ... .. ..

RISCCPR ................

Sale and Purchase Agreement . .

SAYE Plan 2009 . . ... .......

Seller Group. .. ............

Share Incentive Plan . . . . ... ..

Sharcholder .. ... ..........
Sharchalder Condition ... .. ..
SPA Conditions . ...........

Tax Claims .. ..............

UK Listing Authority or UKLA .

United Kingdom or CK . ... ...
United States or US ... ... ...
US$. CSDollarsor § .. ... ...
Working Capital Period . ... ...

has the meaning given to it in section 3 of Part 11T of this document;
mcans the resolution 1o be proposed at the General Mecting:
has the meaning given in section | of Part 1 of this document;

mcans the Compeient Persons Report prepared by RISC (UK}
Limited eentained in Part I'V of this document;

meuns the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the Rita
unitised area which underlies Blocks 4421h and 44/22¢ of the UKCS
pursuant 1o licences P766 and P771;

has the meaning given to it in section 1 of Part 11T of this document;

mcans the Premicr Ol ple Saving Related Share Option Scheme 2009
approved by Sharcholders on 29 May 2009,

meuns the hydrocarbon accumulation commonly known as the Scoter
unitised area which underlies Blocks 22/30a F and 23/26d A of the
UKCS pursuant 1o licences PO12 and P264;

mcans the “Shearwater Elgin Arca Line™ comprising a natural gas
pipcline  connecting  Elgin-Frunklin  to the terminal. plant and
equipment at Bacton in the County of Norfolk, England:

means E.ON Beteiligungen GmhH, a company incorporated in
Germany (registered number TIRB33888 in the commercial registry
of the local court of Didsseldor!)y and whose registered office is at
F.ON-Platz. 1, 40479 Ddsseldort, Germany:

means the Seller, Uniper AG and their affiliates from time to time,
cxcluding the EPUK Group:

mecans the Premicr Oil ple Share Incentive Plan approved by
Sharcholders an 2 April 2001

meuns a holder of any Ordinary Sharcs;

has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;
has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;
has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;
has the meuaning given to it in section | of Part 11 of this document;
meuns trillien cubic feet:

meuns the unit of heat energy;

UK Continental Shelf:

meuns the FCA acting in its capacity as the competent authority tor
the purposes of Part VI of FSMA;

means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Treland;
means the United States of America;
means the lawful currency of the United States; and

has the meaning given to it in Part VIT of this document,



NOTICE OF GENERAIL MEETING

PREMIER OIL P1.C
{Registered in Scolland with registered number SC234781)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN ihat a General Meeting of Premier Oil ple (the “*Company™) will be held at
[57-197 Buckingham Palace Road, London SWIW 98P on Monday 25 April 2016 at 10.00 am for the
purposes of considering and, it thought fit, passing the resolution set out below which will be proposed as
an ordinary resolution of the Company {meaning that for the resolution to be passced, more than half the
votes cast must be in favour of it). Words and cxpressions defined in the circular of the Company dated
7 April 2016 (a copy of which has been produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the
meciing [or the purpose of identification only {the “Circular™)) shall, unless otherwise deflined herein,
have the same meaning in this Notice.

. THAT the proposed acquisition by the Purchaser {or any other member of the Premicr Group) of the
FPUK Group on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Acquisition Agreements and all
agreements and arrangements made or entered inwo, or which may in the luture be made or entered
into, by any member or members of the Premicer Group in connection with, or which are ancillary to,
the acquisition (the “Acquisition™), be and are herebhy approved and that the directors {or any duly
constituted commitice thercol) of the Company be and are hereby authorised (o:

{(A) take all such steps, execute all such agrecments and make such arrangements as may seem o
them necessary, desirable, cxpedient or appropriate for the purpose of giving effeet to, or
otherwise in connection with, the Acquisition; and

(B) agree and make such modifications, variations, revisions, waivers or amendments in relation to
any of the floregoing (provided that such modifications, varialions, revisions, waivers or
amendments are not material) as they may in their absolute diseretion deem necessary, desirable,
expedient or appropriate.

By order of the Board

Rachel Rickard Registered Office
Company Secretary 4th Floor, Saltire Court
7 April 2016 20 Castle Terrace

Edinburgh EH1 2EN

Notes:
Attending the General Meeting and asking guestinns

Ty e entitled to artend and vore ar the General Meeting (the ~Meeting™) (wnd for the purpose of the determination by the Campany
of the voles they iy cast), sharcholders owst be registered 1n the Regisiter of Mombers of Lhe Company at clese of busiocss on
Thursday 21 April 2006 (or, in thye event of any adjourament, closy of business on the date which is two diys betore the time of the
adjouened Meetiog)., Chupges to the Register of Muembers after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the rights of
any person to aend and vore i the Mecting,

Any member attending the Mueeting has the vight oo ask gquestions, The Company must s 1o be amswered any such guesticon
relating ty the business e desdlt with at the Meetng but nao sueh answer need be piven b a0 doosocwould involve the disclosure
of confidential information., {hy the answer has aleady been given on g website in the form of an ansswer (o000 question, or (e) it ix
undesirable n the interests of the Company ar the aeod arder of the Moecting that the guestion be answered.

Appointing a proxy

Sharcholders are entitled to attend. speak and vote at the Meeting and may appoint a proxy w exercise all or any of their rights to

attend and 1o =peak and vore on Lheir heball at the Mecting, A sharcholder may appoint more Lhan ene proxy in relation (o the

Muecting provided that each proxy i appointed to excreeise the rights attached ta different share ar shares held by that sharcholder,

The Ardeles of Assoctation provide thart

(1) It a menmber appeints moce than ane proxy and the proxy forms appointing those prosdes would give those proxices the apparent
righl tor exereise votes om belall of the member ina general mecting over more shares than wre held by the membuer, then cach
ot those proxy tarms will be invalid and none of the praxies socappointed will be entitled to attend. speak or voo at the relevant
general mecting: and
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(i} it 2 member submits more than one valid proxy appointment in respeet of the same share, the appointment received last
{regardless of its date or the date oo which it s signed ) etore the latest ime Tor the receipt ol progics will take precedence, I it
is not pussible o determine the order of receipt, none of the forms will he rreated as valid.

A proxy necd not e o member of the Cnmpun\' Avote withheld s nota vote in law, which means that the vote will not he counted in
the pmpr.nlmn ol ey lor™ and tamainst™ o Resolution, Where a proxy has beeo appoimted by aomoerober, i such member docs oot
aive any instructions in relarion to that Resalution that member should nate that their proxy will have autharity o vore on the
Rmululu}]l ay hwdshe thinks [l

Aary power ol altomey or any other authority under which the form ol proxy oo simmed (or a duly contilicd copy ol such power or
authorityp must he included with the procy form, Tn the case of @ member which is o company, the form af proxy shoold cither e
sealed by that company or sigocd Dy someone authorted Lo sign il

A Jorm of proxy which nuay be wsed o make such appointmcnl and give proxy instroctions accotpanics this notice. 1 you do not have
a farm of proxy and belicve that vou should have one, ar if yvou reguire additianal forms, please contaer Capita Asset Services on
OST1 b4 U300t calling froro withio the UKL Calls cost 12p per nunuie plus your phong company™ aceess chacge, I you are outside
the United Kingdom, please call +£44 371 664 0300, Calls oatside the Unined Kingdom will e chorged ot the applicable intermatiomal
rate, Lines dre open between 0900 aod 3.30pm. Monduy 1o Friday excluding public bolidavs in England and Wales,

Tor be walid, tore of proxy st be lodged by one ol the tollowing octhods Dy 1000 am on Thuesday 210 April 2006

ot i hard copy tume by post o the Company’s Registrar at Cupila Asset Services, PXS. 34 Beckenbum Road, Beckenhan,
BRI AT or

. in thy gase of CREST members or CREST Personal Members, by odilising the CREST elecironic proxy appaintment servies in
aeeardanee with the procedures set out Below: o

. b subimitting voue proxy appointroent clectronicully via the internet. Instructions on o w do this can be found an the form ol
proxy.

Thye return of o completed frme of prosy or any CREST Proxy Instruction (a5 deseribed below) will not prevent a shargholder
attending the Mecting and votng i peeson if hedshe wishes w do so.

CREST members

CREST members who wish tooappoint o proxy or prosies through the CREST clectronic proxy appointmient seevice nuy do so by
utilising the procedores deseribed in the CREST Manual (uvailible to members al waw.curoclearcom). CREST Personal Members
or ather CREST sponsored mentbers. and those CREST memberes wha have appointed @ voting service provider(s), shoold reter to
their CREST spansor or voting service providerfs), who will be able w take the appropridte action on their behalf.

In wrder tor o prosy appeintment or instruction made wsing the CREST service Lo be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a
“CREST Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authenticated in acoordance with Eureclear UK & Ireland Limited s specifications,
and musl contain the inforation required Tor such instruction, as deseribed in the CREST Manual, The rmicssage, regardless of
whether it canstitutes the appaintment of a proxy or is an amendment ta the instroction given ta g previously appointed proxy must,
10 order 1o be valis, be transmitied so s o be reeeved by Capita Assel Services {100 RATUY by LW wm on Thursday 21 Apnl 2016,
For this purpose. the mye of reeeipt will be token ta e the timg (as determined by the timestamp applicd to the message by the
CREST Applicaton Hosty from which the issuer’s agent 15 able to reorieve the messae by eoguiry to CREST in the manoer
preseribed by CREST Atter this time any change of instruetions o proxices appointed through CREST should be communicated 1o
the appaintes through sther means,

CREST members and., where applicable. their CREST sponsors, or saung service providers should note that Eurocledr UK & [reland
Limited doos not make availible speciil procedures in CREST for any particulir message. Nornal system fimings and limitions
will. therefore, apply in relation to the mput of CREST Proxy Instructions, It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned
Lo Lk {or, if the CREST muember iy o CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voling scrvice provider,
to procure that their CREST sponsor or voting service priwider(s) takels)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message
is transnutied by mcuans ol the CREST systent by any particular tme. To this connection. CREST membuers and, where upplicable,
their CREST spansars or voting system providers are referced. in parcticular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning

practical inmatioons ol the CREST systent and Limings,

The Company may reat an instroction as mvalid in the cireamstaoces sct oot inoregulation 353050a) of the Uncernlicated Sceuritics
Reaulations 2060

Nominated persons and information rights

Ay person tewhon this nedice is xent who is o persen nominated under Secticn L6 of the Companies At 2006 10 enjov informiticn
rights (2 "Nominated Person™) niay. under an agreement becween hitndher and the sharceholder by whonn heshie was nominated, have
ioright 10 be appoainted (or 16 huve someone else appointed} as o prosy for the Mecting,

It a Nevminated Person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wisho exergise it hedshe may, under any sueh agreemeant,
Iave a right o give instroetions t the shaceholder as w the cxereise of voting rights.

Huwoever, the sitateruent of the rights of sharcholders i relation w the appointment ol proxies deseribed above does not apply 1o
Nominated Persons, Thye rights deseribed in thase paragraphs canoonly be exercised by shargholders ol the Company.
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Joint holders and corporate represenfatives

[ the cuse of joint holders, where more than ane of the joint holders purports @ appont a prosy. only the appaintnient subnutted by
the most senior holder will be aceepled. Seniorily is deteemined by the erder in which Lhe names of the joint holdees appeur in the
Company’s Register of Members in respect of the joint holding {the first-named being the mast senior).

Ay carparation which 15 a member can appoint gne o more corporate Fepresentatiyes who may cxereise on its hehalt all of ics
powers as 1 member provided that they de not do so inorelation to the same shares.

Share capiul

Asoul 6 April 2006 (being the last business dale prior o the publicacion of tis Notice) the Company™s issucd Ordinary share capital
consisted of SUIE 1061 Ordinary Shares, carrving one vore cach, Therefore the total voting rights in the Company as at & April 2006
wors STIETTANL,

Oureries and aceess 1o information

Lxeept as prosided above, members who have genecal gueries about the Mueeting should use the Tollowing nieans of commuonication
(1o other methods of communication will he necepred): ealling Capitn Asser Services” sharcholder helpline on 0871 664 O30 Calls
cost 12p per nunote plus your phone company™s aceess charge. IF your are gutside the Taited Kingdom. please call +44 371 604 0300,
Culls outside the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable intermational rale. Lines arc open between 09000m and 5. M)pm,
Monday to Fridav excluding public holidays in England and Wales, You may not use any electronic address prowided either {4) in this
Mot of General Mecting, or () o any related documents (includiog the Chairman’s letier and o of proxy) Lo commuaiicale with
the Company foar any purpeses ather than thase expressly stated,

Iy would TKe to reguest a copy of this notice inan alterative format such as in large print or audio. please contact the Company™s
Registrar, Capila Asset Services, on 0871664 (1300, Calls cost 12p per minuwe plus your phone company’™s aveess charge, 0 you are
vutside the United Kingdom, please call +44 371 66d 0300, Calls autside the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable
mteroational rate. Lines are open belween 00 o 530mo, Mooday w Friday cxeluding public holidays m England and Wales,

A copy ol Lthis notke, and other iformation required by Scetion 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be tound  at
wwav, premise-ail com,
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Mervill Corporatien Ltd, London
[6ZA0 16201



